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CORPORATE PROFILE
NEBER

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang
Century”; together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Group”) has been listed on the Stock Exchange since April
1992. Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission) and its
controlled corporations, Bekaert and Li Ka Shing Foundation
are the substantial Shareholders of Shougang Century.

The Group is primarily involved in the following activities:
1. manufacturing of steel cords for radial tyres

2. manufacturing of sawing wires

CORPORATE'S GOAL

strive for a successful “Eastern” brand awareness and
recognition in steel cord industry

° be an enterprise of 200,000 tonnes annual production
capacity in steel cord manufacturing

° be one of the top three independent manufacturers in
China steel cord industry

° become a diversified metal product manufacturer
capable of consistently purveying premium quality wire
related products

To learn more about Shougang Century, please visit
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Deputy Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors
Liao Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yip Kin Man, Raymond

Law, Yui Lun

Lam Yiu Kin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Law, Yui Lun

Lam Yiu Kin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)

Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Law, Yui Lun

Lam Yiu Kin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Law, Yui Lun

Lam Yiu Kin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau
Chan Lai Yee

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Lai Yee
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China CITIC Bank

Fubon Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Moore Stephens Advisory Services Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan,

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

WEBSITE FOR PUBLISHING LISTING RULES
RELATED ANNOUNCEMENTS AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/sccentury/

HKEx STOCK CODE
103

LISTING DATE
9 April 1992
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHHE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHEE

2018 2017 %
—E—N\E —E—+F Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
BT T BT IT BE

Operations EKEE
Revenue ] 2,254,170 2,113,258 +6.7
Gross profit EF 267,467 196,065 +36.4
EBITDA (Note) EBITDA(F5E) 179,293 104,096 +72.2
Loss for the year KREEEIE (8,681) (68,518) -87.3
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREAREEGEL) (0.45) (3.56) -87.3
Note: EBITDA represents earnings before finance costs, income tax, MisF -EBITDA RGBSR A - FriSsi - 9T & & 8

depreciation and amortisation. A& A ©
At 31 December
+=ZA=+—H

2018 2017 %
—E-N\F —E—tF Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
BT T BT IT 2E

Financial position B B AR SR,
Total assets BEBE 3,414,467 3,444,076 -0.9
Shareholders’ equity AR 1,339,150 1,391,528 -3.8
Net asset value per Share (HK$) SR EEFME(EE) 0.696 0.724 -3.8
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

SENER

BRE

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot size: 2,000 Shares
Shares outstanding as at 1,922,900,556 Shares

the last trading day of 2018:
Market capitalisation as at HK$361,505,305

the last trading day of 2018:
Closing share price as at HK$0.188
the last trading day of 2018:

Basic loss per Share for 2018:

Interim (HK1.17 cents)
Final (HKO0.45 cents)
KEY DATE

2019 Annual General Meeting: 11 June 2019

Closure of Register of 4 to 11 June 2019
Members for 2019
Annual General Meeting:

Announcement of 2018
Final Results:

22 March 2019

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Address : Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong

Telephone . (852) 2527 2218

Fax . (852) 2861 3527

E-mail address . business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk
ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
scchi@shougangcentury.com.hk

Website . http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of
Shares, change of name or address, lost share certificates
and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing to:

Tricor Tengls Limited

Address . Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone . (852) 2980 1333

Fax : (852) 2810 8185

E-mail address
Website

. is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
. http://www.tricoris.com
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BUSINESS CONTACTS

EFEW

JESc

TEsc

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. ZEER S HELER QA

Address:
A -

Postal code:
iR
Telephone:
Fax:

BH

Website:

Ak

E-mail address:
BE AL

1 Dong Fang Road, Jiaxing Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

BT & 5 E i B R R R T B8 155

314003

(86) 573 8222 2790

(86) 573 8221 3500

http://www.jesc.com.cn

jesc@jesc.com.cn

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. MR FHEEER A T

Address:
A -

Postal code:
Bim
Telephone:
Fax:

BE :

Website:

B -

E-mail address:
B Mt -

1 Dong Fang Road, Tengzhou Economic Development Zone
Shandong Province, PRC

o B L R e M T A 7 ) B BRT B 1 51R

277500

(86) 632 525 2100

(86) 632 525 2111

http://www.tesc.com.cn

tesc@tesc.com.cn

BEREF(LE)EEARLQT

Address:
A -

Postal code:
iR -
Telephone:
=

BB p

Fax:

BE :

Room 2505, Tower 1, SOHO Tianshan Plaza

No.421 Ziyun Road, Shanghai, PRC
FEEETREREZERK4215ESOHOXILEST1-2505%F
200051

(86) 21 6291 8806

(86) 21 6291 8805
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Mr. Su Fanrong, aged 51, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager of the Company in January 2015 and was
appointed as the executive deputy managing Director on 1
December 2015. Mr. Su has re-designated as chairman of
the Company and acted as the chairman and vice-chairman
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company respectively since 18 January 2018, and he
has been appointed as the managing Director on 31 January
2018. At present, he holds directorship in all wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company. He also acts as the deputy
general manager of Shougang HK. He holds a Master degree
in Business Administration from Missouri State University
and Bachelor degree specialising in Pressure Processing
from University of Science and Technology Beijing. He
joined Shougang Group (previously known as “Shougang
Corporation”) in 1990 and had been working in various
companies under Shougang Group during the period from
the same year to 2014. Mr. Su has over 25 years of sales and
management experience in the steel industry.

Other than his directorship and position disclosed above,
he does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Su does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract
was entered into between Mr. Su and the Company for a
term commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020 to act as an executive deputy managing
Director of the Company. Following his re-designation as
a Chairman of the Company, Mr. Su entered into a service
contract for a term commencing from 18 January 2018
and ending on 31 December 2020. The service contract
may be terminated by either party by giving to other party
not less than three months’ notice without payment of
any compensation (other than statutory compensation).
However, he is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles. Mr. Su’s monthly salaries is
entitled to HK$150,000 at present under his service contract
with the Company in order to show his accountability
to the Shareholders. The emoluments of Directors are
determined by reference to the Company’s performance
and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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B e
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BEZZ-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HI1k - READ
ARER—FE TS —A TP =B A @
kit - MEBASZNERNBECEERESR
BRON) o MR BZRERMAFENRRAR 2K
REAFKg LHESRIERET - BREFR
NABRIN 2 RIGEH » #R5TA B B 0] BEYER
5 AE¥150,000t 2 H & - BRI ERE
MBEE BESHSERARRZEERAFMN
Mo TMAER R BRMIZRIEMER °
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Former name: Tang Kwok
Kau), aged 58, Mr. Tang joined the Group in 1998 and
was appointed as the deputy managing Director in March
2000. At present, he holds directorship in all wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tang was an independent
non-executive director of Loco Hong Kong from 22 July
2014 to 9 September 2016. He holds a Bachelor and a
Master Degrees in Business Administration from York
University in Canada. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tang had held senior positions with various international
investment banks. He also has over 15 years’ experience in
corporate and investment banking.

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Tang
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas and
does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial Shareholders or
controlling Shareholders. At the date of this annual report,
he beneficially owns 10,000,000 Shares and in which of
200,000 Shares are jointly owned by his wife within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Tang is entitled to
receive a HK$165,000 monthly salary at present under his
service contract with the Company. The service contract
may be terminated by either party by giving to other party
not less than three months’ notice without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation). There
is no specified or proposed length of service for Mr. Tang
with the Company. However, he will also be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.
The emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Mr. Liao Jun, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 25 February 2015. Mr. Liao holds a Bachelor of
Science and a Master of Science in Physical Metallurgy from
Central South Mining and Metallurgy Institute and Central
South University of Technology respectively in China. He
further achieved his Doctor of Philosophy in Materials
Science in College of Engineering, University of Michigan
and Master of Business Administration in University of
Michigan Ross School of Business Management.

Mr. Liao was appointed as Divisional CEO Specialty
Businesses in Bekaert group in March 2019. He now also
acts as the Executive Vice President North Asia in Bekaert
group and a member of the Bekaert Group Executive. Prior
to joining Bekaert group, he had held various management
positions of several reputable multinational corporations
such as Dow Corning and Solvay. In all, Mr. Liao has over 15
years of experience in sales and management in industrial
chemicals and polymers businesses.

Other than his directorship disclosed above, Mr. Liao
has not previously held any position with the Group and
does not hold any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Liao does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial Shareholders or controlling
Shareholders. At the date of this annual report, he does
not have any interest in securities of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. There is no service
contract between Mr. Liao and the Company since he was
nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director
according to the subscription agreement entered into by
the Company and Bekaert dated 22 September 2006 and
further agreement between Bekaert and the Company
on 24 February 2015. However, he will also be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles. He will receive a director’s fee as the Company
may determine from time to time. At present, he receives a
director’s fee of HK$150,000 per annum. The emoluments
of Directors are determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Alias: Ip Kin Man), aged
72, holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Arts with honors from
the University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in 1993. He also
serves as the chairman of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and acted as the vice-chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company since 18
May 2018. Mr. Yip has also acted as the independent non-
executive director of Shougang Grand since January 2007.
On 27 January 2014, he was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries. Mr. Yip is
a practising solicitor, notary public and China-Appointed
Attesting Officer. He has extensive experience in legal
profession.

Other than the directorship disclosed above, Mr. Yip has
not previously held any position with the Group, and is
independent of and not connected with the Directors, chief
executives and substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them. He does not hold
any directorship in the last three years in public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market
in Hong Kong or overseas. At the date of this annual report,
he does not have any interest in securities of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract
was entered into between Mr. Yip and the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017.
However, he is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles. He will receive a director’s
fee as the Company may determine from time to time. At
present, he receives a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per
annum. The emoluments of Directors are determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Law, Yui Lun, aged 56, Mr. Law is an associate
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA”) of the United Kingdom. Mr. Law
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
Oklahoma City University (USA). He was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director and a member of
each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company in April 2005. On 1
November 2017, he was also appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited. On
20 January 2017, he was appointed as the independent
non-executive director of CBK Holdings Limited which is
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 15 February
2017. Mr. Law has extensive professional experience in
the fields of auditing, accounting, corporate taxation,
company liquidation and insolvency, financial advisory and
management for over 30 years.

Other than the directorship disclosed above, Mr. Law has
not previously held any position with the Group, and is
independent of and not connected with the Directors, chief
executives and substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them. He does not hold
any directorship in the last three years in public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market
in Hong Kong or overseas. At the date of this annual report,
he does not have any interest in securities of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. A service contract
was entered into between Mr. Law and the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017.
However, he is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles. He will receive a director’s
fee as the Company may determine from time to time. At
present, he receives a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per
annum. The emoluments of Directors are determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

BEXFBREESN  EAREYSEBEIEAE
FEALMFEANERE - JRILEE
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B2 - BR_ZTRFHABZEARBY
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F+—A—BEZEAEHERERARZE
VHRTEE - FHR _T—+tF—HA=-+H
BEEABRXKIERERATI(R_E—tF =
A+THBEBZAGEM L) 2B IEHITE
B BRENZE - 5t BENKE - R85
BRBE M EANERE S AEEBB=1
CEMNHEEKLR -

Br EHFTiEE 2 ERBISIN B ERATTE
AR BT BT - INB S A N B AR A
FEMBRARIZES &aTBRABREFER
RIS S 2 B ABE AR o IR
BEZFALEREERSIMEMESTS L
MHRRARETERESES - RAFHRZ
HEY  siBHFREBEROIEXVEDRE - BRI
BEFARRIEESER - BIELEHART)
BRI B =FRBEAEY BT —+tF—A
—BBEW  ERARERMABEERARF
ZHRERFAS FRESRNBEREBET - K15
WA HARRBII CESHE - BF - &
FEWEE 240,000 2 EEWE EEY
& IRARNR Z ZERBRAAN - IRAZERR
ERMBREMER -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 64, Mr. Lam is a fellow member of
each of the ACCA, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales (ICAEW), the Chartered Accountants
of Australia and New Zealand (CAANZ) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). He
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(“Polytechnic University”) with a higher diploma in
Accountancy in 1975. He was conferred an Honorary Fellow
of Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Lam was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director and a member
of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company in August 2015.
He is also an independent non-executive director of each
of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-Pharmaceutical Co.,
Limited, Vital Mobile Holdings Limited, Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust, Global Digital, COSCO SHIPPING Ports
Limited, Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, WWPKG
Holdings Company Limited, CITIC Telecom International
Holdings Limited, Bestway Global Holding Inc. and Mason
Group Holdings Limited, which he held directorship
until 24 May 2017. Mr. Lam had taken the position of an
adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance
of Polytechnic University until 31 August 2016. He was
previously a member of the Listing Committee and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of the Stock Exchange
from 1997 to 2003, a committee member of HKICPA from
1994 to 2009, a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers from
1993 to 2013 and a member of the Finance Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association until
7 July 2016. In all, Mr. Lam has over 40 years of extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and business consulting.

BrENFTIEEEN  BALETEEBRIERE
EZIMEMEEAMERE @ UWRITEELM
BIRE FHAEBIFE13.51Q2)(h)IEE(V)IEHERN
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Other than his directorship disclosed above, he has
not previously held any position with the Group, and is
independent of and not connected with the directors, chief
executives and substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company or the subsidiaries of the
Company or an associate of any of them. Save as disclosed
above, he does not have any directorship in the last three
years in public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. At the
date of this annual report, he does not have any interest in
securities of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO. A service contract was entered into between
Mr. Lam and the Company for a term commencing from 1
January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020. However,
he is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles. He will receive a director’s fee as the
Company may determine from time to time. At present, he
receives a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum. The
emoluments of Directors are determined by reference to
the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters relating
to his particulars as being a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders and there is no other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

fr B PR ER 2 EEBAESN - MBI &
KA BRI - T8N REARTE]
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=+—Alt - EHARERARRENARA
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

T EFEFRE

As at 22 March 2019 W-_Z—NF=A=-+=H

Shougang

Concord Century
Holdings Limited
BEREGEEERAH

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

JEscC

Jiaxing Eastern
101% Steel Cord Co., Ltd.

(Zhejiang, PRC)

EERG MRS

BRATR

(FRE - T

http://www.jesc.com.cn

TEsC

Tengzhou Eastern
|, Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
100% (Shandong, PRC )

B N 3R 75 6 B 4%
BRAF

(FE - LK)

http://www.tesc.com.cn

Manufacturing

of Steel Cords —_—
for Radial Tyres
BETFRmia

PSR AR

Provision of
Management and
Consulting Services

100% a

in Mainland BEREE(LS EE
(for Steel Cord AHRAT
Segment) to the Group (Shanghai, PRC)
B ARREREER >
(hE - L)
(R EREFRAR D 6
EENHA RS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRHEE

Dear Shareholders,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

On behalf of the fellow members of the Board, | am pleased
to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the trade war has
increased the uncertainty in global economic growth and
as such the economic sentiment has been under significant
pressure. As for China, its economy grew at its slowest pace
in 28 years in 2018, the annual growth rate of GDP fell to
6.6%, down 0.2 percentage point from that of the previous
year. Fixed-asset investment, including construction of
plants and condominiums, rose 5.9%, contracting from the
previous year of a 7.2% increase. Other discernible slow
down occurred in infrastructure investment which grew at a
meagre 3.8%, down markedly from the previous year’s 19%
increase. The most dampening of all was the growth rate of
automobile sales in China fell into negative territory for the
first time since 1990. In addition, unilateralism and trade
protectionism prevailed which hampered export growth rate.

Notwithstanding the above adversities, the Group’s
revenue amounted to HK$2,254,170,000, representing
a slight growth of 6.7% from the previous year (2017:
HK$2,113,258,000), attributable to the great effort made by
our sales team. We were able to raise average selling price
on top of increasing sales tonnage while the procurement
cost of our principal raw material, wire rod dropped during
the year. The Group’s gross profit margin increased by
2.6 percentage points to 11.9%. As a consequence of
the increase in gross profit margin, the Group generated
operating profit of HK$89,404,000 when comparing with
operating loss of HK$44,979,000 last year. However, the
Group recorded net loss of HK$8,681,000, decreased by
HK$49,837,000 when compared to last year due to a net
foreign exchange loss of HK$20,771,000 during the year.

The Group’s net asset value was HK$0.696 per Share at
31 December 2018, decreased by 3.8% as compared to
HK$0.724 at the end of 2017. The Group narrowed its loss
per Share of HK0.45 cents for the year when compared to
that of HK3.56 cents for the previous year.

B RER -

REERE
AANERREFEREMAREAKERE
E-N\FT_A=TRIFEZRERFE
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ERTIWMAMABEANETEEREERBA
FRE72%WEH5.9% - EBAEMETE
FEEBRERE L EEHER3.8% @ HEF
HRI1I9%MALBEZETR - L AERNE -
FRAEEEEERE - NANTFUREXE
ZEE- - U BEFENZEHREETER
17 AR T HAORE -

BEGFELMRBEE  ERBMIAHEEEK
EHTERE N  AEEBEEXEBRBEE
2,254,170,0007T * BREAF(ZZT—+F : &
#2,113,258,0007T ) BEHIE K 6.7% ° & FK M
WEZRME - BENERBEREARRER T
R BPIRTEEINIHE S - BeeMiEm T
HEER - AEEMENE EA26EE D
F11.9% - AR EF X LA - AEBEHRELE
i K| 75 # 89,404,000 T © MY EF R AKLE
B 185 #44,979,0007T ° AT » ANAFEE
BRI INISIE HOF B B8 120,771,000 © 2
RE B8RS FE18/5%8,681,0000T ' B A
R 7B #£ 49,837,000 °

RZZE—NFE+-A=+—8  AEENEE
FEASREK06%TT B_T—tFEN
TEH0.724 0 13.8% © EEFEIREEEK
3.56(LHEL - N"EBRAFEGREBHEER
FEH20.4511 °

16 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHREESEAFRAA



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRHEE
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DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

THE WAY FORWARD

We have issued convertible bonds in the principal amount
of up to HK$150,000,000 to our controlling Shareholder,
Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd (“Shougang Fund”)’s
wholly owned subsidiary, in February 2019, which would
relieve our financial pressure at a lowered cost and provide
funding for the capital investment of constructing additional
brass wire (semi-finished product of steel cord) production
lines at TESC. The subscription of the convertible bonds
by Shougang Fund also reflects the confidence and
commitment of Shougang Fund towards the long-term
business development of the Group.

However, | am of the view that the year of 2019 will still be
full of challenges. Faced with the complex situations and
increasingly competitive landscape in domestic and foreign
markets, we are committed to optimize our product mix and
improve upon our product quality at competitive prices to
meet the demanding requirements of our tyre customers.
Congruently, we will continue to sharpen our competitive
edge and grasp opportunities in both the local and
international markets by adding to our product innovation,
research and development efforts.

Ik 5
EEeTEBRBEBE_ZT-N\F+_A
=t HIEFEZRERKE -

AR IR B 6]
RPN =T —NFE- AEMERBR L R EH
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AMBESORRT BlEeHASERER

BERHE0MAEGE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRHEE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere
gratitude to all Shareholders, suppliers and customers for
their longstanding support. | would also like to thank you
my fellow members on the Board and the staff members of
the Group for their unwavering commitment to the Group’s
business. | am confident that the Group will continue to
explore and capture opportunities in the coming year and
beyond.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE WK D

% TD2/602FP
5. 2014—238% ©

¥ TD2/602FP
5 : 23942764

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model and strategy

Our mission is to be one of the top tier steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality steel cords and wire
products; and the evolution into a diversified metal product
manufacturer benefiting from a successful “Eastern” brand
recognition in the PRC and worldwide markets. Further
details in respect of the business model and strategy of the
Company, please refer to the section “REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS” of this annual report.

Review of operations

The PRC economy advanced 6.4% year-on-year in the last
quarter of 2018, which was the lowest growth rate since the
global financial crisis amid intense trade dispute with the
U.S. and weakening domestic demand. Considering full year
of 2018, the economy expanded by 6.6%, the weakest pace
since 1990. As compared with 2017, PRC statistics bureau
revised down the country’s GDP growth to 6.8% from 6.9%.

The Sino-US trade debacle has weighed on sentiment,
particularly the property market and fixed asset investment
growth for the first half of 2018. The sentiment of industrial
sectors was also affected during the first half year; these
brought along the slowdown in demand for radial tyres from
the automobile and transportation sectors and in return
lowered the demand for steel cord in the latter half of first
quarter and early part of second quarter of 2018.

EXOEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Discernible operating loss of the Group incurred during the
first half of 2018 which mainly came from the latter half of
first quarter and early part of second quarter in 2018. Lower
sales volume and turnover attributable to the unexpected
decrease in demand from some of our major domestic
customers during this year and relatively high inventory level
of the tyre industry in general.

Owing to the effort of our management, sales team
and employees of the Group, the Steel cord segment
successfully managed to achieve growth in both sales
volume and selling price in a steady pace starting from
May and June till the end of 2018. The overall growth of
sales revenue and gross profit of this segment was hence
achieved for the full year of 2018. Steel cord segment
incurred operating loss of HK$47,106,000 last year as
opposed to operating profit of HK$93,264,000 during
this year. Its gross profit margin increased to 12.5% as
compared to 10.3% last year.

In respect of Copper and brass products segment, sales
volume and revenue declined during this year in both the
PRC and Hong Kong as the business has begun retracting
since the latter part of 2017 and PRC operation had
been decided to cease in September 2018. Despite that
management had adopted strict operating cost control, the
decrease in sales revenue volume and cost of closure of
PRC manufacturing plant in September 2018 caused this
segment to incur an operating loss of HK$3,860,000 versus
an operating profit of HK$2,127,000 last year.

Combined with the strong sales revenue growth in Steel
cord segment, cost savings in purchase of raw materials
and reduction mainly in Hong Kong Headquarter operation
expenses, all these major factors contributed to increase
in EBITDA of the Group to HK$179,293,000 (2017:
HK$104,096,000) this year.

REEBR-_Z-\FLH+FELFRELE
B FERE - \FE—FTERAKE=
FEVH  c EAFE - ARBM—LEEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WA R DM

However, due to net loss in foreign exchange of HK$20,771,000
(sum of HK$3,770,000 gain in non-finance portion net off with
HK$24,541,000 loss on interest bearing borrowings) from the
depreciation of RMB against HKD incurred during this year at
a magnitude of 4.8%, the overall growth of sales revenue and
sales volume plus reduction in operation expenses could not
bring forth positive impact on the net profit. The Group had net
loss of HK$8,681,000 during the year, compared with net loss of
HK$68,518,000 from previous year.

Steel cord

Overall performance

The growth of the automobile industry in the PRC slowed
down during the year and resulted in a negative annual
growth for the first time among 30 years. According to
the information from China Associations of Automobile
Manufacturers, the production of new vehicles accounted
to 28 million units in 2018, representing a decrease of 4.2%
as compared to 3.2% positive growth in 2016/2017. During
2018, the production volume of passenger cars decreased
by 5.2% over last year; whereas the production volume of
commercial vehicles increased by 1.7% over the prior year.

Despite the performance was below expectation in the latter
half of the first quarter and early second quarter, with the
industrious effort of our sales division, this segment still
achieved a growth in sales volume of 7.9% over last year,
reflecting the result of our strategy to expand our coverage
on large-scale and multinational tyre manufacturers and
the fine-tuning of sales mix to flexibly meet our customers’
requirements. In respect of selling price of steel cord, the
average selling price had an increase of 6.7% year-on-year.

With an increase in sales volume, average selling price and
commendable effort of our production team in controlling
costs, the gross profit improved significantly this year to
HK$265,397,000, as compared to HK$186,543,000 last
year, by 42.3% increase as explained earlier in “Review of
Operations” section.

With a higher gross profit, EBITDA also increased from last
year at HK$78,929,000 to HK$228,646,000 this year. This
segment recorded strong operating profit of HK$93,264,000
this year as opposed to operating loss of HK$47,106,000
last year.

R BRAFEARBEHEBTRER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue

This segment sold 184,910 tonnes of steel cord during the
year, increased by 6.3% as compared to 173,986 tonnes
last year. In respect of the sales of sawing wires, it dropped
substantially by 79.4% from 389 tonnes to 80 tonnes last
year reflecting the rapid change in the production process
of photo-voltaic industry. On the contrary, there was an
increase in the sales of other steel wire products which was
sold 11,100 tonnes during the year, increased by 50.5% as
compared to 7,376 tonnes last year. The sales volume of this
segment for the year is analysed as follows:

RAFE - DI E184,910MEMBE LR - &
F FR173,986MHE 1L 116.3% ° £ 45 % o) 2 8
T 0 B EF389MEANE NFE T 79.4% %80
W REREREZEEBEHRRE (L -
R AAFEEMIAGEREEEN - XEE
11,1000 - & EFH)7,376AE H150.5% X
FEESHBHIEEEDTWOT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
% of % of
total total
sales sales
Sales volume Sales volume
volume of steel volume of steel %
(Tonne) cords (Tonne) cords change
1 M B 4R G EEAR
HEE HHEE HEE MHIHEE 2E
(W) B2 (%) (W) BHH(%) (%)
Steel cords for HERAR
— truck tyres —HEWAA 123,205 66.7 116,327 66.9 +5.9
— off the road truck tyres — T E&wmfia 4,333 2.3 3,556 2.0 +21.9
- passenger car tyres —EBHERH 57,372 31.0 54,103 31.1 +6.0
Total for steel cords MEEGRAS 184,910 100.0 173,986 100.0 +6.3
Sawing wire products ) £ 3 44 80 389 -79.4
Other steel wires H At 8 44 11,100 7,376 +50.5
Total BE 196,090 181,751 +7.9

The sales volume of steel cord for all aforesaid types of
tyres recorded growth. In respect of sales mix, there was no
significant change during the year, the proportion of sales of
steel cord for truck tyres accounted for 66.7% of total sales
volume of steel cord for the year (2017: 66.9%).

Ll HEENRRONERIEESHRGEIE
K- HEHEAETE  RAFERBEKREL -
HEGEMHESHE  GAFEMEREH
EE566.7% (T —+4F :66.9%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In respect of sales of steel cord by region, the volume of
export sales of steel cord amounted to 35,435 tonnes for the
year, increased by 4.6% as compared to 33,892 tonnes for
last year. The volume of export sales represented 19.2% of
total sales volume of steel cord for the year, compared to
19.5% for last year. The breakdown of sales volume of steel
cord for the year by geographical location is as follows:

MEREESRMENS  NAFEHRERL O
i £ $£35,435MF + th A 33,802MF © EFf
46%  c HOWEEEAFERNERAKEES
19.2% * ML EF1H19.5%  AFEMELRIL
@A EESRMLT -

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+tF
% of % of
total total
sales sales
Sales volume Sales volume
volume of steel volume of steel %
(Tonne) cords (Tonne) cords change
hfEER il B4R
HEE MHHEE HEE BHES #E
(Wg) BE2H(%) (M) B (%) (%)
PRC Fh 149,475 80.8 140,094 80.5 +6.7
Export sales: HOHE -
Asia (other than PRC) TN (R EIBRAM) 19,074 10.3 17,589 10.1 +8.4
EMEA (Europe, EMEA(BUM -

Middle East and Africa) FRERFIEN) 11,022 6.0 10,938 6.3 +0.8
North America JEEM 3,594 1.9 2,024 1.2 +77.6
Latin America R T =M 1,745 1.0 3,341 1.9 -47.8

Total export sales HOE Bz 35,435 19.2 33,892 19.5 +4.6
Total st 184,910 100.0 173,986 100.0 +6.3
The overall sales volume growth of 6.3% in steel cord and RS ERIEELK6.3% M P EEIE

the increase in average selling price of 6.7% were recorded,
in addition to combined growth in sawing wire products and
other steel wires were achieved, together lead to revenue
of this segment increased by 17.5% over last year to
HK$2,121,189,000 (2017: HK$1,805,523,000) for this year.

£6.7% It SN EI 0 44 2E om Ko B At 3 44 RS
AHIER  RARERZOBARFENEERL
EFEEIMN17.5% = F % 2,121,189,000 T (=
T—+ 4 : B%1,805,523,0007T) °
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales of this segment increased by 14.6% to
HK$1,855,792,000 (2017: HK$1,618,980,000) for the year.
Certain non-raw material costs that constitute part of cost
of sales could not decrease in direct proportion to the
unexpected decrease in sales volume and turnover in latter
half of first quarter and first part of second quarter in 2018.
However, with the effort of our purchasing and operations
teams, savings in procurement costs of wire rod (by
reducing the use of wire rod agents) and other raw materials
incurred overcame the shortfall during the remaining part of
the year. Hence, the average unit cost of production of steel
cord slightly increased by approximately 3.1% as compared
to last year.

Gross profit

Gross profit of this segment increased by 42.3% over last
year to HK$265,397,000 (2017: HK$186,543,000) for the
year. Gross profit margin increased from 10.3% last year to
12.5% this year. The increase in unit prices in wire rod was
successfully reflected in the selling price of steel cord to our
customers.

Other income

Other income increased by 9.9% over last year to
HK$3,756,000 (2017: HK$3,418,000) for the year, primarily
as government grant increased as compared to last year.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on trade receivables of HK$1,653,000 was
provided during the year (2017: HK$728,000 impairment
loss on trade receivables was reversed) primarily on certain
steel cord customers, reflecting the challenging market
environment in this industry.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment

Based on the impairment assessments of property, plant
and equipment of both JESC and TESC, their recoverable
amounts exceeded the carrying amounts as at 31 December
2018, we are of the view that no impairment loss is required
to be recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment
of both JESC and TESC.

HERLK
REAFERDEHEHEKR LH14.6% 25
#1,855,792,000 L ( = T — £ F : B
1,618,980,0007T ) ° Ak $5&E K AN —F 5 &Y
ATEEMBKATER-"T—-N\FE—FT
FEFRE-F FEHNEEEMNE LB ARTELD
b TPBRACIEEL R - B2 - R PIRE R FE
BEBNS AT @ SEBENEBRARCRA
BAERABGRER) MEMRME - E8T
FERRTZTRE - At - HERNFHEN
AR A F L B HIE IN43.1% ©

EF

WD E B ERNREFEMI2I%ELRFE
/%Vi.ﬁ<2653970007'|:(_f + o EE
186,543,0007T) © EFEWEXFH10.3% £
HESFR12.5% - BIFEEN LRKNNHR
MAERMNE P HESHEEER L -

HgA
RFEEEMBAREFIEMNIIN EH
3,756,000 ( =& — 4 : # % 3,418,000
TL)  FERERBUATRBE A FIL M -

FE W BR 54 L (B 18 K 1% 1

AEERRERBREBERBEERER
1,653,000T(=Z — 4 : 728,000 &
WEEFREEBXAERER) T ENEE THE
BEP  RETZITET MBI TIHIRE

YW¥ - BERREZEEZRERX
RAFEORE  RIFHFEERT RBEMNERTM
BEZWME - BEMEEREN  BER=-F
—NF+ZA=t—BZAKEEEBBER
EE - Fit BMRREFTHERRERT R
BRI EBEZME - BFERREERRER
%o
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Impairment loss recognised in respect of prepaid
lease payments

In late November 2017, TESC received a notice regarding
the rescission of confirmation letter in respect of
successful bidding of state-owned land for construction
(the “Rescission Notice”) from Tengzhou Municipal State-
owned Land Resources Bureau (the “State-owned Land
Resources Bureau”) regarding three parcels of idle land with
area of brownfield sites reaching 237,855 square meters
or equivalent to 357 mou (the “Lands”). The Lands were
acquired through public auctions with a total consideration
of RMB81,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$92,582,000 as at 31 December 2017) as plant site for the
expansion of production capacity of TESC in 2010 and 2011
and recognised as prepaid lease payments. However, given
the changes in the market of steel cord and strategic review
of the expansion plan, TESC had yet to utilise the Lands
since its acquisition, nor received the relevant land use right
certificates. As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying
amount of the prepaid lease payments was RMB60,623,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$72,523,000). If the
Rescission Notice is being carried out, TESC may possibly
require to surrender the Lands and forfeit the land use rights
attached thereto.

Subsequently, TESC negotiated with the relevant Tengzhou
government authorities with an aim to reach a consensus
for TESC to continue utilizing the Lands to proceed with the
construction plan in pursuit of obtaining the land use right
certificates. In the process of obtaining the land use right
certificates, TESC has been requested to pay compensation
payments for attachments to land and green sprout during
land acquisition, land deed tax and farmland occupancy
tax (collectively referred to as the “Compensation and
Tax Payments”) regarding the Lands with an estimated
aggregate amount of approximately RMB33,300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$38,005,000) in early
February 2018. For the sake of prudence, the Group
recognised a full impairment of the carrying amount of the
prepaid lease agreement for the Lands of HK$72,523,000 for
year 2017. No such impairment of same nature occurred this
year.

BHEANEENRZERZRERX

RZF—tEF+—ATE - BMNETREBEM
MEELERR(EBELHMERB) =
IRIEERE @ i T EEEER|237,855F 5
K RENIS7TMH L ([3ZS5 i ) B EH
R (EARRAME R HERIERE) B
ME([HHRBHNE]) - ZZEIHERZZT—F
FRIF-——FEBRAMABE  URERLREA
AR ®81,120,000LHF - HER =T —+
F+ZA=1+—H##¥%92,582,0007T * M
BEMNRIEREEERIERE A - WER
AENEERE - EERNEGETENESH KL
KIS MRFERETEIE - BRINR A BBARK
B ) A 5255 4 b N 8 AR ERAS AE 8 9 = b (5 A
BoR-_BE—+E+-_A=+—8 ZEN
HEFEMEREEFEL A ARMG60,623,000
7T FHE R 48%72,523,0007T © A 1T
BRBAE BNKRAIBAEREERERZS T
H - MR AN RZ 1 i B {5 4 o

H©E MR BB N BT RERR &
EREH  SEMNRFTREFRZS I #
TIERGTE - BHBRES T EAEE - ©
S LiFEARENBREY R N\F=
B 1N B 5 48 B SRk Bt 3% 4t S 5 o 3 L Y
EVNSEHBES TR ERANRE
(B [HERFERE])  FE#HERESE
HIERLET A £ 4 AR 33,300,000
(Z{E4)7%%38,005,0007T) - AEELER -
REBR T —+FBEZEIHEEmESE
72,523,000 c 2 FEN A EREEZERE °
RFEEIWHBELEERMEENRE -
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In 2018, the Group including TESC continued to negotiate
with the relevant Tengzhou government authorities with an
aim to withdraw the Rescission Notice, the grant of waiver
of the Compensation and Tax Payments by the latter. Since
the completion of the issue of the Convertible Bonds on
11 February 2019, we have escalated our effort to reach a
consensus with Tengzhou government authorities for TESC
to continue utilising the Lands. Both the Group including
TESC and Tengzhou government authorities in principle
have a consensus to first utilise certain portions of the
Lands for TESC Phase Il Project with 20,000 tonnes of
annual production capacity but subject to the construction
cost and time needed to supplement the production need
for both TESC and JESC. Please refer to “BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS” section
for details of project.

The Company will comply with any applicable requirements
prescribed by the Listing Rules and/or the Inside
Information Provisions as and when appropriate, and further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company with respect
to any material development of the matters of the Lands as
and when required.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by 6.9% over
last year to HK$67,786,000 (2017: HK$63,389,000) for the
year, in which the percentage is much lower compared to the
revenue of this segment increasing by 17.5% over the last
year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$32,371,000
for the year, decreased by 8.8% as compared to
HK$35,478,000 for last year, mainly due to sound cost
control measures in place despite the revenue of this
segment increased over the last year.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses amounted to
HK$76,941,000 (2017: HK$62,385,000) for the year,
significantly increased by 23.3% as compared to last year.
These expenses accounted for 3.6% of revenue for the year,
increased by 0.1 percentage point as compared to 3.5% last
year which is within our expected range of 3% to 4% each
year.

E-T—N\F  AEEBRERIMNRTEERE
B e BN T BT A 1T RERS - B A0 2 AR RR A A
T HHERENRRBELTEFE - B-F
—NEFEZA+—BERETARRES - B
BHEBMNBTE REBHE - ERRINR 4
B REL T o RSB RTT FEM
BTERRE LA HKBR - EEMNBIOZE
+ R B £ 220,000 B M R 7 —HITE B
£ ERRNEZRRAR R FERM R M
RAOMEEFKMERHE - BEBEANFS
F2H [ RBBRRABRERARE |4 -

ARBEREERET ETRAR A
BHRXARENTMERRTE - MBERER
REWEENTAEABRRELE-TRE -

DHRHEEH

REE  HERBEEERBAAFMAL L
6.9% = 5 167,786,000 L ( — T —+4F : /B
#63,389,0007T) * HF B D LLERER LD H
B SRR A INAY17.5% o

THERH
BELDINEEBLEFHMGN  AFE
TR E B R E#32,371,000 T * tEEFHRE
#:35,478,0007T [ f48.8% * TEE MM A X
B R AN I FE HEBE T T FT B

HREH

RARAFE - WE g R RS 76,941,0007C
(ZZT—+4F : #B%62,385,0007T) ' tLE4F
FEFH23.3% - B BRGAFELEIEDN
3.6% ' LLEFH3S5%EMT01EE DB -
HEBHMTEINEZ4%HTBEEASGENR -
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Copper and brass products

Overall performance

To carry out the management’s decision to downsize Copper
and brass products segment in latter part of 2017, the PRC
business has ceased factory operation in September 2018.
Most of the employees were redundant. The sales volume of
this segment decreased by 61.9% as compared to last year,
while revenue of this segment also decreased by 57.0%.
Despite that management had adopted strict operating cost
control, this segment had changed from operating profit of
HK$2,127,000 last year to operating loss of HK$3,860,000
this year.

Revenue

Attributable to the retracting of Copper and brass products
segment, this segment sold 2,527 tonnes of copper and
brass products during the year, decreased by 61.9% as
compared to 6,627 tonnes last year. The sales to customers
in the PRC decreased year-on-year by 55.9%, and no sales
to customers in Hong Kong was made during the year. The
breakdown of sales volume of this segment for the year by
geographical regions is as follows:

o7 J% =8 1

BExH

RZF—EF NEFERATEEERRT R
i N SRR # - $I%%¢_? NER
ABRIETHEE - KEfDEBHEEA - It
“%Mﬁ EREFHD61.9% Mt A
BRBEINRADE7.0% - BEEHRE D RIERE
@R AR - B BB A F LR
F 78 #2,127,00070 # B A FH L E BRAE

3,860,0007T °

M%ﬁ

SFER R R FRM B DEE - DR AFE
J;ﬁ%zw7mmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂq 8 £ 96,627
WE Rk 2 61.9% - PR EFHER L T %
55.9% ' MMRAFEELERMEETFEEH
T o WD HRAFEHE SR B AN
™o

2018 2017
—B-N\F C— L 4F

Sales % of Sales % of

volume total sales volume total sales
(Tonne) volume (Tonne) volume % change

4 148
SHEE HEE HESE HEE BE
(W) B2 (%) (B8) B H(%) (%)
PRC A 2,527 100.0 5,733 86.5 -55.9
Hong Kong E5E - - 894 13.5 -100.0
Total 1@zt 2,527 100.0 6,627 100.0 -61.9

This segment recorded a decrease in revenue of 57.0%
as compared to last year to HK$131,177,000 (2017:
HK$305,405,000) for the year.

D EPR A FE RIS L E R EFRA57.0%
EHEA31,177,000c (- —+F : B
305,405,0007T) °
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Gross profit

In addition to revenue decreased by 57.0% as compared
to last year, gross profit recorded a decrease of 95.1% as
compared to last year to HK$363,000 (2017: HK$7,412,000)
for the year. Gross profit margin dropped by 2.1 percentage
points from 2.4% last year to 0.3% for the year. The selling
price in copper market was declining in the first half of
2018. Attributable to the discounted selling price to clear
out inventory (remaining portion sold in scrap value) prior
to the closure of PRC factory premises, gross profit margin
was reduced. Another factor caused the decrease in gross
profit was the redundancies of operations staff accounted
for higher cost of goods sold.

Reverse in impairment loss on trade receivables

A reversal in impairment loss on trade receivables of
HK$287,000 (2017: Nil) had been made for a trade receivable
during this year.

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Upon the closure of rented factory premises of Copper
and brass products segment in PRC in September 2018,
remaining fixed assets were sold in secondary market. Net
proceeds were below their net asset value and thereby
incurred loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
of HK$569,000 for the year (2017: HK$33,000).

Relationship with key customers and suppliers

The revenue from sales to top five customers of the Group
accounted for 48.3% (2017: 42.2%) of total revenue of the
Group for the year, while the revenue from sales to the
largest customer accounted for 16.5% (2017: 14.4%) of the
Group for the year.

All of the top five customers for the year are customers
of Steel cord segment, they are well-known radial tyres
manufacturers either in the PRC or in worldwide markets,
and have business relationships with the Group for over five
years. The credit period granted to these top five customers
are from a range of 30 to 90 days, which was similar to the
credit periods granted to other customers of the Group. We
have reviewed the receivables position of these customers
at the end of the reporting period and are of the view that no
impairment loss on the receivables of the top five customers
is required.

EF

B EEREFERMADS7.0%5 - EFREER
195.1% & A F £ 75 #363,0000 (T —+
F: B%7,412,0007T) c EFMEREFH
2.4% NE2ABBE DB EARFH0.3% © i
BHEEBRN - N\FLEFTEK - ER
R = BB R E B E 1T (IR0 D LABERHE
BEHE)UTMNEEEESE SEMEFHAT
o Z—EAREREFNRL ZIRIEREBEM
BYRSHIHEENAR -

73 [o] UK B 54 L 1B 7 %%
RAFEZ B AU BR8] e U B FURE B 2k
B#E287,000C( = —+F  £) -

HEBETZTEEZEE
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The Group had concentration risk of reliance on major
customers as the percentage of sales to top five customers
accounted for 48.3% (2017: 42.2%) for the year. Any
changes in the business operations, financial conditions
or purchasing patterns of these customers that result to
the termination of business with our Steel cord segment,
may have material impact to the results of the Group. The
management of the Group values the long term relationships
with these customers. We will mitigate these risks by
monitoring their respective financial position and purchasing
pattern, and the delivery of high and persistent stable quality
products and keeping pace with these customers’ new
products development through our ongoing research and
development activities. We will also exert more efforts on
development of new customers and/or ripening the product
mix to other customers to reduce the reliance to these major
customers. In addition, we will look for and/or develop any
opportunity to diversify our business in related industry as
shown in the discernible increase in sales volume of our
steel wire products.

Regarding suppliers, the purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 61.8% (2017:
47.1%) of the total purchases of the Group for the year,
while the purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
17.1% (2017: 24.5%) of the total purchases of the Group for
the year.

The supplies from the five largest suppliers of the Group
include steel wire rod for manufacturing of steel cords. The
Group has business relationship with these suppliers for
over five years. We value the long term relationship with
these suppliers, who have been consistently providing
stable quality of raw materials to the Group. We aim to
maintain ongoing mutual trust with these suppliers in order
to achieve better payment terms and delivery schedule
to suit our production need, which in turn enhance our
production efficiency.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor those Shareholders (who own more than 5%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company) to the
best knowledge of the Directors had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

RAFEE  AEEBHRNKBEIREFPHET
EREE AXRFEHETEIATEFZEXER
HEFREEXENAMNILR483%(ZFT—+t
F1422%) - ZERPHEBEE MK
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RO EBAESUAKENEEEEAN
MTE AEEEEEEREEEEPHRY
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HEmAOFAETRAREZFREAR - BT
ERIFBHOEFLN,/ SBERERES TH
ERF  UWHDEKERZEIERTP ° 1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group reported net loss of HK$8,681,000 for the year,
markedly improved from the net loss of HK$68,518,000
for last year. The operating performance and key financial

Bt %5 0 R

RAEE - RNEBEREFEE 558,681,000
I BEFIREE B 68,518,000 LB EE
WE - AEBRAFELLERBNETETKE

information of the Group for the year are analysed as B 2T :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 Change
BT T BT T 25
OPERATING PERFORMANCE RERHE
Revenue o 2,254,170 2,113,258 +6.7%
Gross profit margin (%) FEF (%) 11.9 9.3 +2.6pp
EBITDA EBITDA 179,293 104,096 +72.2%
EBITDA margin (%) EBITDAZ (%) 8.0 4.9 +3.1pp
Loss for the year REEEIE (8,681) (68,518) -87.3%
Net loss margin (%) FEEE(%) -0.4 -3.2 +2.8pp
Basic loss per share (HK cents) A E AR EE GBI (0.45) (3.56) -87.4%
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
BT T BT IT B8 (%)
KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  B#BKE R
Total assets BEBEE 3,414,467 3,444,076 -0.9
Total liabilities BiEER 2,075,317 2,052,548 +1.1
Equity attributable to owners of ZIN/NETE7 =N
the Company JE1h 2 Hees 1,339,150 1,391,528 -3.8
Net current assets R EEFE 335,348 295,752 +13.4
Bank balances and cash (including R{T&FERIES
pledged deposits) (BESEREFR 145,312 270,339 -46.2
Total interest bearing borrowings TR EREE 1,100,809 1,049,010 +4.9
Net interest bearing borrowings TEENFRE
(Note) (M7E) 955,497 778,671 +22.7

Note: Net interest bearing borrowings represents total interest bearing
borrowings less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank

deposits).

Mt TR EFURREEF REREERRTETIED
(BREEMRTER -
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The Group recorded EBITDA of HK$179,293,000 for the
year, increased by 72.2% as compared to HK$104,096,000

for the previous year.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group amounted to HK$2,254,170,000
(2017: HK$2,113,258,000) for the year, increased by 6.7%
over last year. The strong year on year growth in percentage
of Steel cord segment of 17.5% was impacted by the decline
in Copper and brass products segment of 57% to yield at
overall rate of 6.7%. The breakdown of revenue of the Group

for the year is as follows:

A FE
179,293,0007T * tb % 4F ¥ /% 5 104,096,000

K &£ B §f 15 EBITDA B ¥

T EFT72.2% ©

E -

RAFE  AXEBZEEZEBEREE
2,254,170,000 T ( — & — £ F : B K
2,113,258,0007T) ' tb A F EF6.7% © 5
R BIE L 8 SIERA17.5% - BX KR
HIAM B DB TRE7TRHFE  SEB A

6.7% ° MAFEAREEEXHBMALT -

2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—+F
% of total % of total %
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue change
4 148
=E == 25
BETT BI(%) ABETFT BHL%) (%)
Steel cord B4R 2,121,189 94.1 1,805,523 85.4 +17.5
Copper and brass products i & = ti#71k} 131,177 5.8 305,405 14.5 -57.0
Sub-total /NEt 2,252,366 99.9 2,110,928 99.9 +6.7
Property rental YERE 1,804 0.1 2,330 0.1 -22.6
Total 1=t 2,254,170 100.0 2,113,258 100.0 +6.7
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Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group significantly increased by 36.4%
over last year to HK$267,467,000 (2017: HK$196,065,000)
for the year, which was mainly due to the increase of gross
profit of Steel cord segment from higher sales volume and
sales prices from May and June to second half of 2018.
Gross profit margin of the Group also increased by 2.6
percentage points to 11.9% for the year as compared to last
year, with Steel cord segment gross profit margin of 12.5%.
The breakdown of gross profit of the Group for the year is as
follows:

2018
—E-N\F

HK$’000 margin (%)

EF

RAFE » ANEB ZEF L EF KIEG N
36.4% = 7 % 267,467,000 T ( — T — L4 ¢
75 1%196,065,0007T) - TERR T —N\F
FARERAZ_ZE—)\F T+ ERIHEES
RIBEER T ABBUNER D BEFIG M -
AEFBEMEITLEFEHA26EETLHES
11.9% @ HFHEROHEFNER12.5% - R
REFAREEEFHMALNT

2017
—T—+F
Gross
profit
HK$’000 margin (%) % change

Gross
profit

BETT EFEFNR®%) BETFT EFIE%) S5 (%)
Steel cord ] & A% 265,397 12.5 186,543 10.3 +42.3
Copper and brass products i 2 &= 41k} 363 0.3 7,412 2.4 -95.1
Property rental MERE 1,707 94.6 2,110 90.6 -19.1
Total =t 267,467 11.9 196,065 9.3 +36.4
Other income Habug A

Other income increased by 9.9% over last year to
HK$3,756,000 (2017: HK$3,418,000) for the year, primarily
due to government grant increased as compared to last
year.

RAFEE  HEMRALEF EA.9%E B
3,756,000 ( =& —+ 4 : 53,418,000
70) ¢ EERRBUT B EFIE N -
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Other (losses) and gains, net and other profit or
loss items

The Group recorded net loss of HK$4,557,000 on other
gains and losses for the year, as compared to net gain of
HK$944,000 last year. The breakdown of other gains and

Hit(BR) RS FEREMIBERER

RAFE - AEBMEMKEREBSEER
FEEE M 4,557,0000T ¢ EF ARG FREE
#5944,0007T ° FAAF[Z H b Uk 25 I E518 R 48

losses for the year is as follows: ORI
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
BT T BT T B 5 (%)
Net fair value losses on FIEEBZITETAZ
derivatives held for trading N EEEFE
(Note *) (B =E*) (1,956) (1,467) +33.3
(Loss)/gain on disposal of club HeEgE s (BE) ke
memberships (225) 395 N/ATiE
Losses on disposals of property, HEWZE - BB M&E
plant and equipment, net ZIEEEEE (2,723) (110) +2375.5
Others HA 347 2,126 -83.7
Other (losses) and gains, net Hi(F518) RiaF58 (4,557) 944
The breakdown of other profit or loss items for the year is as MRAREEHEMBZRAMADT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
BT T BT T #5(%)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net M FE 5 Uk 25 (E48)
(non-finance portion) FREGEM D) 3,770 (17,519) N/ATEA
Changes in fair values of investment HE&WE N FEEZ
properties beaEg) 4,017 23,820 -83.1
Impairment losses on prepaid FENHEREZ
lease payment VERIEREEN - (72,523) N/ATREA
Net impairment losses on TRIEERERK
financial assets R (1,365) 728 N/ATE F
Other profit or loss items Hih1EmIEH 6,422 (65,494)
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Note *: During the year under review, the Group entered into foreign
currency hedging contracts to minimise its exposure to
fluctuation of RMB with an aggregate notional amount of
HKD180,000,000 and at future rates from RMBO0.8757/HKD1
to RMBO0.8913/HKD1. These contracts were classified as “fair
value on derivatives held for trading” and were fully settled on 28
December 2018.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses amounted to
HK$69,698,000 (2017: HK$65,579,000) for the year,
increased by 6.3% over last year, mainly due to the sales
revenue of Steel cord segment increased by 17.5%.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$58,936,000
(2017: HK$71,771,000) for the year, decreased by 17.9%
as compared to last year. Despite the revenue of the Group
increased by 6.7% as compared to last year, with stricter
cost control in both plants in JESC and TESC and Hong
Kong Headquarters, the ratio of administrative expenses to
revenue lowered from 3.4% last year to 2.6% this year.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses of the Group
amounted to HK$76,941,000 for the year, increased by
23.3% as compared to HK$62,385,000 last year. Such
expenses were all incurred by the Steel cord segment, which
have been mentioned in “Steel cord” section above.

e REERE  AFBFIVEERSBABE
180,000,000 7L 9MNE $5h & A R EH D AR
BEEBERRE - REBAENEHRARK0.8757
T EEATTE ARE0.8913T, BT -
ZEEHNDER [ BEEBE2TAETIAEZ AT
Bl WRZZFE-—NF+_A=TN\B2&E

=E
/B °

PHERHEEER
REEH I MIEE B R E5 £ %69,698,000
T(—Z—+F : B¥65,579,00000) © th=
FLEH6.3% TEHNMERDBHE X
FF17.5%FTE ©

THER
RNEEITHE AT %58,936,0007T (=
T—+F: BHT71,771,000T) * LEFT
P17.9% - BEAGBEEEB L EF LA
6.7%  BEHREZHERT BMNERITWBREE
BB AIESE BERIS - ITHRE AL E:?
EAOLEREANAEFIA% TREARFEDH
2.6% °

HEER

RAFE  AEBNHBEERBHBE
76,941,0007T - th A4 % #62,385,0007T
F123.3% - FWUNE E X[ SHERAR | —EfFrat -
ELBERAIMERRMBERYMBAEL -
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Segment results

The Group recorded operating profit of HK$89,404,000
from its business segments for the year, as compared to
operating loss of HK$44,979,000 last year. The breakdown
of the operating profit (loss) of the Group’s business
segments for the year is as follows:

/'\;“LB%HE

REBERRFEREBE D BEAFLE R FIEE
89,404,0007T - M A FRIERF < BB ,M%‘
44,979,0007C - N FEAEE XK H i LE
w ) (B8 ) BRARIA T -

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
BT T BT T B 5 (%)
Steel cord o] S& 45 93,264 (47,106) N/ATRE A
Copper and brass products 3 e = SR A R (3,860) 2,127 N/ATiE
Total st 89,404 (44,979) N/ATiE A

Finance cost, net B SN

Net finance costs amounted to HK$78,630,000 for the year, R ANFE E - Bf B ok AN % 58 2 51 7B &

increased by 6.6 times as compared to HK$10,411,000
last year. The overall increase on finance cost was mainly
attributable to foreign exchange loss directly related to
interest bearing borrowings (included bank and related
companies) of HK$24,541,000 for the year, while foreign
exchange gain directly related to interest bearing borrowings
was HK$41,677,000 for the year of 2017. The foreign
exchange loss in 2018 was due to depreciation of RMB
to HKD at approximately 4.8% during the year against
appreciation of 6.7% last year.

The increase in interest income was mainly derived from the
increase in interest rate for the year ranging from 0.3% to
1.75% of pledged bank deposit.

The bank borrowing principal of HK$200,000,000
outstanding during last year was repaid by a bridging loan
granted by Shougang HK which has been classified as loans
from related company since December 2017 to present,
with the same principal amount of HK$200,000,000. This in
turn caused the increase of the item “Interest expenses on
loans from related companies” amounted to HK$12,790,000
(2017: HK$5,169,000), representing an increase of 1.5 times.

78,630,0007T + tb & F #H &% 10,411,000 7T
EH6.6(5  ZEBVBKAARBEE %BA
AFEEHABSER(BRERTEEBELT)E
B2 MH 78 89 1S BE 5 18 % %5 24,541,000 7T
MR ZT—+FHFBEEREEBBNR AN
BETE H U258 #41,677,000T © —Z— /\F
HINEETE S 1B R B A R 3B T R AR
FEREN4.8% @ MEFRIFEE.7% °

MBWAEMEERREARAFENER
0.3%E1.75% T & 2 B IRITFRZH X
EFrArER

R EF i RIRITTER 2 A% 7% %200,000,000
TEHEEEERBERASEHERNEBE
200,000,000 THREERERE - ZEFBZ
T—+F+ZABREBEA E/\*Ei%ﬁf'%“
MEXR - EE8HEHEQARENRFEXHIE
E iﬂu1.5{mi/9§¢1€<12,790,0007z<_ = —+
& @ B#5,169,0007T) °
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The bank borrowing interest expenses did not decrease in
proportion to bank borrowing principal amount for the year
under comparison on the item “Interest expenses on bank
borrowings” was mainly attributable to interest expenses
on bank advances for discounted bills in RMB were subject
to relatively higher interest rate. The breakdown is listed
hereunder:

RTRTTEFHR S BB AMRITERA S

S TR BE ERAREF IR

Lo

1TH?

N = AT

i EXEHEARNARERREENRITR
FOMLE SRS mH R R PTER o BAAR 5140

I

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
BT T BT T #5(%)
Finance income g 36
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF FH) B A 1,297 399 +225.1
Foreign exchange gains on interest 5t B EZIMNEEE 35,
bearing borrowings g - 41,677 N/AFTiE A
Total finance income R PNk 1,297 42,076 -96.9
Finance costs B 7% R A
Interest expenses on RITERAANE X H
bank borrowings (42,113) (42,956) -2.0
Interest expenses on loans from mABEQARZER
related companies MBEFZH (12,790) (5,169) +147.4
Amortisation of loan transaction costs B 2% 5k 7 # 4 (2,422) (4,653) -47.9
Foreign exchange losses on ERONEE H B 1R
borrowings (24,541) - N/ATE A
(81,866) (52,778)
Amount capitalised ERbetR 1,939 291 +566.3
Total finance costs B A 4B RE (79,927) (52,487) +52.3
Finance costs, net B H% B A< R ER (78,630) (10,411) +655.3
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Income tax credit

Income tax credit amounted to HK$2,436,000 for the year,
as compared to the same of HK$6,695,000 last year. The
Group has recorded deferred tax credit of HK$2,068,000 for
the year (2017: HK$270,000), which was mainly attributable
to the depreciation of fixed assets netted off with the impact
of revaluation of properties.

In respect of income tax rates, JESC, which has been
recognised as a state-encouraged high-new technology
enterprise starting from 2014 and renewed in 2017, thus
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% in 2017, 2018 and
2019, subject to annual review by the relevant tax authority
in the PRC. There was no change in applicable tax rates of
the Company and its subsidiaries during the year.

For the Company and subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
they are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at a rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
as there is no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for both years.

In addition, according to the EIT Law and Implementation
Regulation and the Arrangement between the Mainland of
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of
Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income, the Group is
subject to withholding tax on dividends paid by subsidiaries
in the PRC to holding companies in Hong Kong at a rate of
5% (2017: 5%).

Trade receivables

The amount of trade receivables (before provision of
impairment loss) amounted to HK$711,055,000 at 31
December 2018, increased by 0.4% as compared to
HK$708,075,000 at 31 December 2017. The amount of
provision of impairment loss amounted to HK$20,124,000
at 31 December 2018, increased by 1.9% as compared to
HK$19,742,000 at 31 December 2017. The above increase
was in line with the revenue growth of 6.7% during the year.

FriERiiE e

RAFE  AEEHSAEHER L BE
2,436,000 7T * 48 Lt & F W # ¥ 6,695,000
T ARBRAFEHBREEHRER 2B
¥ 2,068,000 T ( —=ZF — 4 : & ¥ 270,000
L) FEREERRBEEEENENRYEER -

BARAMSHETH - ZHERITA T —FE
ERERASEFRRENEARMEE - AN
F—LFEH AUR=_FT—tF - —F-N\
FR_T-NFERIBBNEERREX - ALK
TEBRREEENFEEZ - AR LEHM
BRABNAFEARERR R EEE o

RARBREBBLEHMBRAAEIME - AF
[EBEHM16.5%( —FE—+4F : 16.5%)NEB
FEH -BE_T—+FR=ZT—/\F+=A
= +—BULFEWELEEFEBEDEE -
EMFHEESNE BT SR ERBEF

BEAN - IRBEPBEERMETE R ERARA R
R AMEBFRTTRERENH R PEER
BT L RIRIR LB - NEEBST B2
BARMEE 2 IR A B PSS ROR A
5% (=T —+tF :5%)zTaEM

& U BR X

RZZ—-—N\EFE+-A=+—8  MBRERE
KB ER R FE W R 3£ 58 A B 711,055,000
T HERZE—+F+_A=+—HHOBEE
708,075,0007C E710.4% - B ZE - T — )\
T A=Z+—HIE BREBXBESHEASE
20,124,0007T ' &E—_E—+F+_A=+—
H#)&%19,742,000 0% 1011.9% o it 32 40
HEAFERAEEE 7% -
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The trade receivables (net of provision of impairment
loss) amounted to HK$688,333,000 at end of 2017 and
HK$690,931,000 at 31 December 2018.

The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of provision of
impairment loss) of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and
the comparison with 31 December 2017 is as follows:

31 December 2018

EWER(HNBRRERXEE) DR -F
—tEFREZF-NFFZAZT-HRAER
688,333,0007T /& #690,931,0007T °

RZZE—NFE+-A=+—BHEB D (30
BRREBAEHE B - T—+F+-_A=1+—
BELENT

31 December 2017

—B-N\F —F—+tF
+=—A=+—8H +=—RA=+—H
HK$’000 % HK$'000 % % change
Age BRiR BET T % BETIT %  BE(%)
Up to 90 days Z=90H 509,968 73.8 535,777 77.8 -4.8
91 to 180 days 912180H 161,448 23.4 145,993 21.2 +10.6
Over 180 days %1 180H 19,515 2.8 6,563 1.0 +197.3
Total 4B 690,931 100.0 688,333 100.0 +0.4

The overall quality of trade receivables continues to be in a
manageable condition, as trade receivables aged within 180
days accounted for 97.2% of total trade receivables at 31
December 2018.

Regarding the provision of impairment loss on trade
receivables of HK$20,124,000 at 31 December 2018, they
mainly represented those made for receivables from sales
of steel cord, while we have strived to pursue the recovery
of these receivables and continue to use best efforts to do
such.

JEWEE RN BEREZBRER N EEMREE
R E180K 2 AW EUMER G =T — )\ F
+ - A=+ —BERERNETENIT.2% °

AR - N\FE+-A=1+—BREKRIRE
BRBEE A E20,124,000T © B =
ERREHEMEGMELNEBER - MK
M—EBHBEELEIRER - TEHERSK
2 HUE o
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In respect of the trade receivables at 31 December 2018,
approximately 51.0% has been subsequently settled by
cash or bills receivable up to 11 March 2019. The details
of subsequent settlement of trade receivables of the Group
and from top five customers of the Group for the year are as
follows:

AR T N\F+_A=+—B8EKEK
R HEREBE_Z-NF=ZRA+—BILHE
51.0% 2@ BN EPEEFAWE - K
BAAEERAEENE DA H)EYRER
RERUGKFBWT ¢

Trade receivables

Total trade from top five customers
receivables of the Group of the Group
FEBAEBERR FEEERAREFNEWRIRR
Amount at % of Amount at % of
31 December subsequent 31 December subsequent
2018 settlement 2018 settlement
S S
—E-N\%¥ HE W —E-N\F HEW
+=ZA=+-—H ZBEZE +t=A=t—H ZBED
0t (%) HWEE (%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
Age iRk BETT BETT
Up to 90 days EZ%90H 509,968 43.2 252,895 45.7
91 to 180 days 91£180H 161,448 71.8 81,913 67.3
Over 180 days %1 180H 19,515 82.3 13,151 97.8
Total fEt 690,931 51.0 347,959 52.7
TREASURY AND FUNDING POLICIES MEBXR

The treasury and funding policies of the Group concentrates
on the management of liquidity and the monitoring of
financial risks, including interest rate risk, currency risk and
counterparty risks. The objectives are to ensure the Group
has adequate financial resources to maintain business
growth with a healthy financial position.

Surplus funds of the Group are generally placed on short
term deposits denominated in HKD, RMB or USD with
reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The financing
of the Group usually comprises short to medium term loans
from banks. The loan portfolio takes into consideration of the
liquidity of the Group and interest costs.

AEENHERRETFNRBE S EEMEE
MR - BIEARER - ELRBRMR S Y
FRER - HENRHEARAEEBERENTEE
RAEF BARIBRER TR EBIER -

AEBENRSRES —RAEIHERCOUEE
ARBEIET/REM) FHRERTERTRESE
RIFHIRTT - AEBWNES BB BEEEED
ARHRITER ERAEEZEARENE
ERBERNERAMIEL
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SHARE CAPITAL, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Company manages its capital structure with the
objectives of ensuring that the businesses of the Group can
continue to maintain a sustainable growth and providing a
long-term reasonable return to its Shareholders.

There was no change in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year. The total number of issued
shares of the Company remained at 1,922,900,556 Shares
at 31 December 2018. Net asset value of the Group was
HK$1,339,150,000 at 31 December 2018, decreased slightly
by 3.8% as compared to HK$1,391,528,000 at 31 December
2017. The decrease in net asset value was attributable to
the negative impact on depreciation of RMB exchange rate
against HKD of approximately 4.8% throughout the year. Net
asset value per Share was HK$0.696 at 31 December 2018,
also decreased by 3.9% as compared to HK$0.724 at 31
December 2017.

Cash flows
The Group generated net cash operating inflow of
HK$168,973,000 for the year as follows:

BRAE - BESRB R Y HER

ARREREBEARRENEWARRAEEZ
X EBERFIFELR N ARRIEHR—E
BENRHADR

RAFE » ARRZEEHITRNEE BEER
#H) M _E— ) \F+_A=1+—HBARQXAE
BT B E 8515 /£1,922,900,556 % © 7
EER T N\FE+_A=+—BZEEFHE
#H#5#1,339,150,0000C ' k=T —+F+ =
A=+—B5%1,391,528,000 T & T (&
3.8% - BEFETHREANARKEH BKE
E2FRENISHNEELEMW - N _F
—N\F+_A=+—BNEREEFEREL
0697 Lt —ZT—tF+-_A=+—8B=HE
f& & #0.72470 78 T #63.9% o

BRER
ARBRAFESRR/KELE R 2RER
FEE1£168,973,0007C 1T

HK$’000
BT T
Net cash from operating activities as per consolidated A8 IR &R E XTI REL LT
statement of cash flows (include bills receivable PRACHRSFRE(BEEEES
endorsed to creditors and matured during the year) EXAWAERFEFHE 7 BUERE) (131,263)
Add: Operating cash inflows not reflected in m: RKRGEEReERERRE L
consolidated statement of cash flows REFERAGERERS) -
(non-cash transactions):
Bills receivable that has been discounted RAFEIRFIRITZ
to banks during the year FEW R 300,236
Net operating cash inflow for the year REFREKLERHZFERRA 168,973
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In respect of cash flows on other activities:

1. The Group recorded net cash outflow on investing
activities of HK$31,661,000 during the year, which is
mainly Steel cord segment’s capital expenditure of
HK$11,375,000 and net placement of pledged bank
deposit of HK$21,599,000; and

2. The Group recorded net cash inflow on financing
activities of HK$27,503,000 during the year. When
net proceeds from bank advances for discounted bills
that were matured during the year of HK$131,542,000
were excluded, the Group incurred net cash outflow
of HK$104,039,000 on financing activities during the
year that represented sum of net reduction of interest
bearing borrowings of HK$57,625,000 and interest
expenses paid at HK$46,414,000 during the year.

Bank balances and cash and interest bearing
borrowings

The Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) amounted to HK$145,312,000 at 31
December 2018, decreased by 46.2% as compared to
HK$270,339,000 at 31 December 2017. Main reason of the
decrease in the bank balances and cash is the increase
in proportion in bills receivable received from customers
instead of receiving payment in form of cash. Total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (comprised of loans
from related companies and bank borrowings including
discounted bills) were HK$1,100,809,000 at 31 December
2018, increased by 4.9% as compared to HK$1,049,010,000
at 31 December 2017. The rise is mainly due to the increased
amount in bank advances of discounted bills during the
year. The amount of net interest bearing borrowings (total
interest bearing borrowings less bank balances and cash
(including pledged bank deposits)) therefore increased from
HK$778,671,000 at 31 December 2017 to HK$955,497,000
at 31 December 2018.

ERHEMEBNRDR -

—_

AEBRAFENRE TGRSR
R EA B 31,661,000 ¢ HAF £
EAMBESITEENERA B
11,375,000 T F177 I 2 IR R TF 5005
%875%21,599,0007T ; &

2. AEERAFERRETHELRSRK
ANF5E8%27,503,0007T - ATEIEH
EEAFR MR BB L FSHRIEA
R EE 131,542,000 © AEENAK
FERETHELARS AL FEAS
#:104,039,0007T * BN AREE R st
BE IR E57,625,0007T K 32+ 7
BRI 5% 46,414,0007T °

BAGERESRIEER

RZFE—N\F+ZA=+—8 A&EBEZE
THEEAS(BECEPRITER) LB
145,312,0007C ' th =T —+F+ - A=+—
H 48 ¥ 270,339,000 7T | [£46.2% ° R 1T
EHRERASROHFTZERAZRELKEH
EWEEALLFIEM - M ARARESEA UK
BRIE - AEB B RER(BEREEHE
ERRZERMBTEZIOR-_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—H#%/+%%1,100,809,0007T * [t ==
—tF+=-A=+—H#H®#%1,049,010,000
TTEAH49% - EFHAEERHRAFERE
BHERTTRFIGMATE - Bt - sHEEHFRE
(GTEExRRERRITEHR LA (BEDER
WITFER))BE-_T—tF+-_A=+—H8%#
778,671,000 EAE =T —NF+ A
= +— B#®/E%955,497,0007T °
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At 31 December 2018, the interest bearing borrowings on
majority of bank loans and related companies loans were
fixed rates ranging from 3.4% to 6.5% per annum total at
HK$803,945,000. While smaller portion of these interest
bearing borrowings were floating-rate borrowings at total
of HK$296,864,000 with interest rates ranging from 3.97%
to 5.17% this year. The nature and maturing profile of the
Group’s interest bearing borrowings at 31 December 2018,
based on contracted repayment schedules were as follows:

RZFE—-—NF+ZA=+—H ' KRHEHR
TEFRERBEBEARERNGTBEREE
803,945,000 7T MA & 7 F | N F3.4% =
65%%lWﬁ§°ﬁL%ﬁﬁﬁm$fm4
D RIZEFERERE HHEK296,864,0007T -

u$¢ﬁ¢ﬂ+u¥&W%§5w%ﬁEﬁ

cHZE—N\F+_A=F+—HAEEE
f’fszf\‘igwﬁé%@ﬁﬁizzﬁiﬂ,ﬁﬁz&,ﬁﬁ%iﬁ
wr

% of total
interest
bearing

HK$’000 borrowings
15t

BEEXRHEE

BET T B2 (%)
Due in 2019 or on demand: RZE—NFEARNE BB AT -
- Short term bank loans — R HRSRITE K 445,429 40.5
- Bank advances for discounted bills —RTTRRIE ZRIES R 162,157 14.7
- Loans from related companies —REBEBEEATZER 226,358 20.6
Total due in 2019 R-E—-NERT|HI4EEE 833,944 75.8
Total due in 2020 or after R-ZZE-ZF R 2% EIHiR%E
- Non-current bank loans —IERBEIRITER 270,000 24.5
Total 1Bz 1,103,944 100.3
Unamortised loan arrangement fees REE I ERLHER (3,135) (0.3)
Total Bzt 1,100,809 100.0

The Group will plan to service the interest bearing
borrowings due in 2019 and 2020 by cash flow generated
from its operations and refinancing from banks and
exploring from other sources to raise capital such as issue of
Convertible Bonds.

AEEKASBBREEAEEELNRER -
RITHMENEEMIRREEES (NBETH
BREF)EEE_T AT _TFIH

o
E’]u BER -
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Debt and liquidity ratios

Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) divided by Shareholders’ equity) of the Group
increased from 56.0% at 31 December 2017 to 71.4% at 31
December 2018 mainly due to decrease in bank balances
and cash. The current ratio (calculated as current assets
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.19 times
at 31 December 2018 as compared to 1.17 times at 31
December 2017.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
Both the Group’s sources of revenue, purchases and
payments are mainly denominated in RMB, HKD and USD.
The Group’s bank balances and cash are therefore mainly
in RMB, HKD and USD. Under this circumstance, the Group
shall mainly raise borrowings in a mix of these currencies
to minimise the risk of significant mismatch between the
sources of revenue with interest bearing borrowings. The
respective currency composition of the Group’s bank
balances and cash (including pledged bank deposits) and
interest bearing borrowings was as follows:

BERARBEELR

$$l2%ﬁtb?(L/(‘Jr,\\,\mﬁ'%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ
‘EhkBA(BRESERRITER RURE
*E“aJr )f_? tE+-A=1t—H%#H
56.0% FFFER = }\E—I- A=1+—HB%

ﬁ4%o$$@# —N\F+-A=+—H
E@/llb@)tt;ﬁ:‘(L/{/llhibﬁgﬁ%lf/(/}w@]g%%ﬁ ﬁ)%

1196 - YR =T —+tF+=-A=+—HA|
A1ATRE -

IR IR R B
REFBRARBREEBNNFKEEZUAR
BB RETTREAMN o AEBEMRITET R
HEAENTEEUARE - BBERETLAE

i MEERIBEAT  AEEKTIBNELR

BREMEER  URERDERRARIRE S
EXERBEUBBAEENER - NEBRIRTT

,\\DT&iﬁi( BEBEMERITER R
MEBEAEDBINT ¢

FREMR
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Bank balances and cash (including pledged bank

RITEFRAS(BREESEFRTER)

deposits)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—B2-N\Ft=A=+—-H “T—+F+t-A=+—H
% of % of
total bank total bank
balances balances
and cash and cash
(including (including
pledged pledged
bank bank
HK$’000 deposits) HK$’000 deposits)
G R1T HIRTT
#EERRE mELRE
(BEEEA (BRECEA
RITERN) RITER)
B¥TT HAEAIH(%) BETIT  RFEASL(%)
RMB ARE 122,991 84.6 155,644 57.6
HKD s 2,701 1.9 58,396 21.6
uUsD X 11,614 8.0 40,193 14.9
Other currencies Hfp yh & 8,006 5.5 16,106 5.9
Total met 145,312 100.0 270,339 100.0
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Interest bearing borrowings (including banks and
related companies)

31 December 2018
—2-N\E+=-A=+-H

SAERER(BRETRAEBELQT)

31 December 2017
—2—tF+-A=+-H

% of % of
interest interest
bearing bearing

HK$'000 borrowings HK$’000 borrowings

LRSS (ERps)

EXAE EARE

BT T B 2t (%) BT T B (%)

RMB ARKE 598,411 54.4 553,031 52.7
HKD P 502,398 45.6 495,979 47.3
Total HEE 1,100,809 100.0 1,049,010 100.0

In respect of exposure to interest rate risk, the majority of
interest bearing borrowings at 31 December 2018 are at
fixed instead of floating rates. For the minority of interest
bearing borrowings are in floating rates, the Group had not
entered into any interest rate swaps to contain any upside
risks on the floating interest rates to the results and cash
flows of the Group as those relevant floating rate borrowings
are for a term of less than one year. While the interest rate
of USD may rise further in the future, the latest dovish
forward looking statement by the Federal Reserve has led us
to believe the frequency and magnitude of an interest rate
increase should not warrant us to enter into any interest rate
swaps.

ARNERR  BE-T-N\F+_A=1—
B EYRT B A HB D 42 B F K 1 I F 8 =
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fFf BT A 0 B BE 1 22 AR R B PIARE DB Y 4R
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During the year, the exchange rate of RMB depreciated
by approximately 4.8% against HKD. The depreciation of
RMB exchange rate has negative impact on the results of
the Group on the translation of the Group’s interest bearing
borrowings that are denominated in HKD, and the Group
has not entered into derivative financial instruments to
hedge against foreign currency risk in first half of 2018 as
the rate was volatile. However, total of 5 foreign currency
hedging contracts with aggregate notional amount of
HK$180,000,000 and at future rates from RMBO0.8757/HKD1
to RMB0.8913/HKD1 were executed in second half of 2018
to sell RMB vs HKD as RMB continued to depreciate. These
contracts were classified as “fair value on derivatives held
for trading” and were fully settled on 28 December 2018.
We will review and adjust, when necessary, the currency
composition of our interest bearing borrowings from time
to time to minimise our risks on exchange and interest rate
in respect of our interest bearing borrowings. In any event,
we would keep monitoring the currency and interest rate
composition of the Group’s interest bearing borrowings
under the guidance of the Internal Control Manual and take
appropriate action to minimise our exchange and interest
rate risks when needed, such as entering into new derivative
financial instruments to hedge the risk of RMB vs HKD
exchange rate in 2019.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

TESC Phase Il Project

Some of the existing production lines of brass wires of
JESC, which have been in use for over 20 years, incur
high maintenance and operation costs with relatively low
production efficiency and quality instability. Construction
of the new brass wire production lines of 20,000 tonnes per
annum at TESC will enhance the efficiency of production of
both JESC and TESC, which is expected to bring positive
impact on the performance of the Steel cord segment.
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Approximately HK$110,000,000 from issuance of
Convertible Bonds on 11 February 2019 will be used for
funding the capital expenditures and working capital for
TESC Phase Il Project. The Group intends to upgrade some
of its brass wires production lines by supplementing the
existing production facilities with the TESC Phase Il Project.

The project is to proceed in phases commencing in the latter
half of 2019 and planned to be completed in the third quarter
of 2020.

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$54,231,000, which were mainly incurred
by Steel cord segment for enhancement of its production
facilities.

The capital expenditures to be incurred in 2019 is estimated
to be approximately HK$13,969,000, which are to be
incurred by Steel cord segment mainly for enhancement of
production efficiency of the two manufacturing plants. These
capital expenditures will be financed by the Group’s internal
resources and bank borrowings.

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a related party
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund) whereby
the Company issued and Jingxi Holdings subscribed
for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000. The interest rate is 4.0% per annum while
Conversion Price is HK$0.33 per Share, with conversion
available commencing 6 months from issuance date till
end of term. Tenor is 3 years from issuance date which can
be extended by Jingxi Holdings for one year twice to the
date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the
Convertible Bonds.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Jingxi Holdings with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the Shares.
On 11 February 2019, the issue of Convertible Bonds was
completed.
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The net proceeds from the subscription of HK$149,000,000,
are expected to be used as follows: (i) approximately
HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-bearing borrowings
with higher interest rate of the Group; (ii) approximately
HK$110,000,000 for funding the capital investment and
working capital for the TESC Phase Il Project subject to
the construction cost and time needed to supplement the
production need for both TESC and JESC for facilities of
brass wire; and (iii) approximately HK$1,700,000 being the
remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital of the Group.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
TRAINING SCHEME OF THE GROUP

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 2,060
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence
as well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually.
In addition to salary payments, other employee benefits
include medical subsidies, hospitalization scheme and a
defined contribution provident fund, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and other retirement scheme or other similar
defined contribution provident fund stipulated by the State
Regulations of the PRC which provided retirement benefits
to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively. The
Group’s contributions to these schemes are charged against
profits or loss as they are incurred. The amount charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$23,103,000.

The Group had also provided training programmes or
courses for the Mainland staff at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the
Company so as to further enhance their technical skills in
production operation and management, professional skills
and knowledge, respectively.
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The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to individual performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

In addition, the Company had adopted the 2002 Scheme.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board shall, subject to and
in accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Scheme
and the Listing Rules, grant share options to any eligible
participant to subscribe for Shares for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to him/her for contribution to
the Group. The 2002 Scheme remained in force for a period
of ten years from the date of its adoption and expired on 6
June 2012. The Shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on 25 May 2012 approved the termination of the 2002
Scheme and adoption of the 2012 Scheme which serves
the same purpose as the 2002 Scheme. The 2012 Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years from 29 May
2012, the date of obtaining the approval of the listing and
permission to deal in the Shares falling to be allotted and
issued pursuant to the exercise of any options granted under
the 2012 Scheme.

Share options granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Scheme remain valid and exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

During the year under review, no options were granted,
exercised, cancelled and lapsed under the 2012 Scheme
while only 103,700,000 share options lapsed under the 2002
Scheme.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 December
2018.

At 31 December 2018, the following assets had been
pledged to the Group’s bankers and a related company for
banking facilities and bills payable issued and to secure loan
from a related company granted to the Group:

1. Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate net
book value of HK$201,312,000;

2. Plant and machinery with an aggregate amount of
HK$90,404,000;

3. Prepaid land payments with an aggregate amount of
HK$62,859,000;

4. Bank deposit of HK$78,630,000; and

5. Pledged deposits on loan from a related company
amounting to HK$7,989,000.

THE RESULT ON THE POSSIBLE DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST IN

TESC AND THE PROPOSED STRATEGIC
COOPERATION WITH E# & (£8) BRE
{£2 8 (ZAOZHUANG MINING (GROUP) CO.,
LTD.*) (“ZAOZHUANG MINING”)

As regards the second supplemental memorandum of
understanding (the “Second Supplemental MOU”) entered
into by the Company and Zaozhuang Mining (the “Parties”)
dated 30 June 2016, the long stop date to the effect that
the formal agreement under the Second Supplemental MOU
has expired on 12 July 2018, the Parties to the Second
Supplemental MOU have not yet gone through the necessary
internal approval procedures customary to state-owned
enterprises of the PRC and hence, the major terms and
conditions in respect of the proposed capital injection or
the proposed strategic cooperation between the Group and
Zaozhuang Mining Group could not be concluded and no
legally-binding agreement could be reached. Accordingly,
the Second Supplemental MOU had lapsed in accordance
with its terms and ceased to have any effect.

* For identification only
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The Directors are of the view that the lapse of the Second
Supplemental MOU does not have any material adverse
impact on the business operation and financial position of
the Group. However, the Group will maintain dialogue with
Zaozhuang Mining Group should the opportune timing and
projects arise in the future.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Against the backdrop of a slew of weakening economic
data from various sizeable economies of the globe, the
corollary of general consumers’ and investors’ confidence
is fidgety and cautious. Albeit there are signs that the Sino-
US trade debacle might arrive to an agreeable solution,
the negotiation process is expected to drag on and there
will always be a lingering concern as to whether the trade
balance scuffle is a mere front of a larger political and
international leadership scrimmage. In order to counter the
uncertainties and the probable decline in economic growth,
the government and the central banks of most developed
economies are or expected to embark upon a dovish
approach in interest rate normalization, balance sheet
reduction and/or even the resumption of quantitative easing.
The Central Government of the PRC has also announced
a number of relief measures such as value-added tax
reduction, reduction in electricity charges and access to
capital/credit initiatives on boosting consumption and
encouraging investments, particularly for small and medium
enterprises, which would help stabilizing the demand for
automobiles, tyres and hence, steel cord. On the supply
side, we believe there will be more relocation of production
capacity of steel cord as opposed to new capacity addition.
In this connection, we do not expect a major shift in the
dynamic of the steel cord market which continues to
edge towards equilibrium amidst the trade and economic
uncertainties in 2019.
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In order to maintain a reasonable market share in the steel &7 RIS ETRESENTEGEEER -
cord business and restore our financial health, we will use  WIRER PN HEE @ ZPEEFAEH

our best endeavors to:

o pare down production and finance costs; °

o expand our business volume in regions relatively o
unscathed from protectionism;

o work with Shougang Fund (subject to relevant rules o
and regulations) in identifying other investment
opportunities within the realm of our principal
business; and

° broaden the scope of our hedging activities against a °
depreciation of the RMB.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRE

The Board is committed to practicing and achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and also recognises that
effective risk management and internal control systems are
crucial to the long term development of the Company. In
order to maintain sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems, the Board periodically reviews the
daily corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries and procures the Company
and its subsidiaries to strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations, and the rules and guidelines of regulatory
bodies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation
to the accounting period covered in this annual report in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Code of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the Company has applied and complied with all
the principles and code provisions of the Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018, except for the deviation
from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and D.1.4 of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

On 6 April 2004, the Board has adopted a SCCHL Code on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct and rules
governing dealing by all Directors and Specified Individuals
in the securities of the Company. In order to keep the
SCCHL Code in line with the changes brought upon by the
relevant amendments to laws, rules and regulations, the
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Board will revise the SCCHL Code from time to time and
the latest version which was revised on 18 December 2018
is an annexed to the Internal Control Manual. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and SCCHL Code for the year ended 31
December 2018.

THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of six members, including two
executive Directors (namely Messrs. Su Fanrong (chairman
and managing Director) and Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (deputy
managing Director)), one non-executive Director (namely Mr.
Liao Jun) and three independent non-executive Directors
(namely Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond, Law, Yui Lun and
Lam Yiu Kin). The Directors’ biographical details are set
out on pages 8 to 14 under the heading “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS".

The major duties of the Board are set out below:

o Develop business model and business goals of the
Company;

° Formulate the strategies, planning and development of
the Company;

° Set up objectives of management;
U Monitor the performance of management;

° Ensure that a framework of prudent and effective
controls are in place to enable risks to be assessed and
managed;

° Review and approve the Company’s results and
operations to be disclosed on a regular basis to the
public; and

° Approve the Group’s operating strategies, budget and
strategies in collaboration with various jurisdictions
enterprises, as well as other major investments,
application of funds and other substantial exercises
with other enterprises.
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In order to have a clear guideline in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decision, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized in
the Internal Control Manual. In short, the Board, which is
accountable to Shareholders for the long-term performance
of the Company, is responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs to safeguard the best interest of the
Company as a whole. The affairs reserved to the Board
including but not limited to the development of business
models and strategies of the Company, the preparation of
financial reporting and the expansion and development of
any new business. The managing Director motivates the
management and general staff to achieve those business
goals and strategies set out by the Board, applying business
principles and ethics enshrined in the Internal Control
Manual.

Each Director owes a fiduciary duty towards the Company.
He should act in good faith and in the best interests for
both the Company and Shareholders as a whole. Also,
the Board has three independent non-executive Directors
which represent half (more than one-third) of the Board
so that there is a strong element of independence in the
Board. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
different professional qualification and experience in various
aspects: including but not limited to (i) legal professional
qualification and experience; and (ii) auditing, accounting
and tax professional, and business consulting experience,
which has fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Hence, we believe that we have sufficient
calibre and number for their views to carry weight.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his and
immediate family members’ independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Although two of the independent
non-executive Directors, Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond
and Law, Yui Lun have been serving the Board for more
than nine years, they have not engaged in any executive
management of the Group and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm
and Mr. Law, when he was Certified Public Accountant
(Practising), and their respective family members have never
provided any service to the Group. Their familiarity and
extensive experience with the Company’s business may
place them in a better position to contribute independent
views to the Company, and continue to demonstrate a firm
commitment to their role.

Taking into consideration of their independent scope of
works and their high integrity when performing duties as
independent non-executive Directors over the past years,
there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on their independence. The Company
therefore considers all of independent non-executive
Directors (including Messrs. Yip and Law) are independent
throughout the year under review. Furthermore, all Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, should be
re-elected at least once every three years at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the reasons the Board
believes that the individual to be independent are set out in
the relevant circulars. In addition to the above, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.
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Deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director in the Company are performed by Mr.
Su Fanrong (“Mr. Su”) which constitutes the deviation from
the code provision A.2.1 of the Code which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and managing Director should be
separate and should not be performed by the same person.
In consideration of Mr. Su’s extensive knowledge and
experience in various aspects, in particular the management
in the steel industry and sales area, the Board considers
this present arrangement still enables the Company to make
decisions promptly in the formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies in achieving corporate goals.
Notwithstanding the deviation, the Board is of the view
that there are sufficient checks and balances amongst the
Board to reach decisions in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the
management structure from time to time according to Board
Diversity Policy and the need to separate the roles of the
chairman of the Board and the managing Director into two
individuals.

Deviation from code provision A.6.7 of the Code
During the year under review, Mr. Liao Jun (“Mr. Liao”), who
is a non-executive Director, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting due to his other business engagement and
only able to attend three out of five board meetings during
the year and this might constitute a deviation of the code
provision A.6.7 of the Code which requires generally the
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors to attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the deviation, Mr. Liao demonstrated an
active participation and contributed his skills, expertise
from his varied backgrounds and qualifications to the board
meetings he attended during the year under review. The
Board will advise Mr. Liao to use his endeavors to attend all
the meetings for the coming years.
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Deviation from code provision D.1.4 of the Code
During the year under review, the Company deviated from
the code provision D.1.4 of the Code. According to the
subscription agreement and further agreement dated 22
September 2006 and 24 February 2015 respectively entered
into by the Company and Bekaert, Bekaert group nominated
Mr. Liao as a non-executive Director. Mr. Liao does not
have any formal letter of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of his appointment as Director, which
therefore deviated from the code provision D.1.4 of the
Code.

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings
(including the board meetings, audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meeting, nomination committee
meeting and annual general meeting) held during the year
are set out in the following table:

Record of attendance of Directors at the meetings
held during the year (“Attendance Record”)

w8t <F Bl 2 <7 BI4% 32 D.1.41%
RARFEEEE - NA R w8 TR 2 sFRHEX
D.1.41& @ RIFEA R A EBekaert D JIRN =&
ERFNAZFT AR ZE—RAF-_A=+NH
H RT3 2 Rk & — 2P 3% A Bekaert &
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R B A - AR R E IR BE =T Al 2 57 BIESC
D.1.414 °

EENAFESTNER (BREFSSH -
BEVLRBeER  FRESER  REZREB
EERLBRREAFAG)ZHEBRAER TE
IR

EERFAFEETHNERHFELR(HE
Aek])

Number of Meetings Attended and Held

EREZEERETYEA
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
EEe ENZEE FMEEE REZES RRBF
Name of Director EENS 83 = -f 2 -
Li Shaofeng* D 15 N/ATER 1/2 173 N/ATER
Yang Kaiyu* BRF 1/5 N/ATNEFR N/ATNE A N/ATNE N/ATNEFR
Su Fanrong FIES 55  N/ATER 1/2 2/3 11
Leung Shun Sang, Tony* PIEHE> 2/5 N/ATNEH 1/2 2/3 11
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau BBk 5/5 6/6 N/ATE R N/ATE A 11
Liao Jun B 3/5 N/ANE A N/ATE A N/ATE A 0/1
Yip Kin Man, Raymond EER 5/5 6/6 2/2 3/3 11
Law, Yui Lun BEB 5/5 6/6 2/2 3/3 1/1
Lam Yiu Kin B 5/5 6/6 2/2 3/3 11

Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as the executive Director and chairman
on 18 January 2018, Mr. Yang Kaiyu resigned as the executive
Director and managing Director on 31 January 2018 and Mr.
Leung Shun Sang, Tony retired as the non-executive Director on
18 May 2018.
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During the year, two risk assessment meetings were held to
deal with risk management issues of the Group and a budget
meeting was held to review the business performance of
2018 and planning of 2019 business by executive Directors
and the management of the Group after the balance sheet
date.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction package to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her duties, responsibilities and obligations as a Director
under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business. In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during the year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors
have attended programmes or seminar(s) organised by
the Company, other qualified professional bodies and
regulatory authorities. In particular, all Directors had actively
participated in the Directors E-Training launched by the
Stock Exchange in February and December 2018, which
enhance their understanding of the responsibilities at Initial
Public Offering and after listing process and INED’s role in
corporate governance and other new corporate governance
requirements that took effect on 1 January 2019.
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Furthermore, in order to ensure that the contribution of all
Directors to the Board remains informed and relevant, the
Company Secretarial Department of the Company has,
from time to time provide Directors with relevant reading
materials to keep them informed of the latest updates in the
relevant industry and market and the latest changes on the

BE RERMEEFERESSFLERER
KIRENER - ARFIARWE LI TR RE
SRARRRE T R R E BB ITE LD
BRRITBENRERMERRENRIME
b BEEMEIZ2BIRBE D HARAWE

HRE MEF - NATE - FHEXRERERM

legal and regulatory environment. The records of the training e MIE RMAEE S IERNIE I EESE R
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated mr
by the Company Secretarial Department of the Company.
Areas of their training activities provided by the Company,
relevant professional qualified bodies and regulatory
authorities are summarised as follows:
Accounting, Legal, Director’s Global/China
taxation Regulatory responsibilities Other market/
and legal and corporate Group’s  atIPOsand  professional  INED's role economic
professional  governance policies/ afterlisting  development in corporate issues/
trainings updates  businesses process programs  governance  development
BRAR B R/
RRER F4nES  tETE/
&t BER 2 iR SEH  LWz#K HtEg  EbEER  SENRE/
Name of Director - £3:5] EREEE  CEEREN /%R (i YRAE AR R
Li Shaofeng* Tl - / / - - - -
Yang Kaiyu* BRT - / / - - - -
Su Fanrong AR - / / / - / -
Leung Shun Sang, Tony* R4 - / / / - - -
Tang Comor Kwok Kau Bk - / / / - / -
Liao Jun B - / / / - / -
Yip Kin Man, Raymond 45 / / / / / / -
Law, Yui Lun Bal / / / / / / /
Lam Yiu Kin HiRg / / / / / / /
* Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as the executive Director and chairman * FOBEEVN - NF— A+ /\HETHIT

on 18 January 2018, Mr. Yang Kaiyu resigned as the executive
Director and managing Director on 31 January 2018 and Mr.
Leung Shun Sang, Tony retired as a non-executive Director on 18
May 2018.
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Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of
his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments
and the time involvement in those public companies or
organisations. In particular, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin holds more than
seven public company directorships. The Board, however,
still believes that he is able to devote sufficient time to the
Board for the reasons that he has highly participated in
all meetings held by the Company as well as other public
companies he held directorships in the past two years and
he made invaluable advice and comments on every business
discussed at the meetings showing from the minutes
record. Mr. Lam Yiu Kin had confirmed to the Board that
he can devote sufficient time to discharge his duties and
responsibilities of acting as an independent non-executive
Director.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

During the year under review, the roles of Chairman and
managing Director were combined together and performed
by Mr. Su Fanrong since 31 January 2018 following the
resignation of Messrs. Li Shaofeng and Yang Kaiyu on
18 January 2018 and 31 January 2018 respectively, and
thus deviated from the code provision A.2.1 of the Code.
Such deviation is deemed appropriate as in consideration
of Mr. Su’s extensive knowledge and experience in
various aspects, in particular the management in the steel
industry and sales area, the Board considers this present
arrangement still enables the Company to make decisions
promptly in the formulation and implementation of the
Company'’s strategies in achieving corporate goals. Further
details of such deviation has been set out in page 54 under
the heading “THE BOARD” above.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019, except (i) Mr. Lam
Yiu Kin, who was appointed for a term commencing from 1
January 2018 and expiring on 31 December 2020; and (ii) Mr.
Liao Jun (Non-executive Director), who was nominated by
Bekaert group without any letter of appointment setting out
the key terms and conditions of his appointment as Director
with the Company. They are all subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least every three years at annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees,
namely remuneration committee, nomination committee
and audit committee to manage particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the responsibilities
of the Board. Moreover, all the board committees have
formulated their specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Code. The board
committee members will also from time to time report their
decisions and recommendations to the Board, if necessary.

To comply with the Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged Moore Stephens Advisory
Services Limited as the internal auditor of the Company
in relation to the provision of internal audit services to
the Company since 2015. The audit committee takes the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal audit function and its other duties
under the Code.

No corporate governance committee has been established
but respective board committees (as disclosed below) are
responsible for performing corporate governance functions
set out in the terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of
the Code.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members

are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. Su Fanrong "' (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Law, Yui Lun (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Note 1: Mr. Su Fanrong was appointed as the vice chairman of the
remuneration committee to replace Mr. Li Shaofeng (the
former vice chairman of the remuneration committee) on 18
January 2018.

Note 2: Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony resigned as the member of the

remuneration committee on 18 May 2018.

and its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management (if any), including
benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment),
or to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors, and also
to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;
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to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management (if any)
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to consider the annual performance bonus for
executive Directors and senior management (if any),
having regard to their achievements against the
performance criteria, and make recommendation to the
Board;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the remuneration as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard to
the Code of the Listing Rules.

ii)

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, two remuneration committee
meetings were held and a written resolution of all members
of remuneration committee was passed and the works
performed by the remuneration committee included: (i)
the consideration and review of the performance-based
remuneration of executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive Directors; (ii) the review of the directors’
fees of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors); (iii) the consideration and
recommendation of the terms of service contract of Mr. Su
Fanrong of his re-designation as chairman of the Company
with effect from 18 January 2018; (iv) the consideration
of the treatment of share options held by Mr. Li Shaofeng
who resigned as the executive Director and the chairman
and the resignation of his position in all committees with
effect from 18 January 2018; (v) the appointment of Mr. Su
Fanrong as the vice chairman of remuneration committee
and chairman of nomination committee on 18 January 2018;
(vi) the resignation of Mr. Yang Kaiyu as the managing
Director and the appointment of Mr. Su Fanrong as the
managing Director, the consideration of the treatment of
share options held by Mr. Yang Kaiyu with effect from
31 January 2018 by written resolution of remuneration
committee; and (vii) the review of the terms of reference of
remuneration committee. The emoluments of the Directors
are decided by the remuneration committee, having regard
to individual performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition. The attendance record of the
remuneration committee members at the meetings held
during the year is set out in the “Attendance Record” on
page 58 of this report.

The information in respect of emolument policy of the Group
is set out in the relevant sections of the “REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS” of this annual report and a separate report,
2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“2018 ESG Report”).
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Nomination committee

The nomination committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members
are:

Mr. Su Fanrong "o’ (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond "2 (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Law, Yui Lun (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Note 1: Mr. Su Fanrong was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee to replace Mr. Li Shaofeng (the
former chairman of the nomination committee) on 18
January 2018.

Note 2: Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was appointed as the vice
chairman of the nomination committee to replace Mr.
Leung Shun Sang, Tony (the former vice chairman of the
nomination committee) on 18 May 2018.

Terms of reference of nomination committee are
summarised as follows:

i) to review and monitor the structure, size and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and
length of service) of the Board at least annually in
accordance with the Board Diversity Policy and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;
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ii)

V)

Vi)

vii)

EEAWME

to identify and/or nominate and then select or make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Directors or to fill Board vacancies in accordance with
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
by considering the skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that the individual is expected to bring to
the Board and what are their potential contributions as
and when they arise with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Such appointment is subject to
the approval of the Board;

to make recommendations (taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and diversity need in
the future) to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in accordance with the Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

to disclose the Policy for Nomination of a Director of
the Company, performed by the nomination committee
during the year. This includes the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorships during the year, setting out
the procedures for the appointment and reappointment
of Directors and board succession planning
consideration;

to assess and review the independence of independent
non-executive Directors annually;

to review the Board Diversity Policy concerning
diversity at all levels of Board members, including
any measurable objectives and progress on achieving
those objectives, and make disclosure of the policy or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report annually;

for corporate governance issues, the nomination
committee should (i) review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management (if any); and (ii) develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors;

ii)

Vi)

vii)
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viii) the nomination committee shall make a statement
or report to the Board after each meeting about its
activities, the diversity of board members and the
process used for appointments, reappointment of
Directors under the Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company and board succession planning
consideration and explain if external advice has been
used and disclose and publish in the annual report or
other report as required subject to the Listing Rules
which is amended from time to time; and

iX) to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the nomination as the Board may
from time to time delegate to it, having regard to the
Code of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, three nomination committee
meetings were held and a written resolution of all members
of nomination committee was passed and the works
performed by the nomination committee included: (i)
the review of current structure, size and diversity of the
Board; (ii) the assessment and review of the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iii) the review
of the revised Board Diversity Policy, the progress of
achieving measurable objective for 2018 and determine
new measurable objective for year 2019 and the timetable
in relation thereto; (iv) the review of the 2018 training and
continuous professional development of Directors; (v)
the recommendation of the new Policy for Nomination of
a Director of the Company; (vi) the resignation of Mr. Li
Shaofeng as the chairman and executive Director and the
chairman of nomination committee and the re-designation
of Mr. Su Fanrong as the chairman and the appointment of
chairman of nomination committee and vice chairman of
remuneration committee with effect from 18 January 2018;
(vii) the retirement of Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony as the non-
executive Director and the resignation of the vice chairman
of nomination committee and the appointment of Mr. Yip
Kin Man, Raymond as the vice chairman of nomination
committee with effect from 18 May 2018; (viii) the resignation
of Mr. Yang Kaiyu as the managing Director and the
appointment of Mr. Su Fanrong as the managing Director
with effect from 31 January 2018 by written resolution
of nomination committee; and (ix) the review of terms of
reference of nomination committee.
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The Board Diversity Policy has been adopted since 2013
and was revised on 18 December 2018 in compliance with
code provision A.5.6 of the Code. Other than the elements
of board diversity, in considering the nomination of new
Directors, the nomination committee members will subject to
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience
and professional ethics of the candidates, especially their
experience in the business/industry of the Group and/or
other professional areas. The nomination committee then
put forward the recommendation in respect of the above
factors, where appropriate, to the Board for consideration
and adoption according to the Policy for Nomination of
a Director of the Company. The attendance record of the
nomination committee members at the meetings during the
year is set out in the “Attendance Record” on page 58 of
this report.

The summary of revised Board Diversity Policy and
its measurable objectives

The Consultation Conclusions on the Consultation Paper on
Review of the Code and Listing Rules has been published
by the Stock Exchange in July 2018. In particular, the
amendment requires the Company to have a diversity policy
and to disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in
Corporate Governance Report.
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Thus, the revised Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed At

RETHNEFENBELTIERRER -

by nomination committee members and approved by Z—N\E+-A+/\BHRELZZEe/KEHRT
Directors and adopted on 18 December 2018. The revised W4T EHE - WESEN - KEEINESS
Board Diversity Policy is summarized as follows: KB Z b BR e T

° articulate the benefits of diversity, including gender °
diversity, and the importance of being able to attract,
retain and motivate Directors from the widest possible
pool of available talent, and also aware of development
of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled and
experienced employee and that, in their skills, will
prepare for senior management and board position to
enhance the quality of its performance;

° express the Company’s commitment to diversity at all °
levels, including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length
of service, in particular focus on gender diversity,
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and skills and experience; and

o prepare a board skills matrix helping the Board to °
assess the current mix of competencies and diversity
on the Board and identify any gaps that may exist.
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The nomination committee will discuss and agree annually EZLE€EEFFImAPEmERESTE%Z T
all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the (tHIFTAEAIESIEEIE @ WAEESHERW o
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption. At any TEEAEENER  EFent—ExZ @A
given time the Board may seek to improve one or more MHZRKHEZ RS EEMEE o
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The nomination committee will also report annually, in IEEZEEeMEEFEANBRENEREES R
this report, on the Board’s composition under diversified Z b BEMER - WERABKERHEIT -
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The following are the measurable objectives in years 2018 —Z—N\ER-_FT—NFAGFEEENT :
and 2019:

Progress of Measurable Objective in 2018 Completion date of the goal
2018F[FtEEA B ZEE EEREX

Promote Gender Mainstreaming under a Gender-sensitive Approach for =~ Hong Kong and China

the Enhancement of Gender Equality at Workplace (through reading 6 September 2018
presentation materials or trainings).
A Bl g Rk e 75 SR IB M R E AL - AE TAES AP (R RI T & BB RHE
(3838 B 8 B A L SRR o —ZE-)\FHANRAB
Measurable Objective in 2019 Timeline of the goal
20197zt E B ERRER
Promote a family friendly working culture to support employees with Before the end of 2019

family care responsibilities so as to bring diversity to workplace

(through reading presentation materials or trainings).
RERERENIEVEUAEERERBEENES - KEmlfeE —E-NEFEFEA

TES R % it CRIA BRI BB R M EHEIE ) -
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The summary of Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company has
been recommended by nomination committee members and
approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December 2018.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company is
summarized as follows:

° state the objectives of the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company, including ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company'’s business;

° emphasise the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board;

o set out the procedure for the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors containing the selection
criteria, including but not limited to considering the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

° set out other factors, such as the present needs of the
Board for particular expertise skills or experience and
whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, the
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates for independent
non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence
criteria or guidelines set out in the Listing Rules,
the suitability to the Company’s present needs for
particular skills or experience and whether it fits
with the Company’s culture, which are related to the
Company shall be considered to select a proposed
candidate;

o list the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures;
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° state the requirement of re-election of retirement of
non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) who have served for more
than 9 years; and

° state the board succession planning considerations
and periodical reviews of the plan.

The nomination committee will monitor the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company to ensure the
effectiveness and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for adoption.

The nomination committee will review the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company and disclose in this
report on the Board’s succession planning considerations
to achieve the objective to ensure that it remains relevant to
the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

Audit Committee

The audit committee has been established on 30 December
1998. At present, it consists of three members and all of
them are independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Law, Yui Lun
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
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Terms of reference of audit committee are summarised as
follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditor

i) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

iii) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the
audit commences;

iv) to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that
is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally;

v) to report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

Vi)

vii)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In reviewing these
reports (if applicable) before submission to the Board,
the audit committee should focus particularly on:

(@) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(b) major judgmental areas;
(c) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(d) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

() compliance with accounting standards; and

() compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

in regard to (vi) above:

(@) members of the audit committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management (if any);

(b) the audit committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s external auditor; and

() the audit committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the report and accounts,
it should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) (or
person occupying the same position), or external
auditor;
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Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems

viii)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

76

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board
risk committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors
(if any) or the professional firm performing internal audit
function and external auditor, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review and assess the annual internal audit plan of
the Company;

to provide comments and recommendations on the
enhancement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

to meet with the internal auditor (if any) or the
representative of the professional firm performing
internal audit function, if required, to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues or concerns relating to risk
management and internal control function;
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XV)

XVi)

XVii)

Xviii)

XiX)

XX)

XXi)

XXii)

XXiii)

EEAWME

to seek assurance from internal auditor or the
professional firm performing internal audit function that
internal control processes for risk management are in
place for the strategy determined by the Board;

to review the content of the confirmation made by the
management in relation to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by the external auditor
to management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. The audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor;

to report on all of the above matters in the code
provisions of the Code to the Board;

to consider any other matters specifically referred to
the audit committee by the Board;
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Corporate Governance Issues

xxiv) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, and implement the
corporate governance policies laid down by the Board;

xxv) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

xxvi) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and other related rules.

During the year under review, six audit committee meetings
were held and the attendance record of the audit committee
members at the meetings held during the year is set out in
the “Attendance Record” on page 58 of this report.

The works performed by the audit committee included:
(i) discussion on and review of the half year and annual
financial statements of the Group (including but not limited
to financial and accounting policies and practices); (ii)
meeting with the representatives of the professional firm
performing internal audit function (the internal auditor) to
discuss risk management process and the effectiveness
of internal control system of the Group and make
recommendations in relation thereto; (iii) review of the
findings in respect of the internal audit service together
with the recommendations to the Company; (iv) review of
the internal audit plan prepared by the internal auditor; (v)
review of the internal audit report on continuing connected
transaction of the Group; (vi) meeting with external auditor
in the absence of management to discuss any issue
arising from the audit and the other matters the external
auditor may raise; (vii) recommend the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as new external auditor of
the Group upon resignation of external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu; (viii) respond to the external auditor
their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud
affecting the Group; (ix) discuss matters in relation to the
compliance of law, rules and regulations, and accounting
policies and practice of the Group; and (x) review of the audit
service plan prepared by the external auditor.
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The audit committee members also discuss matters falling
within its terms of reference with the external auditor in
the presence of the financial controller and the Company
Secretary from time to time as they request. When there
are uncertainties or ambiguities in the interpretation of
accounting standards in preparing the half year and annual
accounts that may likely to materially impact on the financial
position of the Group, the Company will prepare certain
analysis explaining the situation in relation thereto for the
audit committee members consideration and understanding.
The audit committee members have full access to, and the
co-operation of, the Company’s management in ensuring
that it is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
system.

During the financial year of 2018, the audit committee
members had made valuable and positive contribution,
and delivered independent and informed comments for
the formulation and implementation of the Company’s
operational strategies and policies. Apart from meeting
with the internal auditor, the audit committee members had
also reviewed certain areas of the risk management and
internal control systems in accordance with the code of
corporate governance and reviewed the risk assessment
reports, required the management of the Group to confirm
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and advised them to pay attention to those areas
associated with high risks and take relevant measures to
further improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The concerns raised and discussed in
respect of risk assessment and internal control systems had
also been put forward to the Board to consider whether the
measures to mitigate those risks are effective and adequate
during the year under review.

A whistleblowing policy and system have been implemented
and set up since 22 March 2012 and revised on 1 August
2018 for employees and those who deal with the Company
(e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the audit committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining, reviewing and
monitoring risk management and internal control systems of
the Company and to ensure their effectiveness. We believe
effective risk management and internal control systems are
essential for the success of the operation of business and
good corporate governance. The Internal Control Manual,
which sets out the guidelines for the operation of the
internal control system and risk management system, had
been adopted by the Company since 1999. These systems
cover all main aspects, including financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management. In order to align
with the amendments made to relevant laws, rules and
regulations, and further improve the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board is responsible to review
and improve the systems from time to time, if necessary.

In fact, the Board has set out five objectives for the
management to achieve, details are as below:

1.  Maximise profitability by increasing the profit margin of
the business segment and at the same time minimize
the production costs

2. Maintain a strong cash flow position of the Group
3. Enhance product quality

4. Attract new customers and develop markets for each of
the business segments

5.  Full compliance with laws, rules and regulations and
financial reporting requirement

Hence, a risk assessment on the existing or potential risks
that may affect the achievement of the above objectives
would be conducted from time to time, at least twice a year
by the management during the course of business operation
and management.

The framework of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group:

Establish risk
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The Board ° Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
A take in achieving the Group’s objectives
HEMEBEEERASE B ERAEEEANRERIEE RIEE
° Maintain an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Company
HIFARFAEREMOERE RN ABEERL
° Delegate the responsibility to the management to design, implement
and assess the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group
ZIRERER - BRI EENRARERMA I EZEZR
° Delegate the responsibility to the audit committee to review and
oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group
ZREZZESABEENEBEAEBEEAREEMAMEIE RGN WL
ZEME
Audit Committee ° Perform the duties delegated by the Board, that is, review and oversee
EXEEE the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems

of the Group

BITEFERTHEE  IEENEERSERERERNAMLEZERGH

B

° Discuss with the internal auditor the major findings in respect of internal

audit services and review the annual internal audit plan

HEABZEBEMANRALEZREHEZFHEER - UEFHFAZABEZ

it

o Review the confirmation from the management of the Group and the

comments and recommendations from the internal auditor in relation to

the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control

systems prior to submission to the Board

BENAEEEEEAEEREFEAIRE AN N AMZEED 2 B R E
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Internal Auditor

AR B

Heads of core business
units/departments

BOEBEN BHEE

Perform internal control services for the Group
RAEBETAREZRE

Deliver internal audit reports to the audit committee and the Board
MEZZEGNEEFERIABEZRE

Meet with the audit committee members to discuss the major findings
and make recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group

HEZZEGNESH  finFEASARTRINEREERREEMN
NEBEL 1 R B2

Assess the risk level based on potential impact and likelihood of risks in
different aspects at least semi-annually

RO BFFRBECXENA] e G E TR EER 2 B REE
Identify the material risks and discuss measures to mitigate risks

78 ) B K L B 0 & e P 1K L B X0 4B e

Give a confirmation annually on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of its business unit/
department and submit it to the audit committee
BERRZAEBEN FFIzRAREEMABEZRROERME - Wi
RERHTEREZES
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Process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Two risk assessment meetings shall be held during each
year, at approximately half year intervals. The heads of the
core business units/departments of the Company and/or
its subsidiaries assessed the risk level based on potential
impact and likelihood of risks in different aspects including
business risk, financial risk, compliance risk and operational
and other risks that may be exposed to. They fill out the risk
assessment form which was devised with reference to the
guidance entitled “Internal Control and Risk Management
— A Basic Framework” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants before the meetings are
held. The Board members (mainly the executive Directors)
together with the management of the core business units/
departments of the Company and/or its subsidiaries
shall participate in the risk assessment meetings. The
meetings aim to identify the material risks and to discuss
the measures to manage risks. Besides, the status and
effectiveness on implementation of internal control
measures taken after the last risk assessment meeting will
be followed up in the risk assessment meetings.

Subject to the Code and terms of reference of the audit
committee of the Company, the management of each core
business unit/department of the Group will provide the
internal auditor with their written confirmation annually
in relation to the effectiveness and adequacy of their risk
management and internal control systems for further review,
comment and recommendation and thereafter the audit
committee will review the same prior to submission to the
Board. The internal auditor will base on the nature and
extent of the risks of each individual core business unit/
department to perform further review and recommendation.
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In addition to the above assessment process, the
management report and discuss at the monthly meeting on
the existing risk and potential risks of business operation
and cash flow positions of the Group has to face and monitor
respectively.

The Company has engaged Moore Stephens Advisory
Services Limited, as the internal auditor of the Company.
During the year, the internal auditor had (i) met with the
audit committee to discuss and provide recommendations
on improving the risk assessment process of the Group;
(ii) discussed the major findings in respect of internal
audit services with the audit committee and provided
recommendations for improvement on internal control; (iii)
delivered the audit committee the internal audit reports
regarding the main risk areas of the business segments of
the Group and internal audit plan in relation thereto; and (iv)
considered and reviewed, inter alia, the control procedures
regarding the continuing connected transaction entered
into by the Company and the handling and dissemination
of inside information of the Company, etc. Apart from
taking part in advising the maintenance of an effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems of
the Company, they also reviewed and monitored the internal
operation of the Group through the testing and controls
performed after arranging site visits of the two steel cord
plants.

On 11 March 2019, all relevant confirmations from the
management on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Company'’s risk management and internal controls systems
had been received. The audit committee members reviewed
the content of the confirmations and submitted the same
to the Board. The Board had reviewed and confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems at the Board meeting.
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In view of the foregoing, the Board had duly ensured
the review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
has been conducted at least annually and the Board
therefore considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group were effective and adequate
throughout the year of 2018. However, there is room for
improvement in certain areas, for instance, the measures
of managing operational and other risks, such as product
quality control and new product development.

Procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information

The Company complied with the Listing Rules, SFO and
other regulatory requirements regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information. Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirement. Directors and senior management of the
Company follow the guidelines stipulated in Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy of the Company which has
been adopted by the Board on 28 March 2011 and the latest
version was and approved by Board on 18 December 2018.
Some principles of dissemination of inside information of the
Company have been stated in the said policy, details are as
follows:

The heads of Business units/individual departments
identify and assess whether a potential event or transaction
may constitute inside information. If that is the case the
potential event or developing events should be reported
to the senior management of the Company, through the
Company Secretarial Department. The senior management
will consider with the Chairman/managing Director whether
the information constitute inside information and report to
the Board. The Board will consider whether the information
may constitute inside information and whether disclosure
and/or trading halt would be required. If this constitutes
inside information, the Company Secretarial Department of
the Company would have to arrange for trading halt, prepare
and publish an announcement after approval by the Board.
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Below flow chart illustrates the internal control and reporting

EEAWME

system of the Company relating to inside information:
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Heads of Business units/individual departments to identify and assess whether
potential or developing events may constitute inside information*
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If yes, report to senior management of the
Company (the usual channel is through the
Company Secretary of the Company)
ME - BRESSREERE (—REBAAD
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A ARWE

Responsible senior management to consider with the Chairman/managing Director
whether the information may constitute inside information

HEE/ BREERRESR LESAREZELANRE

BB ARIER

y

A

If yes, report to the Board with supporting documents
through the channel of Company Secretarial Department
of the Company. The Company Secretarial Department to
consider potential disclosure implications (with assistance
of legal counsel if appropriate) and arrange for collating and
circulation of relevant information to the Board for further
consideration
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The Board to consider whether the information may constitute inside information and
whether disclosure and/ or request of trading halt would be required
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If yes, the Company Secretarial Department of
the Company to arrange for trading halt and/or
preparation of announcement

QDT?E ! Z'K T/L\\_J*%iﬁl;ﬂ%§ﬁFEERH 4El HE&/_(A——E %/

REUSESENIER  REEE

Trading halt is made and announcement is published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange after approval by the Board
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The Head of Business units/individual department can consult *
the functional departments of the Company, if he/she has any
query about whether the information may constitute inside

information
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Directors or employees of the Group in possession of the
inside information must maintain strict confidentiality of
unpublished inside information until it is announced and
ensure this is the strictest security of the information is
observed within the Company and its advisers and if the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained,
an announcement shall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable; or if inside information has been advertently
divulged, an announcement shall be issued immediately so
as to disseminate such information to the market as a whole.

The Board monitors the inside information disclosure having
regard to the SFO and Listing Rules requirements and the
Company ensure that the dissemination of inside information
to the Shareholders and other stakeholders is dealt fairly
in order to avoid any person having a privileged dealing
position.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In order to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practice and be in line with the recent change of the
Corporate Governance Code Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules which has stipulated a new code provision E.1.5
of the Code requiring all listed issuers to disclose its
dividend policy in their annual reports, the dividend policy
of the Company has been adopted by the Board on 18
December 2018, which includes setting standard rules and
guidelines to be followed by the Board in deciding whether
to recommend dividend out of the profits and the amount
of dividend per share to be distributed. The objective of the
dividend policy is to reward its Shareholders by sharing a
portion of the profits, while also ensure that enough funds
are retained for future prospects of the Company and strive
for a balance between the growth of the Company and the
benefits of the Shareholders.
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When considering the decision on dividend declaration, we
will take into account both the internal factors and external
factors.

For internal factors, we will consider the (i) profitability of
the Company; (ii) liquidity position and the availability of free
cash flow; (iii) capital requirements for growth plans of the
Company which may require funds preservation and internal
funds generation, both internal and external; (iv) investment
opportunities available with the Company; (v) borrowing
capacity of the Company so as to capture any growth
opportunities, inorganic or otherwise; (vi) ability to receive
dividend from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates;
and (vii) Shareholder’s expectation of a profitable return
on their investment to maintain their investment in the
Company.

For external factors, we will consider the (i) statutory and
regulatory requirements and restrictions on the dividend
distributions; (ii) contractual restrictions/restrictions in
debt covenants which affect the Company’s ability to pay
dividends; (iii) prevailing economic climate in the global
including the PRC that will affect the availability of profits
for dividend; (iv) emerging trends in the financial market and
business cycle of steel cord business that will affect the
growth and performance of the steel cord industry; and (v)
taxation consideration.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute
discretion in line with the dividend policy, or if the Board
are justified by the profits of the Company available for
distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes (if applicable), the Directors may pay interim
dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred
rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which
confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no
interim dividend shall be paid on shares carrying deferred
or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrears.
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The Directors may also pay at intervals settled by them any
dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them that the
profits available for distribution justify the payment.

The Board of the Company may recommend quantum of
final dividend payable to the Shareholders at its annual
general meeting in line with the dividend policy, subject
to the approval of the Shareholders in the annual general
meeting, based on the aforesaid factors arrived at as per the
audited financial statements.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of (i) cash; or (ii) a
scrip dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly
in (i) above. The Company may offer the Shareholders the
option of receiving scrip shares in lieu of cash, which may
enable the Shareholders to increase their investment in the
Company without incurring brokerage fees.

The Company shall endeavor to maintain a reasonable
dividend payout ratio, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, subject to (i) capital needs of the Company; (ii)
positive operating cash flows; and (iii) other financial factors
enumerated in the dividend policy. The Company may
recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The dividend policy shall be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company. The disclosure is expected to allow investors
to make a more informed decision when investing in the
Company.

The dividend policy would be subject to revision and
amendment under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
from time to time. The Company reserves its right to alter,
modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of the
said policy.
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In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under the said policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc. shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and the said policy shall stand
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.

The dividend policy does not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time, but only represents
a general guidance and information purpose regarding the
dividend policy. The Board reserves the right to depart from
and amend the said policy as and when circumstances so
warrant.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid/
payable to the external auditor in respect of their audit and
non-audit services to the Group were as follows:

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, which was appointed with
effect from 1 August 2018 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
resigned on the same date, amounted to HK$1,495,000
for audit services for audit of annual financial statements
and HK$428,000 for non-audit services comprising fees for
interim review of the condensed financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards to enable the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. The Directors will subject to statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards, select suitable
accounting policies and apply them consistently, make
prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Group. She reports to the Board chairman
and/or managing Director. During the year, the Company
Secretary of the Company has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. In order to maintain
an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders, the Company has
opportunities to directly communicate with Shareholders at
various annual general meetings and other general meetings
where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend. In
addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the 2018 annual general meeting (the “2018
AGM?”). The external auditor had also attended the 2018
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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Procedures for members/shareholders to convene
a general meeting (“GM”)

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Directors are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from members/shareholders of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/shareholders having a right to vote
at GM.

The request:

(a)

(d)

92

must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

may be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

may consist of several documents in like form;

must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

must be verified with the share registrar of the
Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary of the Company will notify the Board to
convene a GM by serving proper notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members/shareholders of the Company. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in
order, the requesting members/shareholders will be
informed of this outcome and accordingly, a GM will
not be convened as requested.
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Procedures for members/shareholders and other
stakeholders to send enquires and concerns to the
Board

Members/shareholders and other stakeholders
are invited to access the Company’s website at
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send
enquires and concerns to the Board:

(@) by post at the registered office of the Company situated
at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary; or

(b) by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk for the
attention of our Investor Relations section; or

(¢) by filling out the sign up form on the Company’s
website if they would like to be kept up-to-date on the
latest information of the Company.

The Company will make response to their questions
through their required communication channels or deliver
the relevant material directly to their email as soon as the
information becomes available online and make necessary
arrangement for direction of enquires to the Board, if
required.

The Company Secretary forwards communications relating
to matters within the Board’s purview to the independent
non-executive Directors, communications relating to matters
within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chair
of the appropriate committee, and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquires
and complaints, to the appropriate Company’s executive.

Members/shareholders and other stakeholders can read
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy at the Company’s
website for details and, effectiveness communication. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was further revised
on 23 September 2014 to maintain candid and constructive
communications with Shareholders and potential investors.
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Procedures for members/shareholders to put
forward proposals at annual general meetings
(“AGM”)

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if a
company is required to hold an AGM under Section 610, the
members/shareholders of the company may request to give,
to members/shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting.

The Company must give notice of a resolution if it has
received requests that it do so from:

(@)

the members/shareholders of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the members/shareholders who have a right to vote
on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests
relate; or

at least 50 members/shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests
relate.

The request:

(@)
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must be sent to the registered office of the Company at
Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip
Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given;

must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate;
or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.
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The written request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar who will check if the written request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will notify the Board for
including the resolution in the agenda for AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member/shareholder of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

If the request has been verified as not in order for the said
purposes, the members/shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.

Shareholders’ power to request circulation of
statement

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a
member/shareholder of the Company may request the
Company to circulate, to members/shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a
matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with
at that meeting or other business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The Company is required to circulate the statement
if it has received requests to do so from the members/
shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote or at least 50 members/shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote.

The aforesaid members/shareholders’ requests (i) may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company, at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour
Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong or
in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;
(ii) must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which it relates.
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Pursuant to Section 581 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 580 to circulate
a statement must send a copy of it to each member/
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting in the same manner as the notice of the
meeting and at the same time as or as soon as reasonably
practicable after it gives notice of the meeting. The expenses
of the Company in complying with the Section 581 need
not be paid by the members/shareholders who requested
the circulation of the statement if the meeting to which the
requests relate is an AGM of the Company; and the requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement
are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy
of the statement at the same time as it give notice of the
meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company puts a high regard for the aspect of investor
relations and recognises that establishment of investor
relations can enhance its transparency, maximize its value
and increase investors’ understanding of and trust in the
Company. Therefore, the management, as requested
may meet with Shareholders, potential and institutional
investors and research analysts. The management will also
provide them with the information of the latest business
development of the Group and answer their queries subject
to the revise of the Continuous Disclosure Obligation
Policy (the “Policy”) adopted with effect from 10 December
2018 to be in line with the up-to-date ordinances, rules
and regulations and to enhance the standard of corporate
governance practice. The Policy is to help and provide
guidance to the Directors and employees of the Group to
fulfill their obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO
while allowing them to actively inform the market of the
Company development as well as how to make judgement
as to what inside information is and when disclosure
is required. The corresponding presentation materials
subject to the Policy are made available upon request, if
appropriate. The procedures for handling and dissemination
of inside information have been illustrated under the heading
“RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” above.
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In order to further promote a sound communication
between the public, the Company fully utilises its website
(http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk) as a means to provide
the latest and updated information in a timely manner, and
from time to time enhances the homepage of the website to
reflect its current business development. Also, the Company
Secretarial Department of the Company will respond to
the telephone enquiries and email or correspondences
from Shareholders or investors in respect of various issues
subject to the Policy. Any opinions, views and suggestions of
Shareholders will be solicited and brought to the attention of
the Board and management, if necessary.

During the year, the 2018 AGM was held on 18 May 2018 to
approve ordinary and special businesses of annual general
meeting. The resolutions of 2018 AGM were duly passed by
way of poll.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 147 to 293.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model and strategy

Our mission is to be one of the top tier steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality steel cords and
wire products; and the evolution into a diversified metal
product manufacturer benefiting from a successful “Eastern”
brand recognition in the PRC and worldwide markets. Our
ultimate goal is to maintain long term profitability, deliver
sustainable growth in our stakeholders’ value under a
prudent and manageable capital structure and contribute to
the economic and social development of the communities in
which we operate.

The Board is responsible for the development of business
models and setting of strategies, planning and development
of the Group. The strategies adopted by the Board will be
executed by the managing Director who will motivate the
staff to achieve the designated business goals and financial
targets under risk tolerance levels prescribed by the Board.
The progress of implementation of the strategies and
business goals will be reviewed and adjusted to respond to
the constantly changing market environment. Corrective and
follow-up actions are made regularly at the Board and/or
other management meetings throughout the years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Review of operations

The Group recorded net loss of HK$8,681,000 for the
year in compared with net loss of HK$68,518,000 from
previous year. Further details in respect of the fair review
of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
“CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial
position may be affected by risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. These risks and uncertainties
could result in the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial position to defer materially from expected or
historical results. The risks and uncertainties set out below
are known to the Group during the year under review:

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s

business operations

1. As the majority of sales of steel cords of the Group
are domestic, the business and prospect of Steel cord
segment is therefore highly dependent on the economic
performance of the PRC, in particular, the performance
of automotive and transportation industries and
those that involve high volume of road transportation
for commercial and industrial purposes, such as
property development and import/export. Therefore,
any downturn in the economy of the PRC may cause
lower demand for steel cords and hence may have
material adverse impact to the operations of Steel cord
segment. Despite majority of the Group’s customers
are radial tyre manufacturers located in the PRC,
however their customers, the vehicle manufacturers
that are located in the U.S. are affected by the Sino-
US trade debacle that has weighed in market sentiment
and tariff hike.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
business operations (continued)

2.

100

The average selling price of steel cords increased
during the year under review, attributable to the relief in
over capacity situation of steel cord industry together
with the introduction of new products, effective product
mix and effort in expansion of exports. The selling price
of steel cords is highly dependent on the supply and
demand situation in the PRC; therefore, any change
in these two factors will have material impact to the
performance of Steel cord segment.

The copper products sold by Copper and brass
products segment are mainly used in industries and
consumer products. The revenue of this segment is
highly susceptible to changes in global economic and
financial conditions and purchasing power, which will
have significant impact to the business of this segment.

The selling price of the products sold by Copper and
brass products segment are determined with reference
to prevailing international copper price, which is
beyond the control of the Group. Any significant
change to the copper price will have palpable impact to
the revenue of this segment.

As the Copper and brass products business has begun
retracting since latter part of 2017 and the closure
of PRC manufacturing plant in September 2018, the
cost involved in loss of disposal of fixed assets, below
market price of clearance sale of remaining inventory,
redundancy expenses of staff and other expenses,
which will have significant impact to the business of
this segment.

The revenue from sales to top five customers of the
Group accounted for 48.2% of total revenue of the
Group for the year under review. Any change to the
business operations, financial conditions or purchasing
patterns of these customers may have adverse impact
to the revenue of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
business operations (continued)

Certain measures to manage the impact on these potential
risks and uncertainties are described in the heading
“BUSINESS REVIEW” of the section of the “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s

results and financial position

1. The following factors may have negative impact on the
revenue and net results of the Group:

a. Change in the mix of revenue contributions, such
as the income of Steel cord segment from sales of
steel cord for truck tyres, off the road truck tyres
and passenger car tyres;

b. Unfavorable economic development in the PRC
and worldwide markets that may have negative
impact on our Steel cord segment;

c. Increased market and price competition for both
Steel cord segment; and

d. Failure to reduce production and operating costs,
in particular, certain unit fixed production costs
of Steel cord segment which are expected to
be lowered by increase in sales and production
volume.

TERBMAAREEGE)

ARAEEREERWRAMMTBERREE
()
BIEEEENRBR I TRAEREE RN E
CETHEBEEAFERI EEBWMME D] —
Birp [ EEE 2Rt -

B A SE B 2 SR A I B H551R 05 A9 o B A R

BRI =

1. THIRERAIEH AN EEEZ XBNFEN
BEREXE

a. SEBEBAEGNEL - flnHE
BoWIREAREERE - TIEHK
B ERE 2 MEREEOIK
A

b. ‘:F‘lﬂﬁi‘;. ui‘@m%mﬂ_ﬁmi&/@
ERAIeSHNERSMENEE
23

c. HERRD B2 TIHMERHFIE
me R

d. REREEEMLERLN  FilZ
i e 4 ?’\*Bﬁﬁ%ﬁtlﬁmuiFEX
AR ABBIRINHENEES
HFRE -

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 101



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

2.

102

The Group had HK$296,864,000 (approximately
27.0%) of interest bearing borrowings at 31 December
2018 that are at floating rates, therefore the Group’s
finance costs and interest expenses in respect of
these borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interest
rates. The Group’s borrowings in Hong Kong are
denominated in HKD, and bear interest rate at a margin
above Hong Kong interbank offered rates. In respect
of the Group’s borrowings in RMB, the interest rates
are mainly determined by the benchmark lending rates
of the People’s Bank of China. Any increase in these
benchmark interest rates in the future will increase
the interest expenses of the Group. In addition to the
changes in these benchmark lending rates which will
not only affect the Group’s borrowings, the margin on
costs of borrowings of the Group will also be affected
by changes in availability of funding and prevailing
interest rate of the credit market. Any change in the
interest rate in connection with the currencies the
Group borrows will increase the Group’s finance costs,
and therefore will have adverse impact to the results of
operations and financial position of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

3.

The majority of the revenue of the Group is
denominated in RMB, while approximately 45.6%
of the interest bearing borrowings of the Group
at 31 December 2018 was in HKD. Attributable
to the depreciation of the exchange rate of RMB
by approximately 4.8% (2017: appreciation of
approximately 6.7%) against HKD during the year
under review, the Group incurred net foreign exchange
loss of HK$20,771,000 (2017: net foreign exchange
gain of HK$24,158,000) for the year. Hence, any
movement of the exchange rate of RMB will have
material impact to the results of operations of the
Group. Furthermore, the results and financial position
of the Group are denominated in RMB but presented in
HKD for reporting purposes, therefore, the movement
of the exchange rate of RMB will have impact to the
financial position of the Group when translating the
Group’s results and financial position into HKD.

The Group is required to conduct an impairment
assessment on its property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. Any future impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed depends on
various factors including the general economic and
financial conditions, market competitions, prevailing
product selling price and market interest rates. Such
impairment loss to be recognised or reversed will have
material impact to the results of the Group, however,
it is a non-cash item and therefore will not affect the
future business operations and financial conditions of
the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

5.

104

The Group utilized a certain extent of borrowings
to finance its operations. As at 31 December 2018,
the gearing ratio of the Group was 71.4%, and
the percentage of borrowings due within one year
accounted for 75.8% of total borrowings of the Group,
therefore the Group will be exposed to the liquidity
risks of inability of repaying these borrowings when
due. The Group is expected to service the debt
repayments due in 2019 by utilizing cash generated
from its operations and refinancing from banks and
other sources, with an objective to gradually reduce the
amount of interest bearing borrowings of the Group.
However, the Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash
to service its outstanding debts and obligations will
depend on the operating performance of its various
business segments in the future, which will be affected
by factors such as the prevailing economic and liquidity
conditions, the demand of its products and prevailing
selling prices. Whether the Group can refinance its
borrowings also depends on a number of factors,
including the operating performance and financial
conditions of the Group, the prevailing economic
conditions, the prevailing credit policy of respective
lender and the liquidity of the financial markets. If
the Group is unable to service any of its borrowings
due in 2019, this may result in a default and will have
significant adverse impact to the financial position of
the Group as the Group will be requested to repay full
or part of its outstanding borrowings on an accelerated
basis. The management of the Company is seeking for
various banks refinancing to mitigate these potential
risks.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are summarised
as follows:

MBERRAER
AKERBE-F—N\FN-F &+ A
=t-RLEEOTBERRERREREAD
T

2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —T—+F 2E
1. Current ratio (times) TRENEL R (fF) 1.19 1.17 N/ATEHR
2. Liquid ratio (times) MEE L E(E) 1.01 1.00 N/ATEH
3. Gearing ratio (%) BELEE(%) 71.4 56.0  +15.4pp
4. Average turnover period on JEUER SR FH A (R)
trade receivables (days) 97 94 +3
5.  Percentage of past due trade BEEKESE D (%)
receivables (%) 24.6 23.2 +1.4pp
6. Average turnover period on FEFHRAEER(K)
inventories (days) 58 51 +7
7. Average turnover period on trade FEN BRI EER(K)
payables (days) 108 94 +14
8. Steel cord production capacity MEEREREMAE(%)
utilisation ratio (%) 97.0 94.0 +3pp
Current ratio TEhEE X

Current ratio (calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities) of the Group was 1.19 times at 31 December 2018,
slightly higher than 1.17 times at 31 December 2017.

Liquid ratio

Liquid ratio (calculated as current assets less inventories
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.01 times
at 31 December 2018, slightly higher than 1.00 time at 31
December 2017.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (included pledged bank
deposits) divided by Shareholders’ equity) of the Group
increased from 56.0% at 31 December 2017 to 71.4% at
31 December 2018. The higher gearing ratio was due to
the overall interest bearing borrowings increased by 4%
while the bank balances and cash (included pledged bank
deposits) decreased at a higher ratio.

Average turnover period of trade receivables
Average turnover period on trade receivables (calculated as
average trade receivables for the year (exclusive of value-
added tax in respect of sales in the PRC) divided by gross
revenue times 365 days) was 97 days for the year, longer by
3 days as compared to 94 days for the previous year.

Percentage of past due trade receivables

The percentage of past due trade receivables (calculated as
the amount of past due trade receivables divided by total
amount of trade receivables) was 24.6% at 31 December
2018, increased by 1.4 percentage points as compared to
23.2% at 31 December 2017.

Average turnover period on inventories

Average turnover period on inventories (calculated as
average amount of inventories for the year divided by cost of
sales times 365 days) was 58 days for the year, longer by 7
days as compared to 51 days for the previous year.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

Average turnover period on trade payables

Average turnover period on trade payables (calculated as
average trade payables for the year divided by cost of sales
(exclusive of value-added tax in respect of cost of sales in
the PRC) times 365 days) was 108 days for the year, which
was 14 days longer as compared to 94 days for the previous
year, as we obtained longer credit period from certain
suppliers of the Group during the year.

Steel cord production capacity utilization ratio

As the sales volume of steel cords recorded an year-on-year
growth of 6.3% to 184,910 tonnes for the year, therefore the
capacity utilization ratio in respect of Steel cord segment
(calculated as total sales volume of steel cords for the
year divided by total production capacity of steel cords
of 190,208 tonnes per annum) increased from 94% in the
previous year to 97% for the year.

Further details regarding the above and other financial
information, please refer to the section “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report. Key
performance indicators mean factors by reference to which
the development, performance or position of the business
of the Group can be measured effectively which we can
use to monitor progress against our strategies while figures
reporting under accounting standards could not serve such
purpose.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges
facing by the Chinese economy, the performance of the
steel cord industry might be affected unless a strong
cash flow is maintained as well as cost saving and risk
mitigation measures are implemented in order. Details of
future development of the Company’s business, please
refer to the sections “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
the environment and community in which it engages by
controlling and minimizing the generation of wastes, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges, and at the same
time, complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage,
waste gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong
Kong and PRC during the production process.

In order to attach the importance to environmental
protection, the Group has formally adopted an
Environmental Policy (the“Policy”) since 2017, which has
already been implemented all along as part of the Internal
Control Manual. The underlying principle of the Policy is to
reduce, reuse and recycle resources used in the production
lines and offices so as to mitigate wastes and use energy
and resources effectively. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group and are monitored from
time to time, for example, measures on effective energy
conservation to reduce the use of energy, water and other
resources; measures on managing the reduction of waste
and greenhouse gas emissions, etc. had been taken and
complied with since 2015. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is set
out in the 2018 ESG Report.

In addition to the above measures, further trainings are
provided to Directors and employees to emphasize the
importance of environmental protection and to promote
occupational health and safety in offices and production
lines. These measures and trainings taken and provided by
the Group in supporting the Policy are based on the needs
and actual circumstances of the Group and will be reviewed
by the management annually.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to comply with the laws and
regulations in which it operates its businesses. During the
year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws
such as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO,
Employment Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, we have also
complied with laws of the PRC, including the Company Law
of the PRC ({FEIA&’%)), Labour Law of the PRC ({#FE
48)5%)), Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({FFE &4 [
5%)), Enterprise Annuities Fund Measures ({1 ¥F & 9%)),
relevant laws, rules and regulations in relation to child and
forced labour including the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour ((ZIL{FAEZ T 7E )) and the Law
of the PRC on the Protection of Minors (& Bl & X & AR
i#7%)), as well as other environmental laws, relevant rules,
ordinances and regulations on the prevention and control of
wastage, waste gases and sewage emission. These laws,
ordinances and regulations include but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({1 BIR 15 {7 #
%)), the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC ({38
IR # %)), the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution of the PRC (Bl K& )5 2 Fi/8)%)), the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC (R El/K}5
#5787%)), the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Product Eco-
responsibility Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard
for Surface Water ({ih X 7K IR 3% i & 12 % ) ), Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers (57K
PEAS R T GBI E 1Z %)), Measures for Hazardous Waste
Operation Administration ({fEREMEEREET EIHE)) and
Solid Wastes of Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({#
[ [ B2 B )5 IR 35 )AL )) etc.. These environmental laws
will have impact on the Group’s operation since if we do not
dispose all wastages, discharges and waste gases properly,
we might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax
and so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS (continued)

Furthermore, the Group has started to attach more
importance to gender equality and the protection of
women’s interests, as well as on the compliance with the
related laws of Hong Kong such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, which the underlying principle is also enshrined
in the Basic Law, and related laws of PRC such as the Law
on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests ({f# &
#251%25%)) and Special Rules on the Labour Protection of
Female Employees ({Z i LA ENRZERFIAETE)). To acquire
further knowledge on this topic, we have nominated a
representative to participate in activities related to gender
equality and gender mainstreaming such as participating in
Seminar on Gender Mainstreaming to unleash potential in
the workplace (the “Seminar”) organised by the Women'’s
Commission (An organization which actively engages
in activities in relation to women empowerment and
advancement) in 2018 for the purpose of understanding
the current role and status of women in business sector
and different parties’ concerns on gender mainstreaming.
In the light of the need to address these issues and to put
our knowledge into practice, the “Policy on Prevention on
Sexual Harassment at Workplace”has been formulated as
a way of the Company to show respect to our employees,
especially female employees.

The Group also notes the importance on human resource
management in which the respresentative of the Company
has learnt from the Seminar that good human resource
management on effective communication when handling
verbal violence at work and such message has been
conveyed. In addition, a new measureable objectives of
2019 has been adopted by the Board to promote a family
friendly working culture to support employees with family
care responsibilities so as to bring diversity to workplace.
Further discussion on human resource management is also
contained in the 2018 ESG Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS (continued)

To ensure compliance with these requirements of laws, rules
and regulations, the Company has implemented an effective
internal control and approval procedures, and to obtain high
level oversight of the operation of various business units.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and/or
business units of the Group immediately. Certain discussion
regarding the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
is also contained in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” section on pages 53 to 97 of this annual report
and the 2018 ESG Report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The Group’s success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise employees, customers,
suppliers, Shareholders, government and regulators, as well
as banks and financial institutions (creditors).

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been
serving the Group for a long period of time. However,
young talents are also provided with opportunities to work
in the Group. The Group does not only offers competitive
salaries and benefits, but also provides training programmes
or courses for the Mainland employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees of
the Company in order to further enhance their management
skills, expertise and knowledge, and at the same time, make
continual contribution to the Group. Different activities such
as celebration of Chinese New Year, celebration of the 10th
anniversary since operation of steel cord plant of TESC,
TESC’s safety quiz competition as well as annual dinner,
celebration of staff’s birthday and celebration of office
relocation of Shanghai office had been organized by various
business units of the Group for general staffs together with
the management to participate in order to strengthening
their partnership and communication.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Customers

The major customers of Steel cord segment are the radial
tyres manufacturers. Most of them have been customers for
more than 5 years and in return of their loyalty, we provide
them with good quality products and after-sale services.

Suppliers

The major suppliers of Steel cord segment are the steel
wire rod suppliers. We have co-operated with most of the
suppliers for more than 5 years and have maintained good
relationship with them through regular face-to-face meetings
and visits in order to achieve cost-effectiveness and obtain
long-term commercial benefits.

Shareholders

The ultimate operational goal of the Group is to maximize
our Shareholders’ return. The major Shareholders are
Shougang Group and its controlled corporations, Bekaert
and Li Ka Shing Foundation and minority Shareholders. It is
grateful to have Shareholders who are being supportive to
the Group for a long period of time in particular the times
when market conditions are adverse and challenging.

To set standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the
Board in deciding whether to recommend dividend out of the
profits to reward the Shareholders, the dividend policy of the
Company has been adopted by the Board on 18 December
2018, Details of which is contained in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” section on pages 53 to 97 of this
annual report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Government and Regulators

Decisions made by the government and regulators can
significantly affect our Group’s operations. It is important,
therefore, for us to maintain good relationships with
local officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or
community developments that may affect our business.
In view of the need to maintain good relationships, we
have arranged occasional visits and face-to-face meetings
whenever necessary.

Banks and Financial Institutions (Creditors)

Banks and financial institutions are lenders of our Group
who help us to finance our businesses, asset purchases and
supply purchases. As a trustworthy borrower, we always
try our best to meet every payment deadlines responsibly
and consistently, and at the same time, we strive to improve
our financial performance so that we have a greater chance
to receive quality financing in the future. Through regular
meetings and visits, we have maintained stable relationships
with them.

For further details regarding the above, please refer to the
sections “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”
and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this annual
report and the section “STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT
AND MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT” in the 2018 ESG Report.

HEIEHNENEERGE)

BREREEHE

BUFMEE B ML AR ERT S U AEE N
LEELBEAYE At RMALAEEHE
BRI RIFBIER - UTRET A RE @ ERMER
MZRIEEEFIHRER - IFEERER
HRBEE  BMLERSBBREMBFIFD
MEM °

MITREBEE(EEN)
ERAEENERA @ RITNSREIBERMAE
TAEPRMERBNRER  BEEEMMUE -
MEREBERNERA - AEE—EE NI
BEENREREN BN AR SEM KR A
B B BB HREMBRR G INE
AREFSEEREN AN - ZPITSBBE
HiemMED 2 PRFRENBRE -

BRLAZE-—FER FR2HAFHZ(E
BEWLR DM EEERRE I ZEHL -
Z-N\FERE HeghBEREZ [HMHE
28 BRI FE -

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 113



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group, is set out below:

MBERRBE

LAT?%ZKEIEALiﬂfIHﬁEAZiFZE“i
CBERRERE  ZFEHREEAE
ZREZIR MRS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —tF —F-RF ik —mE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI A%t BETT  BE%Trn BT
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N4 JE (E518 ) i Fl (8,681) (68,518) 10,103 (376,985) (275,774)
TOTAL ASSETS BERTE 3,414,467 3,444,076 3,037,042 3,006,147 3,610,120
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEERE (2,075,317) (2,052,548) (1,715,077) (1,610,277) (1,748,238)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY IR 1,339,150 1,391,628 1,321,965 1,395,870 1,861,882
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, REYERYYL  BERSDE
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the investment properties and RE .2&;@%%&%% W E MR ERAE
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the  EZ#&FE D RIEH IS GRS 5
year are set out in notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the 1617 o

consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2018 are summarised on page 294 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. Share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of issue. No share options were granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Scheme. Details of
share options of the 2002 Scheme are set out under the
headings “EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT”, “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE
SFO” hereunder and in note 34 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 151 of this
annual report and in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made certain amount of
charitable donations.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
(re-designated as Chairman on 18 January 2018 and
appointed as Managing Director on 31 January 2018)

Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Deputy Managing Director)
Liao Jun (Non-executive Director)
Yip Kin Man, Raymond

(Independent Non-executive Director)
Law, Yui Lun (Independent Non-executive Director)
Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Shaofeng (resigned as Chairman on 18 January 2018)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony

(retired as Non-executive Director on 18 May 2018)
Yang Kaiyu

(resigned as Managing Director on 31 January 2018)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with articles 101 and 102 of the Articles.
Messrs. Su Fanrong, Tang Cornor Kwok Kau and Liao Jun
will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Messrs. Yang Kaiyu N1 Su Fanrong and Tang Cornor Kwok
Kau serve as directors of all subsidiaries of the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report. Other than
the above directors, the persons who serve/had served as
directors of subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and/or up to the date of this report include Messrs. Cheung
Ngai, Tam Yui Ki N2 and Yu Zhigao.

Note 1: Mr. Yang Kaiyu resigned as the directors of all subsidiaries of
the Company with effect from 31 January 2018.
Note 2: Mr. Tam Yui Ki resigned as the directors of Hing Cheong

Metals (China & Hong Kong) Limited, Meta International
Limited, Rise Boom International Limited, JESC, TESC, Wei
Hua International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and e B H
£ B[R /AF] (the subsidiaries of the Company) with effect from
20 June 2018.

The list of subsidiaries of the Company is set out in the note
13 “PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES” to the financial statements
and below.

° Rise Boom International Limited
o Clear Vision Investments Limited
o Efficient Investments Limited

° Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

° Online Investments Limited

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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° Rise Boom International Limited
e  Clear Vision Investments Limited
e  Efficient Investments Limited

° Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

e Online Investments Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Apart from information disclosed under the heading
“DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO” and in note 34 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond and Law, Yui Lun have
served the Board for more than nine years. Messrs. Yip and
Law have not engaged in any executive management of
the Group and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and Mr. Law, when
he was Certified Public Accountant (Practising), and their
respective family members have never provided any service
to the Group. They believe their familiarity and extensive
experience with the Company’s business may place them
in a better position to contribute independent views to the
Company and continue to demonstrate a firm commitment
to their role. Taking into consideration of their independent
scope of works and their high integrity when performing
duties as independent non-executive Directors over the past
years, there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on their independence.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme and
details of movements in the Company’s share options
during the year are set out under the heading “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE
SFO” hereunder and in note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2018, save for the interest of the
Directors in the Shares and share options of the Company
set out as below, none of the Directors had any interests
and short positions in the Shares, debentures or underlying
Shares or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
therein or which were required to be disclosed herein
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Long position in Shares

(a) Ordinary Shares of the Company

Total number of

BRERZRMERIEZRKRG - &
EEDEERD <R RXE(E)

RBRGB2HR

(a) &4

Az EER

Approximate % of

the total number

Capacity in which

Name of Director Shares held of issued Shares interests are held
HIL2RITRG
ESHE FEROAH HEBEEARALE BFEEZZEH
Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (“Mr. Tang”) 10,000,000 0.52 Beneficial owner
Note (i)
BBk ([ B4 D) ExlEAA
g ()
Notes: B AE -

(i) Those Shares were beneficially owned by Mr. Tang and in
which of 200,000 Shares were also jointly owned by his
wife.

(i)  Mr. Li Shaofeng (“Mr. Li”) resigned as the executive
Director and chairman on 18 January 2018. As at 17
January 2018 (Mr. Li’s last day of being a director of the
Company), 7,652,000 Shares were held by Mr. Li, which is
approximately 0.39% of the total number of issued Shares.

(i)  Mr. Yang Kaiyu (“Mr. Yang”) resigned as the managing
Director and executive Director on 31 January 2018. As at
30 January 2018 (Mr. Yang’s last day of being a director of
the Company), 3,596,000 Shares were beneficially owned
by Mr. Yang’s wife, which is approximately 0.18% of the
total number of issued Shares.

(iv)  Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony (“Mr. Leung”) retired at the
annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018 and did not
offer himself for re-election. As at 18 May 2018 (Mr. Leung’s
last day of being a director of the Company), 7,652,000
Shares were held by Mr. Leung, which is approximately
0.39% of the total number of issued Shares.

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ZEBROMEBELEEREARASP
200,000/ fp A E F HFGEA -

FTLBEE(TFEE)R =T —N\F—
ATNBBIHTEEHREER - R=Z
—NF-—A+ER(ZE4EBE—REE
KARES)  FhAFHFT,652,000H%
B OBEEAARBEITRMEHE W
0.39% °

HBRFEE(BEENDR=2Z—NF—A
=T HEAEFHLEERATESF - ©
—E-N\F-A=ZFTRH(BLEERE—X
EEARQNAIESE) 3,596,000 1% 15
CEZETESHE  WARARIBHT
B9 45 %0 B #90.18% ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR

UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO

(continued)

BRERZRMERIEZRKRG - &
EEDEERD <R RXE(E)

Long position in Shares (continued) Rt zHe (&)
(b) Share options (b) BRE
As at 31 December 2018, there were no outstanding RZE—\F+_A=+—"H8 BE=
share options of the Company granted to Directors EZE _HEEORTESEZ2ARAER
under 2002 Scheme, details of which are summarised B MRERETEZ AR EERE
as follows: BB T
Options to subscribe for Shares
TRERDZERE
Number of Number of Number of
outstanding Number of Number of ~ share options outstanding Approximate
share options ~ share options ~ share options lapsed/ share options % of
held at granted exercised cancelled held at Exercise  Capacity in the total
the beginning during during during Date of the end of Date of Exercise  priceper  which interests number of
Name of Director of the year the year the year the year exercise the year grant period Share  are held issued shares
a2 ERE ERBEZ RTRE G
HAMTE FARE  ERBAE  RHN/EE HATHE Bk #ERR RipE#E
E2f BREZR  BREEE  BREER  BRAER fRAM  BREHE  RAEH  GEER  TEE 258 ZEfl
Note (i) HK$
fist) 2
Mr. Tang 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - - 28/1/2008 28/1/2008 to 0864 Beneficial owner 0.52
Note (i) 27/1/2018 e 2N
Bk HFEE(i) 28/1/2008%
21112018
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (“Mr. 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) - - 28/1/2008 28/1/2008 to 0.864  Beneficial owner 0.09
Yip') Note (i 21112018 EafAA
ES(ES %) HTEE() 28/1/2008%
2112018
Law, Yui Lun (*Vr. Law’) 1,800,000 - - (1800000) - - 28/1/2008 28/1/2008to 0864  Bensficial owner 009
Note (i) 21/1/2018 ERRAA
EBE(ERL) HtaE i) 28/1/2008%
2112018
13,600,000 - - (13,600,000) -
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DIRECT

ORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Long position in Shares (continued)

(b) Share options (continued)
Notes:

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant to the beginning of the exercise period.

A total of 13,600,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.864 held by Mr. Tang, Mr. Yip and Mr. Law lapsed
during the year.

Following the resignation of Mr. Li as an executive Director
and chairman with effect from 18 January 2018, the
13,800,000 shares options held by Mr. Li, with the exercise
price of HK$0.864 and the exercise period from 28 January
2008 to 27 January 2018, lapsed.

Following the resignation of Mr. Yang as an executive
Director and managing Director with effect from 31 January
2018, the 18,000,000 share options held by Mr. Yang, with
the exercise price of HK$0.680 with and the exercise period
ending on 12 July 2019, lapsed.

A total of 12,000,000 share options held by Mr. Leung who
retired at the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2018
and did not offer himself for re-election with the exercise
price of HK$0.864 and the exercise period from 28 January
2008 to 27 January 2018, lapsed during the year.

The above share options are unlisted cash settled options
granted pursuant to 2002 Scheme. Upon exercise of the

share opt
shares of
personal t

ions in accordance with 2002 Scheme, ordinary
the Company are issuable. The share options are
o the respective Directors.

Other than the holdings and option holdings disclosed
above, none of the Directors, chief executives and their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
Shares, debentures or underlying Shares or any of the

Company’

s associated corporations at 31 December 2018.
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(iv)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his entity connected had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or
contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors is considered to have interest in the businesses
which are considered to compete or likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group pursuant
to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Name of entity
whose businesses are

ESERS RERENP 2R

RAFERNEEETREAWENERNARFHK
HAERIM B R R AT LA N R E X 7]
BEX RS ZHHAHF - TREZXE
B BEEEEDESD -

EEAHN
BIEEAHIN - AEERBER SR A EA
RAZHRAMEAHLH EBNEERITHRE
A K -

EERBFXRB 2 ER

RAEER - BTXHABESN - R TRA
281015 - MEEFHRARARE LB
BEATHMABT (FREELBE) LY
G RS

Description of businesses of

considered to compete or the entity which are considered to

likely to compete with the compete or likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group

Name of Director businesses of the Group

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entity

HEBRRARSEERY
BEHEZATHEBRAREE BRRARFEERBBARER EENZERY
BEpR ZERER TEEHHREZEREREN EHEME
Liao Jun (Note 1) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of Executive Vice President North
steel wire and/or cord products Asia in Bekaert group, Member
of the Bekaert Group Executive
and Divisional CEO Specialty
Businesses in Bekaert group
B (1) SERAERA R/ IAERER Bekaert& B 5 & 1T I E -

Yip Kin Man, Raymond BeijingWest Industries
(Note 2)

Manufacture and sale of automotive
parts and components and the trading

Bekaert& B #1772 7 E [ Bekaert
SEEMEBSREFEAITE

Independent
non-executive director

of automotive parts and components

ERR(ME2) REEL

RETEM BT

RERHEETRHRTS  UREE

BUFRTES
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (continued)

Notes:

1. Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by the
Company and Bekaert in September 2006 and further agreement
between Bekaert and the Company in February 2015, Mr. Liao
Jun was nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director
and was appointed on 25 February 2015.

2. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was appointed as independent non-
executive director of BeijingWest Industries on 27 January
2014 and does not participate in any decision making on daily
operation of BeijingWest Industries.

In general, directors should owe their fiduciary duties
towards the company as a whole and as such the Board
believes that all Board members shall act in the best interest
of the Company and its Shareholders when they discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

il

EERBEREE2BSE(E)

1. BEAAFEBekaert R T NENHAFINYZ
RIE T Lk Bekaert B R A RN T —HFE A
RN 2 E— i - BBk Bekaert R B &
KBENTES YR _FT—AF_A=+HhH
BEE -

2. EREREAVR-_Z-OF-—A-+LREZER
ROAETHYIFATESR  WRAELEARWET
B HEEEZERDRE -

—RiME EFHRRERIEARERER
T BHEFEREMEEFEXKEBRETREE
ERERBERRARR R RERIR 2 &EHN
HMmAAFIIEITS ©

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 123



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESERES

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following parties had an interest or long
position or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were required pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred therein:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

Total number of

Approximate % of

RZZE-NF+=ZA=+—H
THALTRARRRMDKABERGPHES AR
5 & BIEXVERE2 RIDEIRE T
A FR R SIT R IAE - B EREE
F L HAEGEHIFE33616E LR IRIBEZ G FE
ZRERSFESAE

BEFNMAE

BEELFRPEXRIKRERERATZ
ER AR EERG

 MEFEATAL

RBROREBERD 7=

Shares/underlying the total number
Name of Shareholder Shares held of issued shares Capacity in which interests are held
FiEie,/ NIEERITRE
RREE HEROEHE BYBZAML KEERZEH
Richson 148,537,939 7.72 Beneficial owner
EREAA
Fair Union 686,655,179 35.71 Beneficial owner and interests of controlled
corporations Note (!
BRB AR AR 2 N0
Casula 402,395,304 20.93 Beneficial owner
EnfEBA
Shougang International 686,655,179 35.71 Interests of controlled corporations Note @
BRER REEE 2 iz
Able Legend 126,984,000 6.60 Beneficial owner
EnfEAA
Shougang HK 906,719,179 4715 Beneficial owner and interests of controlled
corporations Mot @
BHEEE BERBEA AR R EE R0
Jingxi Holdings 454,545,454 23.64  Beneficial owner Note®
REER Banfip Arew
Shougang Fund 454,545,454 23.64 Interests of controlled corporation Nete®
BHES REEE 2 fEmhae
Shougang Group 1,361,264,633 70.79 Interests of controlled corporations ot ©
BHlEE REEE fEme
Bekaert Combustion 250,000,000 13.00  Beneficial owner Note @
FRIEE ANED
Bekaert 250,000,000 13.00 Interests of controlled corporations No¢ @
REEE fEmhae
Li Ka Shing Foundation 100,000,000 5.20 Beneficial owner Note ©

Fruiee
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes:

(1)  Fair Union is beneficially interested in 135,721,936 Shares and by
virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be interested in the 148,537,939
Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304 Shares held by
Casula as Richson and Casula are its wholly owned subsidiaries.

(2) By virtue of the SFO, Shougang International is deemed to be
interested in the 135,721,936 Shares held by Fair Union, the
148,537,939 Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304 Shares
held by Casula as Richson and Casula are wholly owned by Fair
Union, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang International.

(3) Shougang HK is beneficially interested in 6,456,000 Shares
and by virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be interested in
the 126,984,000 Shares and the 74,254,000 Shares held by
Able Legend and Prime Success Investments Limited (“Prime
Success”) respectively as Able Legend and Prime Success are
its wholly owned subsidiaries and is deemed to be interested in
the 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace Management Limited
(“Lyre Terrace”), a subsidiary of Shougang Grand as Shougang
HK is the holding company of Shougang Grand. It is also deemed
to be interested in the 135,721,936 Shares held by Fair Union,
the 148,537,939 Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304
Shares held by Casula as it is the holding company of Shougang
International.

(4) The shares held by Jingxi Holdings represent 454,545,454
underlying Shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise
of conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds (i.e. the
4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable
to 2024) issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement).

BRERZRAERABRRRAEAQTZ
BERAXRREERG(E)

RO HEERSD 2FA(E)

PEE -

M

Fair Union® 2515 135,721,936 X% 15+ LA K
B Richson X Casulatj AFair Unionz & &}
BAR - HAREESLHEKS - Fair Uniond
R AR Richson T A 2 148,537,939 ix 19 &
R CasulaFf A = 402,395,304 8% A% 17 & B 1

25 o

B Richson & Casula/y B KRB 2 2 &K B
A &]Fair Unionz &M B A7) - BRIEE
MEEGE - B KBBR8 &K Fair UnionFT
% B 2 135,721,936 1 & 7 + 7 Richson FT #
£ .2148,537,939 % ig fn K 74 CasulaFT# B 2
402,395,304 M0 R B e o

BB B E R EE6,456,0000% 8% 15 & A Able
Legend&Prlme Success Investments Limited
(TPrime Success]) AEEZEB 2 BB A
A WIREBEFLRBEGRY  SEEBHERA
7 BIF Able LegendfTH5A,2126,984,000 % fi%
5 KA Prime SuccessF#A 2 74,254,000/% i%
DHEEREZ  RERARESEEEBRAF
(AERIAZINEAR  MEREEBNAER
M2 ERAR)([EA )R E 212,370,000
BEOFEEEZE BREEESAERE
B2 IR A - IR AR A 5 Fair Union T #E
£ 21385,721,936 1% f& 15 - M Richson T i &
2 148,537,939 % it 17 & M CasulaFT i B 2
402,395,304 f {0 R B e as o

REERIEAEZROEATRRES (BIARAR
BERBHARTTIRAALEROEASLERS
BB ?351500000007515A_%__¢@JHE(TL
REZT T )M4% HEIEHE T 2B /R
BH) T AR AT RS TECEE R BT 2
454,545,454 13 HERANK S -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT BRERBSRBPERFABRRRAQIT Z
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE #E#zZz K XS SHEBERG(E)

COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares RO BEERE 2FE (E)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(5) As mentioned under Note (4) above, by virtue of the SFO, (5)
Shougang Fund is deemed to be interested in 454,545,454
underlying Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund.

(6) Shougang Group is the ultimate holding company of Shougang (6)
HK, it is deemed to be interested in the 6,456,000 Shares held
by Shougang HK and by virtue of the SFO, it is deemed to be
interested in the 126,984,000 Shares and the 74,254,000 Shares
held by Able Legend and Prime Success respectively as Able
Legend and Prime Success are Shougang HK’s wholly owned
subsidiaries and Shougang Group is deemed to be interested
in the 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace, a subsidiary of
Shougang Grand as Shougang Group is the ultimate holding
company of Shougang Grand. Shougang Group is also deemed
to be interested in the 135,721,936 Shares held by Fair Union,
the 148,537,939 Shares held by Richson and the 402,395,304
Shares held by Casula as Shougang Group is the ultimate holding
company of Shougang International. As mentioned under Notes
(4) and (5) above, and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group
is also deemed to be interested in the 454,545,454 underlying
Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang Fund, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
Group.

(7) Bekaert Combustion is beneficially interested in 250,000,000 (7)
Shares.

(8) By virtue of the SFO, Bekaert is deemed to be interested in (8)
250,000,000 Shares held by Bekaert Combustion, which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Bekaert.

(9) Li Ka Shing Foundation is beneficially interested in 100,000,000 9)
Shares. By virtue of the terms of the constituent documents of
Li Ka Shing Foundation, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing and Mr. Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor may be regarded as having the ability to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Li Ka Shing Foundation.

MAE - ()

A EWFG)  ARRAERDERESZ2E
il=PNSIE EME%F B5REEIED  HlESW
AN EIERR AT B 2 454,545,454 1% 18 B %
DB R -

EMEBAEEESZEEERAR - MHEKR
BN GRS 2 6,456,0000% 8% 1) & & 7
AR H P EARER - MAble Legend K Prime
Success BEHIEAEZZEWB AR - BIRIE
BHEMAEEG  gHEENEAED BN Able
LegendFT#5 5 2 126,984,0000% i% 17 K A Prime
SuccessfT# H 2 74,254,000 f% f% 15 /1 # B 1
@m RWERARES(AERNA ZHEB AR
MEMEEAAE RN ZHEERAE)FTH
H212,370,000 & R EB Ex - R &
SEAEREBRZEKERAR - WEMEBRI
#2145 AP Fair UnionFT#% A 2 135,721,936 1% i%
%~ M RichsonFi# B 2 148,537,939 ik 5 K
R CasulaFf A = 402,395,304 % A% 17 B 1
o A EMTEE@) & (5) - A RAIERR Y &
S RENBAR  MaMEealEE@ s
BWBAR - BURKEESREE - HiHEE
WAR BN REIEIRFTI5H 2 454,545,454 % FE
R EA R -

Bekaert Combustion & 5 # /5 250,000,000 %
f&15 ©

EEEABekaert Combustion & Bekaertz 2 & I B

NE] BIREFE S R E &S - Bekaertii iR A
1 Bekaert Combustion FT#5 5 Z 250,000,000
BRRARn R A R o

TRHESETEEESF100,000,0000% 8 (5 2 #
@ MEBEFEHAESGZABERHER - F
EHEERTRESESEAREBERAINER
BELERERG FITERSIEFITE=02—%
N EZRERE -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(10)

Proposed Restructuring of controlling Shareholder

On 21 November 2018, Shougang HK and Shougang
International, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
whereby Shougang HK agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Fair Union from Shougang International (the “Proposed
Restructuring”) as part of the internal restructuring of Shougang
Group.

Upon completion of the Proposed Restructuring, Shougang
International will cease to hold any share of Fair Union and
thus any direct or indirect interest in the Shares. Fair Union
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang HK and
the interest in the Shares held by Shougang HK will remain
unchanged at 47.15%.

For further details regarding the Proposed Restructuring, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 November
2018.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Proposed Restructuring is
not yet completed.

BRERZRAERABRRRAEAQTZ
EERARREERS (E)

RO HEERSD 2FA(E)

PEE -

(10)

(%)

R R EA

EEEEEEREEN -_Z-N\Ft+—-—HA=-+—
PRIV EEH#  aEEBRERERBREE
Fair Union2#fC & TIA(TZHEHR]D - ER
EMEENAEAN D -

BHREMATRE  BRBERSTHERAFar
UnionB) R - B THEHE RO NERNE

Bl LS © Fair Unioni§ BB IZE BN S
BHRAR - M EEEBRA R S
N RAT.15% ©

BREREE SR T2 EARABEA
—E-\Ft-AZt-BMAL-

BEAFHAL  ZHEAEAHARTK °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Details of the contract of significance between the Group,
Shougang Group, Shougang Fund, Shougang HK and
its subsidiaries are set out under the heading “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” hereunder and/or in note 35 to the
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to practicing and achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and the Board has
approved and adopted the SCCHL Corporate Governance
Code on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the provisions of the Code. Further information on the
Company’s Corporate Governance Code is set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” on pages 53 to 97
of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions brought for committed or alleged wrongful acts
against the Directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year, but exclude any criminal, dishonest or fraudulent
acts or omission.

TERREGHP 2ER

AEBEGHER BNES  BETELHE
MEBRARRIMZERGHNZFHBHIINIAT
[(BEBALR S IBEAR LM BRENT
35°

TEER

RRaB ORI REZE —EASSENTEER
KE - EESEHERKRMEREELEER
PRI BEGEX L SPRIFTS B G &SR ©
RRalz ¥ E AT ZE—SEREINAE
FWMESIBREITHZ [LEEREREIN -

BE - HEIED LmES

RAFER - ARRREEMKERRBER
B HESBERARR 2 EHES -

BERTRERX

RERN > AAFEREEZENSREEAER
BERrmeRiTR(ETREMME - &
B SKREFT ARG R.) M EE HARTTE
CHBENEERSREEABEERRE -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
(continued)

The Articles provide that every Director, secretary or other
officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss or
expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or
omitted to be done by him as Director, secretary, officer or
auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection
with any application in which relief is granted to him by the
court from liability in respect of any such act or omission or
from liability to pay any amount in respect of shares acquired
by a nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the report of the directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
Section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
standard. These transactions mainly relate to contracts
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business which were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis. Further details are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements. The Group
has entered into the connected continuing transaction
(exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval) and
connected transaction, during the year, details are illustrated
below.

BEFrRER(E)

ERAARE  BREF  WEXLAQAEM
TTRABSZBEIERES - WELARA
HMITHA B R BE IR F M E AR
RFPENEEELSES  WEXLAQAEM
TTRABSZBEMELRERELZTR M
BEHRPRABELREBERIELZITRZE
EHMAR AR B ARBEA MENKIBZE
TR - BREEFNE LR RRERET
RFTEA 2 EREME - BRAFA - ATRAR
AIEETESHE -

ERNEF NS EEFFRE GSURER A RED
FATORNRENEFTREZEFEREER
PR FMEDI 391 (1)(a) IR BB S AR -

BEREALRS
AEBERBEASHERPES [BAEA
TIZALTAIVETRS - WERXRHETES R
AEER—REAEEHBRETE —REHGK
FRERFRAERMAI L 2B - E— 5B
NP BEREME3S - RAFEAEED
BT FHERERS (BRBY RERLE) R
BR 5 HARMIT -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
During the year under review, the following transaction
constituted continuing connected transaction and is subject
to annual review requirement under the Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into on 23 December 2016 whereby a portion of
the 5th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Premises”)
with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately
6,000 square feet was leased by Billioncorp Development
Limited (“Billioncorp”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of Shougang HK, to a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company for a term of thirty-six (36) months commencing
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019
at a monthly rental of HK$282,000. The original annual
cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is
HK$3,384,000. Subsequently, on 1 August 2018, both
parties to the Tenancy Agreement mutually agree to
terminate the Tenancy Agreement. Hence, the amount of
annual rental cap was HK$1,974,000 for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Shougang HK is a substantial Shareholder and therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
According, the transaction under the Tenancy Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction (the
“Continuing Connected Transaction”).

EREALRS ()
RAFERE U TRSBRSEMELHY
BT ERAIE1MAE 2 FERM AT

HEWHZ
—HHEEHZR((ZEERZER 2T —X
FH+ZAZT=B%F  AREZERERA
B(TRED(BEEEREFEZ2EHBAR
B)AARRZ —BE2EMNBAREHEESE
FEL1TE565 R ReniR{TBEAR L RIEHF
— & (T2 ]) - EEEELMEMEL6,000
EHFR IAHE—+F—H—BEE_-Z
—hWE+-A=+—Hit » BEH=1/(36)E
A §AMS AB282,000T - —F—/)\F
T AT HALEVBEEZFE LRREAS
#3,384,0007T - Ei& - RZZT—NF/N\A—
H HEHBZEALRARERIEZEERZ -
Hi » —E—NF+-_A=+—BUEFBFE
2 GFHE LR ABM1,974,0007T °

EEEEATERRNAL S EMRAMEZ
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Tenancy Agreement (continued)

The Continuing Connected Transaction has been reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transaction has
been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties;

(c) according to the tenancy agreement and relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole; and

(d) the aggregate amount of rent payable by the Group
to Shougang HK and its subsidiaries (“Shougang HK
group”), was HK$1,974,000 during the year 2018.
The said rent payable by the Group to Shougang HK
group did not exceed the limit of annual rental cap of
HK$1,974,000 for the first seven months during the
year 2018.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the external auditor of the Company to report on
the Continuing Connected Transaction. The external auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing
their conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transaction. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Continuing Connected Transaction and the
auditor’s letter confirmed that the transaction had been
entered into by the Company in the ordinary and usual
course of its business, on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from independent third parties, and in accordance with
the agreement governing such transaction on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

EREALRS ()

FH b5 8 (4
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FNERHERERFELTINT
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Tenancy Agreement (continued)

In addition, the internal auditor had conducted an internal
control review on continuing connected transaction of the
Group and checked whether internal control procedures
were sufficient to ensure that the transaction could be
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial
to the interests of the Company’s minority Shareholders,
and had provided the findings to the independent non-
executive Directors to assist them in performing their
annual review. Based on the information provided by the
management of the Company and findings from internal
auditor, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the internal control procedures governing the control
of continuing connected transaction were appropriate and
in place, and also noted that the continuing connected
transaction had been reviewed the Company’s internal
auditor.

Details of the Tenancy Agreement and the termination
of the Tenancy Agreement were also disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2016
and 13 July 2018 respectively.

BFREALRZ(E)

HEH=R(E)

BEAN - REZBEE S ARENFERER S

WEETT T AR EEEE MR Z AR

FFRf RMRER FE *Hﬁ%ﬁ%LﬁH

W AEARRR PR M SR AR - WA

WIREEUIFNITES - HHEF ﬁﬂif%

L - REBEARFEEERBEHNERLABZE

%m%ﬁ BIUFMITEFEEARADRE
BHAREERER  MABZHERERS

EK 7] A R X B A AR o

&?%Jt%ﬂi%?%%% FEA2E
DR/ —T—ARFt+-A=+=H
\EtH—I— BHRE °

T EE-ETI%

132 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHREESEAFRAA



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a connected
person of the Company) whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to issue and Jingxi Holdings conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of up to HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds carry the
Conversion Rights to convert into the Conversion Shares
at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Shares
(subject to adjustments), and the Convertible Bonds will
carry an interest rate of 4.0% per annum and will mature
on the third anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised
in full at the Conversion Price, 454,545,454 new Shares,
being the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued
to Jingxi Holdings subject to the Conversion Restrictions,
representing approximately 23.64% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the date of this annual report and
approximately 19.12% of the total number of issued Shares
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Conversion
Shares, assuming that there is no other change to the total
number of Shares.

The net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement of
HK$149,000,000, are expected to be used as follows: (i)
as to approximately HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-
bearing borrowings with higher interest rate of the Group;
(excluding borrowings provided by Shougang HK and its
related party(ies)) (ii) as to approximately HK$110,000,000
for funding the capital investment for the TESC Phase Il
Project subject to the construction cost and time needed
to supplement the production need for both TESC and
JESC; and (iii) as to approximately HK$1,700,000 being
the remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital.

BFREALRZ(E)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate (continued)

The reason for entering into the Subscription Agreement
as this is an appropriate means of raising additional capital
of the Company considering the recent market conditions
which represent an opportunity for the Company to obtain
the funding at reasonable cost for construction of the brass
wire production lines, enhance its working capital and
strengthen its capital base and financial position. Also, it will
not have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of
the existing Shareholders and the interest payable under the
Convertible Bonds is more stable and predictable than bank
borrowing. The Subscription by Jingxi Holdings reflects the
confidence and commitment of Shougang Fund towards
the long-term business development of the Group which
is beneficial to the long-term business development of the
Group.

Jingxi Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group. Shougang Group is a controlling
Shareholder interested in an aggregate of 906,719,179
Shares, representing approximately 47.15% of the total
number of issued Shares before the date of the Subscription
Agreement. Therefore, Jingxi Holdings is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 11 February 2019, all conditions precedent under
the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement took place
and the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 were issued to Jingxi Holdings.

Details of the Subscription Agreement were also disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2018 and 11 February 2019, and in the circular of the
Company dated 11 January 2019. The Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
Shareholders on 1 February 2019.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of
the Group is based on their merit, qualifications and
competence as well as the prevailing market condition of
the industry. Remuneration packages, which include an
element of discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed
annually. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the remuneration committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing
market condition.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme as incentive/reward to Directors and eligible
participants/qualifying grantees, details of the scheme
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and
the heading “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING
SHARES UNDER THE SFO” here above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and as at the latest
practicable date, 21 March 2019 prior to the issue of the
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the revenue from sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
48.3% (2017: 42.2%) of total revenue of the Group and the
revenue from sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 16.5% (2017: 14.4%) of total
revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 61.8% (2017: 47.1%) of total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier, included therein amounted to approximately 17.1%
(2017: 24.5%) of total purchases of the Group for the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(continued)

Save for disclosed above, as far as the Directors are
aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Further details related to relationship with customers
and suppliers, please refer to sections “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report and in
the 2018 ESG Report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) was appointed as
auditor of the Company with effect from 1 August 2018 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and to hold office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in the auditor of the Company during the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by PwC, which will
retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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To the Members of
Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 147 to 293,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

° Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matter
HARESERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPMET NI EERRETSE

(1) Impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments

W - BE R REREENEERERENE
Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty), Note
17 (property, plant and equipment) and Note 19
(prepaid lease payments) to the consolidated financial
Statements
BREFENIKE  BRHGE I EHEZNT40)(EXE
FHHEF R THEERAEZ FEHIR) - Wat17(9% -
JE R R ) R A aE19(FE1T 50 E)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group owned certain
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments amounting to HK$1,146,759,000 and
HK$70,897,000, respectively, which relate to the steel
cord segment of the Group.
RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—RH > EBE5EHAEYE &
B RFEETANBEERIESD B RHE1,146,759,0007T &
78 ¥#70,897,0007T - HESEEMMER DA AR -

Management, taking into account the results of the
steel cord segment for the year ended 31 December
2018, identified impairment indicators for the relevant
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments.
BEBE-_T—N\F+_A=+—HBHESE,INES
BmRCEEERETYE BELRGBRAMNEERIEA
BREIER -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments included
the following:

BUHERERENEYE  BEARBERANEE
RIEREZBARFBLRE

We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-use
calculations, and the process by which they were
prepared. We found that the cash flow forecasts
prepared by management were subject to oversight
and review by the directors of the Company and
were consistent with the budgets approved by the
Company’s board of directors.
BAFETEREEEREEAETERANRKES
mETRRIERER - DA ERE LIEAABEIR o HFI%
REBERHINRERERAZAREEZNEENE
& WHERAREEFSHENTAE -

We involved our internal valuation expert
in assessing the appropriateness and the
consistency, of the methodologies used and key
assumptions and estimates applied.
BAER PRI EE KT LB IENEE EM
—HE AR FTE R B BB R A -
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Key Audit Matter
HARESERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPMET NI EERRETSE

Management grouped the assets of the Group at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (Cash-generating Units) and performed
impairment assessments in respect of the two Cash-
generating Units of the steel cord segment identified
using the value-in-use method. This involved
significant judgement in determining the assumptions
used in the calculations. The key assumptions
included:

ERER BEEENEENSRHKENKT  EAlEHREF
RenmA MELEERBLBLNAMEEREEAR
WReRA(REELEN)  -BEEEHNEREHA
BEZEUHEZY BOMERCEESBLE M T RER
A o HPRFERTEEE D E AN RKREHEARHE -
REARRER B

o rate of annual increment for the steel cord price;
and

MERARERNFIERE &

° discount rates
BB R

Based on management’s assessment, no impairment
on property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments was considered necessary as at 31
December 2018.

BEERENTME BE-F—/\&+t-A=+—Hi
FEWERYE - BHEMREBEANEERRERRE -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balances and the significant judgements involved
in the assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Cash-generating Units of the steel cord segment
including the assumptions used in the calculations of
value-in-use.
BMEIZEERRAANEELUARTHEEELS
iz AT B & B ATS R E R A B (BBt BB EER T
FERER) -

140

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For steel
cord price, we compared the long-term steel cord
price used in the forecasts against the market price,
and benchmarked the rate of annual increment
to industry forecasts and market trends. For the
discount rates, we benchmarked the rates used in
the forecasts against our research of the discount
rates used by comparable companies in the
industry.
BAFETEREEERAPNARRRNHSEG - &
R ER - RAETERRERNRAMERER
HTSERET TR - WHEFERRETEREAM
MISBEIERELE - WX - FFUATERHEA
BV BRER R B E RO R P LT R P AT L R R 55
ERERE X -

We compared the current year actual results with
the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
forecasts to consider the quality of management’s
forecasting, and where any deviations were noted,
we corroborated management’s explanations with
our knowledge of the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked
that these relevant factors had been taken
into account in this year’s forecasts and that
management had considered the current year
actual results in the preparation of this year’s
forecasts.

BHEAFEERAERE L —FEReREEAAFTE
EHNERET TR UEZREEENEAIEE - &
MAREEETMAFEERRER FFEHALE
RENRE ZFBEEEEHRMETSNTHERES
ERAFENRRAMAMERE - HPIERE T SFNHE
RPERERTELEEEE - RATRETERRE
ERERTAFENERERBAEBRFEZIEN -

Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s significant judgements made in
the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments to be
supportable based on the available evidence.
BREBFMITHEF  RARHEEEEEDE  BEKR
R 1 HL TR A5 A8 & R IA B9 R (E FY Ak 2 R &Y BE B2 M T AT
RIBBRARETUAXE -
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Key Audit Matter
HARESERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPMET NI EERRETSE

(2) Impairment assessment of trade receivables
P& UK TE R (B R A

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note

4(c) (critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty) and Note 22 (trade

receivables/bills receivable) to the consolidated

financial statements

BRFERH5E - 2 BFE B HEN 7 310)i) (81

BREREAZE)  4c)(EXEF A MG THRERNEZ F

BEAHR) RMTat22 (EARH - TEK FE)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross
trade receivables of HK$711,055,000 and provision
for impairment losses on trade receivables of
HK$20,124,000. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RZE-NE+_A=+—H BEENEKENX
# %8RB 711,055,000T - ERERER B ERELE
20,124,0007T - EXEHREWEFNHEZHEHREEE
B -

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Trade receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
those not responding to collection activities are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
loss. Expected credit losses are then estimated by
grouping the trade receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and ageing profile and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery. The
expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced over the past 3
years and adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information including macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

EREEEMAAGTERBEERE  HRENTFEMK
NN FF RO EFEEARBNEKRFIAS R
R R R L B R A - EEFHTRIEEEER - B
MREEBRATERBETFME - RicARIRRBRE 58
DIEEERRFSIEETHE - BHEEBEXLRER
E=FHRNELEEBERT @ UARHBARKRER
KA EER - flnBRTER P EN BRI S H
RERKERE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit losses for trade
receivables included the following:
BMEEREREETHERIESNIEREEBER S
BFeE

We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over credit procedures performed by
management, including the periodic review of aged
receivables and the assessment of the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, including
the identification of trade receivables subject to
individual and collective assessments.

B STAETREEEEN TR E AR
Fr o B35 H S F H 8 B 78 HA e WK R e AT {4 e MR IE
BHEEEEERENERF - BERERKEZIHE?
BRERIES - R

We obtained management’s assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables and
tested the accuracy of the ageing profile of trade
receivables by checking to the underlying invoices
on a sample basis.
BMRETEREBHEKEREREEERNTH -
38 38 A A 25 SR ORI B T e WO R IR BR e RO 8% Y SRR
o

We circulated confirmations to confirm the
balances due from customers on a sample basis.

BAIAETT A ER] T HER AR T P R E AR -
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Key Audit Matter
HARESERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPMET NI EERRETSE

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses for
the trade receivables.

BT RBEEEN BRI ERNHE - LARIERE
TE W BR R8BI (E B 18 R I 8 R st AN I -

For trade receivables subject to individual
assessment, we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s assessment based on supporting
documents such as correspondence with the
customers, customers’ responses to collection
activities and relevant public search results relating
to the financial circumstances of these customers.
On a sample basis we also tested subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank
receipts.

HRE R H B EUER R - BRIIRIBEET P AR &
F - BEPHEYFIAKENREAKERF BRI
MENAHABRERSEIFUEXH - BFETERE
SHEEEE M o ERAER L BB T B
AR R BEEMBITHRIR -

For trade receivables subject to collective
assessment, we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s assessment including the credit
risk characteristics based on the customers’
historical settlement pattern over the past 3
years and market research regarding the relevant
current and forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
HNERTHORUERR - RFAFTE T EREN (R
AR BRENRTFEE=FEMEXNEERR
FE - URBRERATEMEERNTISHE  BEF#H
TEREPENEBRFIARNNEZBRERE -

We also tested the calculation of the provision for
impairment losses.

AT TREREREE

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
judgement and estimates adopted by management
in determining the expected credit losses of the
trade receivables to be supportable based on the
available evidence.

HER bt R1E - HPBEREEERERFERREE
BERE A B AT SE B F -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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B ZBE RS

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

NZ

RPN
:%/T\I:I B fm

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE BT T BT T
Revenue EER 5 2,254,170 2,113,258
Cost of sales 8H & BN 9 (1,986,703)  (1,917,193)
Gross profit E 5 267,467 196,065
Other income HABUA 7 3,756 3,418
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (&518), Wz 58 8 (4,557) 944
Distribution and selling expenses o iE R IHE & A 9 (69,698) (65,579)
Administrative expenses TEHR 9 (58,936) (71,771)
Research and development expenses #ffZ & H 9 (76,941) (62,385)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net  SN&E X Ugzs /(B8 ) %58 3,770 (17,519)
Changes in fair values of investment & &WE AT E &
properties 16 4,017 23,820
Impairment losses on prepaid lease FEMEERIEZRERK
payment 19 - (72,523)
Net impairment losses on financial SREEREBERIFHE
assets 22(c) (1,365) 728
Finance costs, net B 5 A AN 5 5 11 (78,630) (10,411)
Loss before income tax PR A ET 18 (11,117) (75,213)
Income tax credit P Ei K % 12 2,436 6,695
Loss for the year REEEE (8,681) (68,518)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share: BREE
Basic and diluted BEARKREE 15 (0.45) (3.56)

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F156E293 A MM AR A B MKRME P
i)

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 147



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLHFE

2018 2017
=E-N\F = —+ 5
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE BT T BT
Loss for the year REEEIE (8,681) (68,518)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, H#h2E (EiE) Wi
net of tax (BRPBLIE)
Items that will not be reclassified to HigE I 8550 82
profit or loss HBa s HE
Exchange differences arising on EREZ25|E8mEED
translation into presentation fE =5
currency (68,436) 107,416
Surplus on revaluation upon transfer  ¥)¥  HE R B HERE
of property, plant and equipment to REYEMEM A G
investment property 17 - &
Revaluation of leasehold land and ME T REFER
buildings 17 29,816 34,200
Recognition of deferred income tax fﬂﬁif@&@?%ﬁZ
liability on revaluation of leasehold BEFTISH B ERER
land and buildings 29 (5,077) (3,538)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for Kiﬁ%ﬁ E8) Iz
the year, net of tax HEE(HBRTHIE) (52,378) 69,563

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these 5156 F293 B WM sT Jy4R & B B R E

consolidated financial statements. 25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 RA=-_ZE—\F+_-_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investment properties TEYEE 16 55,449 70,790
Property, plant and equipment ME - R K& 17 1,166,333 1,273,927
Prepaid lease payments A HEERKIE 19 70,897 79,042
Intangible assets B AE 20 - -
Pledged deposit on loan from RE—HBBEEQARER
a related company HE B EHES 27 7,989 8,374
Club memberships ek - 331
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEYWE BEMEEZ
property, plant and equipment AR 23 1,724 8,967
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,302,392 1,441,431
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 21 319,968 306,232
Trade receivables FEURBR X 22 690,931 688,333
Bills receivable U E & 22 924,355 683,954
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - ke REMERGK
receivables 23 31,509 52,466
Tax recoverable AR O 718 - 1,321
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITFER 25(a) 78,630 59,780
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 25(b) 66,682 210,559
Total current assets REBEEAR 2,112,075 2,002,645
Total assets EERE 3,414,467 3,444,076
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Other payables H o FE TR 566 1,119
Loan from a related company KE—EEATIZER 27 - 22,170
Bank borrowings RITER 28 268,407 295,322
Deferred income tax liabilities BELEMSEHARE 29 29,617 27,044
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEETE 298,590 345,655

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these 51562293 B KW i+ v & M B RE M H

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e R R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 RA=-_ZE—\F+_-_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F S —+F
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
e BET T BT T

Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and bills payables FEN R R EiR 26 808,951 830,269
Other payables and accruals Hipe N kel E R 26 130,790 139,563
Current income tax liabilities EHIFTISTR AR 4,584 5,543
Loans from related companies KEBRENRZER 27 226,358 228,754
Bank borrowings RITER 28 606,044 502,764
Total current liabilities REEEARE 1,776,727 1,706,893
Total liabilities =Rt tcl 2,075,317 2,052,548

EQUITY Em

Share capital f& 7S 30 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves fHE 147,352 199,730
Total equity EREE 1,339,150 1,391,528
Total equity and liabilities EREEEAE 3,414,467 3,444,076
The financial statements on pages 147 to 293 were YN E147HEF293E 2 i34 B3R

approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and

were signed on its behalf

Su Fanrong

IR

DIRECTOR

EFE

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONS?\L/I[}ATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 HZ—-Z— \E+_-_A=+—HItFE

Property
Share Capital  revaluation ~ Translation Share option PRC reserve Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total

Ba ERER NXEMRE  EXRR  BREGR tERRET  ZHER aif
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
BRTT  ARTn  EWTR EBTn EMTr BT EMTn BRTR

(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Rrzxn) (Brsx(i)

For the year ended HE-2-N\E12f

31 December 2018 ST-ALEE
At 1 January 2018 R=%-\F-A-H 1,191,798 23,990 122,859 308,830 268,804 11,145 (355,088) 1,391,528
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - - - (8,681) (8,681)
Other comprehensive Hb2E (58 /i

(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising ARG 25 %mEL

on translation into presentation EREE

currency - - - (68,436) - - - (68,436)
Revaluation of leasehold landand ~ HETH RETE[

buildings (Note 17) (Rizt17) - - 20,816 - - - - 29,816
Recognition of deferred income tax ~ &+ kETER 2

liabiity on revaluation of leasehold TSR & [ERET

land and buildings (Note 29) (Kizto9) - - (5,077) - - - - (5,077)
Total comprehensive rEE2ENE/ (BE)
comefloss)fortheyer #E o S A e o I OO o
Lapse of share options EREXR - - - - (27,814) - 21,814 -
Transfer to PRC reserve funds BETTEARRES

(Note (i) (Kit() - - - - - - - .

] ] ; ] - oM -

At 31 December 2018 RoE-\ETZA=+-H 1,191,798 23,990 147,598 240,394 1,080 11,145 (336,855) 1,339,150

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these 25156 £293 B M I3t 14 & B &R E HEH F
consolidated financial statements. zi5a)
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CONSQ\L/I[}ATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
reEaE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Property
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation ~ Share option  PRCreserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total

B B4R DREGER  EiERE  BREER TAGREE  ZiER &t
HKS000  HKS'000  HKG'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O0D  HKSOOD  HK$O00
A¥TE  A¥Tn BRI ARt ARTn BRI ABTr M

(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hiz()) (Frsx(i)

For the year ended BECE-tE12R

31 December 2017 t-BLEE
At 1 January 2017 R=F-t£-A-H 1,191,798 23,990 106,466 201,414 29,881 45,468 (277,052 1,321,965
Comprehensive loss 2EE
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - 2 - (68518 (68518
Other comprehensive B2 EkE/ (BB

income/(l0ss)
Exchange differences arising RIAE 25| EmELR

on translation into presentation EiEE

currency - - - 107416 - - - 107416
Surplus on revaluation upon EN L

transfer from property, plantand ~ FANEHEERS

equipment to investment property  (¥17)

(Note 17) = = 3 - - - - 3
Revaluation of leasehold landand ~ BELTH RETE[

buidings (Note 17) (Hi17) - - 30 - - - - A0
Recognition of deferred tax income ~ E T REFERL

liability on revaluation of leasehold  ETFAEH B ERT

land and buildings (Note 29) (Kizto9) - - (3,539) - - - - (3,539)
Total comprehensive RERRANE/ (BiR)ER

income/(loss) for the year - - 30,665 107,416 - - (68,518) 69,563
Lapse of share options BREXR = = = - (987) - 97 -
Transfer to PRC reserve funds SETHEGERS

(Note (i) (Rizx(i) = = = = - 2677 (25,677) -

Release of property revaluation NEEEEENLENZR
reserve upon disposal of leasehold &3

land and buidings - -4 - - - WM -
- -4 - 7)) BT (10419 -
At 31 December 2017 RCE-rEoBTH-B 1091798 23990 122859 308830 288  TAA45 (35988 1391528

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these 5156 2938 WML iR & Bl B Rk A H A
consolidated financial statements. ziba)
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CONSQLIQATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
reEaE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—Z—/\GF+_A=1+—HILFE

Notes: FIEE -

i The capital reserve represents the benefit of acquiring a i BARBHERIAUIEEWE —HBATE - [
shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder upon the —( AT R B ARRE R 2 Wz o

acquisition of a subsidiary in previous years.

ii. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company’s ii. BIERPEARLFRE([HE )KL AF]
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the 2B AR AR ERMAIRFEEBEAERE
“PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, these subsidiaries T, ZEWBARAETRERAUEBAE
are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, ERANDRBRBENO10%EAETCHEE
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules £ (g EF PR RBREERCEZRES U@
and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund (including the general B) BEEZEERHEHEEEDNEBA R
reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, where appropriate). EZJSE%O%HqTE/] IEHRIE - EEE A TREE
Transfer to this statutory reserve fund is subject to the approval EsTRERNRREZESTG2HE - ZEREES
of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when the RAl AR IR Rt BB IG INE A -

balance of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of
the respective company. Statutory reserve fund can only be used
to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these  #156 %293 B KNI 3T T4 & B & R 3 0y E
consolidated financial statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,.\T\Aiﬁﬁ/)lbéﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t—-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F = — 4
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE BT T BT
Cash flows from operating activities & EFEBELZRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from KE(BHR)/EEZRE
operations 33(a) (131,263) 136,251
PRC corporate income tax RiR (B zHBDE
refund/(paid), net FRiS R F58 1,163 (11,336)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE(BA) EE
operating activities e FE (130,100) 124,915
Cash flows from investing activities REIBELZEHSHRE
Placement of pledged bank deposits  FHE KR ITIER (78,630) (83,065)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits U [Bl 2 #FERIT1F 50 57,031 25,880
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE - WEKEHE
equipment (15,237) (22,815)
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEWE  BEERBZ
property, plant and equipment SEERE (7,965) (25,082)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - W= KERES
plant and equipment EQE] 33(a) 5,423 16,307
Proceeds from disposals of HEREYEERIAE
investment properties 33(a) 6,370 14,181
Proceeds from disposals of club HESFEE A
memberships 33(a) 50 802
Interest received 2 U F B 1,297 399
Net cash used in investing activities R EEAINS FE (31,661) (73,393)

The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,.\T\Aiﬁﬁ/)lbéﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &#HZ _—ZT— \F+_-A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=+—H
2018 2017
—ZE-NEF = —+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE BT T BT T
Cash flows from financing activities BEFZHELZRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings 1% ffv'(ﬁféf,%( 433,266 820,020
Proceeds from loan from related KEBBEANRIZER
companies - 200,000
Proceeds from discounted bills DABLRIR IR IES 7 ERITEN 300,236 199,039
Proceeds from trust receipt loans B ETRBEER - 34,151
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (462,942) (883,391)
Repayments of loans from related BEAMELRIZER
companies (27,949) (185,980)
Repayments of discounted bills BRI ERE (168,694) (260,742)
Repayments of trust receipt loans BEEFTBEER - (44,230)
Interest paid B A (46,414) (48,650)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEESHEL(BH)
financing activities REF5E 27,503 (169,783)
Net decrease in cash and cash B MBS EEER ZRD
equivalents FEE (134,258) (118,261)
Cash and cash equivalents RENZHE R
at beginning of the year ReEEEE 210,559 307,349
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash RE RIS EBEYEH
and cash equivalents (F518) Wz (9,619) 21,471
Cash and cash equivalents REKL 2B RREFE
at end of the year HBEHRTEFELIRS 25(b) 66,682 210,559
The notes on pages 156 to 293 are an integral part of these  5156% 293 B WMzt Ji4ra ISRz EH H
consolidated financial statements. 2B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

156

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an investment holding company and
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing of steel cords and processing and
trading of copper and brass products.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

BE-2—/\E+-A=+—HILFE

—REHR
EREEEEBERAR(IARADEE
EBER/RERE - ARBIREWEB AT
(et [ RRE ) E B E &M ERM
iR EmRM AN T K B B %
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HiafmEmthut AL E T EH65R
ZHITERL+T —E1215F -
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(T2 A7 ) AR £ 75 -

BRBRAIN AR EREABE T T
(IBETITH25 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.1 REEE

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, which are
measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

RRRZERB W BHBRIIRBEFRB
Rz BB BHREE([FBHY
BREER ) REBRBGEI(FH
622F ) MRS - KR MBHK
BESKRANERERmE  EZQF
BEFtE82ETEINYE  BEK
R REEM R -

REABEBMBEREER - B
BHRREALHETER 2 Q5Hh
it BEEENAEERBASEER
BR B2 1R HIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

B PR R B T

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

158

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards and interpretations for
the first time for the annual reporting period
commencing from 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Transfers to Investment Property

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 are disclosed below. The other
standards did not have any impact on the
Group’s accounting policies.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.1 RBEE(E)

211 KEBFERH Z 35T RARIEET

EARZE

REEERE

—NF—=H—

B8 2 BB F S B R R 49 LA
T2 a] R &{sa] B & 22

2

BAMBREEN S@IA

Fo5%

BEMBREEN RERFPARIHA

1558 )

BEERUBES MNERHREARE

#EZEE)

—REE2HR

ERREREEN MUROIATHZ

F2H 2153 PERHE

BEMBREED AREMBREEN

FAR2ET FIREMIA
—GHEAB AN K
RERBF45
REREH

BB “F-PEE=-%

F 283 2153 —NERSCER
HBIEER 2
FEMENSH

BE ERRENF

B0 2 BET

FEMBEBVBREEAF IR

REBGBHRELERE155

VR ERBEINT o H2AERI%
AEEN G BRREEAF

=
=

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

B PR R B T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)
Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS

(i)

15

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of
HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018 does not result
in significant adjustments to
the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Classification and measurement
On 1 January 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9),
the Group’s management has
assessed which business models
apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified
its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
Since the Group does not have any
financial assets that are carried at
fair value, there is no impact to the
Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as a result of the
adoption.
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BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

160

(i)

Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
(continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has three types of
financial assets that are subject
to the new expected credit loss
model of the HKFRS 9:

o Trade receivables

° Bills receivable

o Other financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group was required to revise
its impairment methodologies
under the HKFRS 9 for each of
these classes of assets. The
impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group’s
accumulated losses and equity is
insignificant.

While pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash are
also subject to the impairment
requirements of the HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
(continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)
Trade receivables and bills

receivable

The Group applies the simplified
approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected losses
for all trade receivables and bills
receivable.

To measure the expected credit
losses, the receivables relating to
customers with known financial
difficulties or those not responding
to collection activities are
assessed individually for provision
for impairment loss.

Expected credit losses are
then estimated by grouping the
receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and aging
profile and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

162

(i)

Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
(continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)
Trade receivables and bills

receivable (continued)

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical
credit losses experienced over
the past 3 years and adjusted
to reflect current and forward-
looking information including

macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

Management has closely
monitored the credit qualities
and the collectability of the trade
receivables and bills receivable.
The adoption of the simplified
expected credit loss approach
under HKFRS 9 has not resulted
in any additional impairment loss
for trade receivables and bills
receivable as at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 HZ—-Z— \E+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
(continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include deposits and other
receivables. The Group has
assessed the expected credit loss
model apply to the other financial
assets at amortised cost as at 1
January 2018 and the change in
impairment methodologies has
no impact to the net assets value
of the Group and the opening
provision of impairment loss is not
restated in this respect.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

164

(i)

Impact of adoption on financial
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
(continued)

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15

The Group has adopted HFKRS
15 from 1 January 2018 (the
date of initial application of
HKFRS 15) which resulted in
changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated
financial statement. In accordance
with the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has
adopted the modified retrospective
approach and comparative figures
have not been restated.

Contract liabilities for the
advanced payments received
from the customers recognised in
relation to the sales of goods were
previously presented as “other
payables and accruals — advance
receipts from customers”.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZE—Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

21 RREE(E)
2.1.1 XEBRP 2 Fa] RAZEET

interpretations adopted by the Group ERIRG2FE(E)

(continued)

()  Impact of adoption on financial (i) FRANIEET 21 81 7% 3R 2K /Y
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 B — BB R A E
(continued) RIZE 955 R & B R &

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15

(continued)

Reclassification has made to be
consistent with the terminology
used under HKFRS 15. The impact
on the Group’s financial position
by the application of HKFRS 15 is

ERIFE 155 (&)

(b) BEHEEBHERE
ERE1555 (4F)
BN BEKERF
,%ﬁﬂk#&iﬁﬁu
15 5% BT A 17 58 —
W WRMBEBI

AR FE155R Y

as follows: 7N & B B AR 8
FENT
Reclassification
As previously under
stated HKFRS 15 As restated
ENPERE
ERUMBRE
RT3 BAE15% E3l
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—A—H
Consolidated statement of GRMBIRAE
financial position (extract): (F8%) -
Other payables and accruals: BN RERER -
- Contract liabilities ~AER = 9 9
- Advance receipts from customers  —EWEF 93 (93) -
As at 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+ZA=+-H
Consolidated statement of GRUBRAE
financial position (extract): (Fs%) -
Other payables and accruals: N RERER -
- Contract liabilities ~AER - 125 125
- Advance receipts from customers  —EUEFH 125 (125) -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZEASHHEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE(E)
2.1.1 New and amended standards and 21.1 KEBF R 2 FTaT R &5
interpretations adopted by the Group ERIRG2FE(E)
(continued)
()  Impact of adoption on financial ()  ERAIEET H B 7 & 7Y
statements — HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 FE— BE R IR E
(continued) RIZE 99 R BB IR &

(b) Adoption of HKFRS 15

(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no
impact to the Group’s net assets
as at 1 January 2018 and the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, loss
per share (basic and diluted) and
the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2 Impact of new and amended standards
and interpretations issued but not yet

applied by the Group
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HKFRS 16
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Amendments to HKAS 12,

HKAS 23, HKFRS 3 and HKFRS 11
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Amendments to HKAS 28

BRI ERE28 2]

Amendments to HKAS 19

B ERE19R 2 BT

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB RE ERFINR 23]

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BRGHENE1RRE B ER
F8E 23]

HKFRS 17

BEMBHREENEITH

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BRMBREEINF10RRESS:
KR E28% 2 53]

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
BREEMNET

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

S B ¢ TR It

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle
“T-RER T FRECERMBREENZ
FEEUENTH
Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures
RBERTHABEEZRIRE
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
ATEIRR - RS
Definition of a Business
FBNTER
Definition of Material

BEEMMTEE

Insurance Contracts

REEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture
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1 January 2019
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1 January 2019
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1 January 2020
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

168

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2 Impact of new and amended standards

and interpretations issued but not yet
applied by the Group (continued)

None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statement of the Group, except for
the following set out below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

Impact

The new standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$2,982,000, see Note 31(b). Of these
commitments, approximately HK$120,000
relate to short-term leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as
expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2 Impact of new and amended standards

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.1 wEEE(E)
212 XEBFXAEHLT E

and interpretations issued but not yet
applied by the Group (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Impact (continued)

For the remaining lease commitments the
Group expects to recognise both right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,707,000.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change. However, some
additional disclosures will be required from
next year.

Mandatory application date

The Group will apply the standard from
its mandatory adoption date of 1 January
2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been
applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability
on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or
accrued lease expenses).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

170

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 EHZE—ZT— )\ +_-_A=+—HItFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.2 HZERA(E)
(b) HEEEZEZE

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate an
investment because of a loss of control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAEHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combination (continued) 23 ¥EXKEH(E)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as W B AR RARR AR EE AR 6 o
incurred.

The excess of the 8 2015

e  consideration transferred, o  FTEEEMIE -

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the o NEWEE BT IETRE
acquired entity, and mEeE &

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous o (LR KEE RN ER
equity interest in the acquired entity RUEE B B A FEE

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets HEWEHNEEFENATE

acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts R ZREIL R EER o W il & 5K

are less than the fair value of the net identifiable RTINS A H R B EFENA

assets of the business acquired, the difference is FTE EHEEeEs—HEGE

recognised directly in consolidated statement of BEEENGABRERER -

profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as ENSAREREAETNEHE
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as R Eﬁiﬁﬁ,/f%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’]/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to M EEAFE  AFEEEFHNREG
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in BIERERER -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in MEE A DPEERSTR - WEEH B
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of Eﬁé‘ﬂﬁl,ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂvﬂx%ﬁé”&ﬁ%ﬁ,Hﬁ
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in MEEmEEFT=2WEHHNA
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the FE  ZBEHEREENEMA
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising WSk BB - R ERRER -

from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 173



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K j‘ﬁ&#ﬁiﬁfj

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F
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2.4

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Company’s managing director that make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”).

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE
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2.4

2.5

2.6
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.6 MEBRE(E)
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZERALE

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at the year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,
within “finance costs, net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair values was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies
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2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.6 HMEWE(E)

(c) EEARF

176

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iii)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

assets and liabilities for each end of
the reporting period presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that end of the reporting period;

income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are recognised
at fair value based on periodic valuation by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation. All other property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.6 INEBRE(E)
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POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity. To the extent
that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the increase is first recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Decreases that reverse previous increases of
the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAEHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.7 W% BERREE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 2%-4%, or over the term of the
leases, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 18%-20%, or over the term
of the leases, whichever is
shorter

Plant and machinery 4%-20%

Furniture fixture and 9%-20%

equipment
Motor vehicles 11%-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold,
it is the Group’s policy to transfer any amounts
included in property revaluation reserve in respect
of those assets to accumulated losses.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction-in-progress represents buildings
and plant and machinery under construction
and pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Costs comprises
direct construction costs, the cost of plant
and machinery and applicable borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period.
No provision for depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.7

2.8

2.9

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

M BERREE)

ERIREERNFZRNET
RRE Mes - WIRKAEIRRE
BRI - KABREREEK
A~ BBS M AR AN B 2 B R
EREREERAN - EHEBEER
T BATAEAAT - NEFAER
TEEMFE  ERREERARR

(S N E e Jﬁm%% iR 55 A0
Bl WIRRR FBURITE o
REWE
BEMEARBHESREMBIZE -
WIAREEER - REWMEN D
ERAGE - BIEABRZIKAEAR
@%%%EW$ BE1R - A
FEFER - AFEZBREE B
RE5 -

5k

WEMB AR ZEBFARBTE
E-BENTHEHE HESFETR
EBEAH  KEBEEHRBRNER
TNEEAARRERELEATN
RAEAIE, - WIRKAR REHRER
B - ﬁ%%ﬁ2%¥ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RELHEERAE/RECREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE
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POLICIES (continued)

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.9 Goodwill (continued)

2.9 BHE(E)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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(a)

(b)

POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets

Classification

Form 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)
(c) Measurement

BE—F

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

(c)

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories to
classify the debt instruments:

(1) Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
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@)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’ and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAEHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets 21 RENMHMERMEE(E)
(continued)
(c) Measurement (continued) (c) FrE(#E)
Debt instruments (continued) BT A (#&)
(3) Fair value through profit or loss (38) AFEFAEZD
Assets that do not meet the criteria THEHBERAEER
for amortised cost are measured at BEEAFEFAEBER
fair value through profit or loss. A gain FTE c EBERENES
or loss on a debt investment that is HEEERR AT ES
subsequently measured at fair value ABRE  BRARE
through profit or loss is recognised in ELHRNGEERE °

the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

(d) Impairment (d) BE
From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on BE-ZE-N\F—-—H—H& =K
a forward-looking basis the expected credit & B1R 78 B AL VE ST B b g £
losses associated with its debt instruments BB BREVE TS T A ARRE AN T
carried at amortised cost. The impairment HEEEE - FIRBENREER
methodology applied depends on whether FEURMNEER R R B REE L
there has been a significant increase in credit hn e
risk.
For trade receivables and bills receivable, REBERREREENS -
the Group applies the simplified approach AEBRBE %W%%#&%@EEIJ
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires FORMBTETE -
expected lifetime losses to be recognised H/ﬁiﬁmi‘ﬁﬁﬂ’i‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁaﬂﬂﬁi\?ﬂ
from initial recognition of the receivables. SHEREUN K IE R IR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA
N

BT 75 ¥R & B RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until

31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies
its financial assets in loans and receivables,
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

2 EBEASHBEBME(E)
Q1M REMHEMERMEE(E)

(e) BE-F—tFF+=-A=1—
BB S BR
AEEEEREREBHMHR
ETEAFN - ARIEETE
AELEE R o it - PR
HBE BB REBE LARTEY
SETRRETERIE °

BE_T—tF+-A=1—
B AEESESREEN R
ERMEWRFIE - IARIRAF
Bt ABS EREE  HED
BEOARERMEENKEAR
) o BIR BRI T
HeBMEENDE °

() BRAFEFAEBRZZZ
=y
BAFEAARBGZE
REERKEEEZS
MEE -WRFTERR
TEHALEMmMERSH
TREE  AIKEHERR
Rz Rl - TET AW
WOBERFIEEE - K&
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B - mMREF12E AR
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SRPEE  BHERA
RIERED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until

BE—F

31 December 2017 (continueqd)

(i)  Loans and receivables

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. If collection
of the amounts is expected in one year
or less they are classified as current

assets.

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2N RENEMERHEE(E)

(e) BZE—F—tF+=-A=1+—
BB ST B (&)
(i)  ESFIER AL
,\FAﬁ:DJ_EHQTJ\IEEITEthé
BmisHREHRENA

If not, they are presented

as non-current assets. The group’s
loans and receivables comprise of
“trade receivables”, “bills receivable”,
“deposits and other receivables”,
“pledged bank deposits” and “bank

balances and cash”.

Reclassification

(iif)

Reclassifications were made at fair
value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value became the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no
reversals of fair value gains or losses
recorded before reclassification date
were subsequently made.

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (continueqd)
(iv) Subsequent measurement

188

(v)

The measurement at initial recognition
did not change on adoption of HKFRS
9, see description above. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss is subsequently carried at fair
values. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
Changes in the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each of the
reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

Q1M REMHEMERMEE(E)

(e) BE—F—tF+-A=1—

HERAMETTBE (&)
(iv) #E=E
RABEBHEHREER

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

B PR R B T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (continueqd)

(v)

Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables category,
the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2N RENEMERHEE(E)

(e) ﬁ_‘t— =
HEBRAHE

(v)

—tFE+=A=+—
TR (&)
JBE ()
S B KON e e k1B R
Al BESENUNEER
EAEEEESREER
ERAMETHEMBE R
FESRE(TEEHR
BEMAREEEE)R
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Eu7d°
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I B X8 8 R SRR (E
rEENEHHRH
WA A S B AT AR H B2
=)+ RICART R HY R E
BANBEEGREBS
RPMER ©

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

190

POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade receivables, bills receivable and

other receivables

Trade receivables and bills receivables are
amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of
business.

If collection of trade receivables, bills receivables
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables and bills receivable are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value, and subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less provision for impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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214NN - BREBREME

LEN
RGOSR E S FENS e
B2 B E B IR R T
WEF 2 FH -

o P M BR R - R R B & LA
WOk TB T A — F 2l AR IR [E] (3%
EXBEEKERARNZREN
) AIDBRRBDEE - BRI
EIRRBEETFIR

& W AR % B R MR SRR A AR S R A
RESEER  BRIFLBRIEAR
BERMARFERR  ERIAE
PR R 2R 0 2 4 5 K 7S 0 B OB (B
g o

21I5HERBESEEY

RTEGRBRERERTIHR - R
e RReEEVEREEFRE £
BEEBENTR  REHRS=(E
ASATHABERERASENEER
YHEEZFNARRINWEMLE
H - 2RyERE -

2.16 IR A<

BRRDBEAERD o BITHBRMK
BREEZREHIIBEN AN R
SRR B S RIEHERRIE ZN
R o

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

192

2.17 Trade and bills payables and other

payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay
for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and bills payables and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEME(S)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings (continued) 2.18EE (%)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as “finance costs, net”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable or recoverable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

194

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

2 EARSTHHEBMEGE)

2.20 & # 5 S 5E F 18 B4
AR HIR 0SB R SR R 1
S5 18 4 B4 9 B 3 40 B 0 P19
0 RREEERATRENER
FiiaBE  RIEEBIEAER A &
R B o 32 B AR £ PR BUIE S 1B 0
SEEE: -

(a)

(b)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

ER s H
EHASHRIHRERARRR
Hf B QA2 &R ELER
WA B RN EE HERMHX
BEERMHOBBEEGEE - B
B ERERRBED R
PR B 15 00 E H3 5T 1 AR &R AR
S WHEERER T REEN
AR I TS B ST IS O B SRR T
B o

EAEFT 1
BEEMEHRITHREERAFE
BMENEERBBENGAMB
BERPRAEMELERZ
B NBEEEEEEE - A
m o HEEHBRRENEELR
BB R ER - AT S R
EETRIARIE ° WREMSHR
DELERNTHERR S (X
BEHBRINBERBEMS
ZBE BERZXHUEY
B HERTOGNNER -
AITANE T IARER - RIS
MIYAREEBERANEE
RIAZHER(RERDEE - X
BHRNERBARLEAEHE
EXERETEMSHEERE
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

196

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the
Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Post-employment obligations

(c)

(continued)

The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when they are due
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately
9% to 21% of the wages for the year of
those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions
to these retirement benefits schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

198

POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for share options of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAEHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Provisions 2.23 #15

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition
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2.24 H A FERR

200

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a
point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the goods or service.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements,
the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative
standalone selling prices. If the standalone
selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEME(S)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued) 224 W AR ()

The Group manufactures and sells steel cords
and processing and trading of copper and brass
products. Revenue is recognised when the control
of the products are transferred to the customers at
a point in time, when products are delivered to the
customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customers, and either the customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

2.26 Leases

The Group as lessee

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to consolidated statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Prepaid lease payments is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

202

POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Operating lease

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset to
the lessee. Amounts received from lessees under
operating leases (net of any incentives grant to the
lessee) are recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in
“other income” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to
the development activities (or development phase
of an internal project) of the Group are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use;

o management intends to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development can be reliably
measured.

Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as
an asset in a subsequent period.
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BE—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency
transactions are mainly denominated
in RMB, HK$ and United States dollar
(“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$
and US$, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities
denominating in a currency other
than RMB, HK$ and US$ which are
the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group.

The management considers the foreign
exchange risk with respect to US$ is
not significant as HK$ is pegged to
US$ and transactions denominated in
US$ are mainly carried out by entities
with the same functional currency. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.

3

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

Bt 35 L B ' R

3.1 EERER
AEBNEHEAEEAXSRE
Rk miERER(EEEERE
% Z\\$TE*|JZ?—EL i Iﬁ%ﬂlbﬂ:lj
R R ERRER)  EER Ig Sy
PETER - AEENREBERSE
IEEJr%\JﬁJrﬂﬁﬁﬁm%E@TTi‘E/E‘J
1t DRSS B IR PTE

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

R EENNFERERKE -

(a) WmEEE
()  SINEER

AEEWIINERGEE
RARE(TARKE]) -
BrkET(ET]E
B AEBENKRHLHE
EMBEErEUAARE
(TAR%]) - BT kZx
TT(IET])EHE - W&
EREERBENEAM
BERFE AEEEY
WIEAE T - AR
EL(AKEETEES
EARHINEERE ) FHE
HWARREHER S RE T
REENRBEMEED
HNEE R B2 o

EBERR HETH
ERINERRKR Y TE
A TRAB TEETH
8 - MEETHENR
SEXEBRRAREI B
BEENERET - AR
BB TR E R /AE S
R B KA 28 6 B SN EE B
Hll 5R Bl R AR Bl o AR E
BRFEEEINEE X

B2 B R B 1 H AN [

Gy o
A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3

BE—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with HK$ as their
functional currency

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
HK$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$30,000 (2017:
HK$32,000) lower/higher, respectively,
mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation
of RMB denominated bank balances
and cash and the current account with
group companies.

For companies with RMB as their
functional currency

As at 31 December 2018, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$85,917,000
(2017: HK$83,269,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange difference on
translation of HK$ denominated bank
balances and cash, trade receivables,
other receivables, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and the current
account with group companies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

BE—F
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3 MBREREE(GE)

3.1 B¥EBEE(E)
hEE (&)

(a)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)
For companies with RMB as their

functional currency (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$56,920,000
(2017: HK$53,236,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated bank
balances and cash, trade receivables,
other receivables, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and the current

account with group companies.

(ii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity
price risk in relation to its steel products

which is largely dependent on the
market price of the relevant commodity.
The Group closely monitors the price

of its products in order to determine its

pricing strategies.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant

interest-bearing assets, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)
The Group’s interest rate risk primarily
arises from bank borrowings. As at 31
December 2018, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 50
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss
before tax for the year by approximately
HK$1,484,000 (2017: HK$1,656,000).
The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the
next end of the reporting period date.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from pledged deposit
on loan from a related company, trade
receivables, bills receivable, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of pledged deposit on
loan from a related company (Note 27), trade
receivables (Note 22), bills receivable (Note
22), deposits and other receivables (Note 23),
pledged bank deposits (Note 25 (a)) and bank
balances (Note 25 (b)) represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

3

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

BEEREE(E)

3.1 B¥EBEE(E)

(a)

(b)

mEE R (4E)

(i) Bz 7wk FEFEE
b (4&)
AEENNERREE
RERITEE RZT
—NE+-_A=+—
B - fHErEEEm m
4> 50 & F| &= K 25 AT
EHMEBHBERTE
BIARSE B F AR % &
) #1800, > 49 A
1,484,000 T (= F —+
F : 7 ¥ 1,656,000
JL ) ° 50 & X 2 #Y 1%
momAOREREREY
HERSEART —E@E
MAXGEAEZEHH
ST o

=EmEE

EERRHKE - GEEAT
EXAE D ERZS - B
Bk BRERE  ReRHEAM
RN - EHEIRRITE R MR
TREPEE -

KE—BREQAREFMEBZ
EKFZES (M:E27) - B
R (MFEE22) « FEURZE 1% (BT
$22) - ke REME KK
(Mfzx23) » EEMABEITER
(MIzE25(a)) RIR1T AT NI
¢ (MIzE25(b)) Z BREFETY
AEEMEASEREMEED
BRAEERR -

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K j‘ﬁ&#ﬁiﬁfj

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3

208

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i)  Risk management
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3.1 B¥EBEE(E)
(b) EEEEE)

To manage this risk, deposits of the
Group are mainly placed with state-
owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers
with an appropriate financial strength,
credit history and an appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also
has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to

recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit
risk. Sales of goods to the customers
geographically located in PRC
constituted 79.1% (2017: 80.1%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018. They accounted for
approximately 83.3% (2017: 87.8%)
of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2018. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis

to minimise such credit risk.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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BE—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and bills receivable
for sales of goods of the Group and
from the provision of services are
subject to the expected credit loss
model. While cash and cash equivalents
and other financial assets at amortised
cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and bills receivable
The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and bills receivable.
The Group measures the expected
credit losses on a combination of both
individual and collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or
those not responding to collection
activities are assessed individually for
provision for impairment loss. As at
31 December 2018, the provision of
impairment losses in respect of these
individually assessed receivables was
HK$20,095,000 (2017: HK$19,742,000).

3
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BEEREE(E)

3.1 EAEKREE(E)
(b) =ERE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ=—Z—)/\&+_-_A=+—HItFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBREREE(GE)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥REKEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =EEEE)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (i) TEEEREE)
(continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on E]A 78 B {5 B E5 15 a9 51
individual basis (continued) =(4E)
The following table presents the gross TREIR-_FT—LF
carrying amount and the lifetime rF=ZZF—NE+=A
expected credit loss in respect of =+ — B &R 714 e Uk
individually assessed trade receivables REMNEERAENEH
as at 31 December 2017 and 2018: TG &R ¢
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Gross carrying amount IR 4AE 20,095 19,742
Lifetime expected credit loss 2 HiFEFHZEEE (20,095) (19,742)
Net carrying amount FREFE - -
Measurement of expected credit loss on £ e T [P A= B
collective basis BB
Expected credit losses are then BiEL==HRBR B
estimated by grouping the receivables 0 BR B5 30 4% 4 7B N BR =X
based on shared credit risk WITHHE - Rk
characteristics and ageing profile and B B A B - R 1B 15
collectively assessed for likelihood of JEHRZEEIE -
recovery.
The expected credit loss rates are FEHEEERBXNRE
determined based on historical credit BEIEHNFEL =B E
losses experienced over the past 3 BREET  WREE
years and adjusted to reflect current BA I B2 BT 8% BT BE M B
and forward-looking information o @%%%%}E;EE
including macroeconomic factors FE UL EIH A A B R B
affecting the ability of the customers to b .;
settle the receivables.
210 SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED EHRZB(EREARA A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3

BE—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the provision
of impairment losses in respect of
these collectively assessed receivables
was HK$29,000 based on weighted
average expected credit loss rates up
to 0.10% applied on different groupings
(1 January 2018: up to 0.02%), which
does not have a material impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Impairment losses on receivables are
presented as “net impairment losses
on financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

3

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

BEEREE(E)

3.1 EAEKREE(E)
(b) =EREE)

(i)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3
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BE—F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

3 MBREREE(GE)

3.1 EAEKREE(E)
(b) =EREE)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)
The following table presents the gross
carrying amount and the provision
for impairment loss in respect of
collectively assessed trade receivables
as at 31 December 2018:

EMEERE(E)

EREAN FAAEEE
Rt E (&)
TREINR _3—)\¢
T-A=t—HB&EF
it FE W SR IR &Y BR T AR ME
BUR(E R R B

As at 31 December 2018
RZB-NFE+ZH=1+—H

Lifetime
expected Gross  Lifetime Net
credit carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
25 258
B EE HiHEE
BEE REAE BE EEFEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT B¥Tx B¥Tr BY¥Tx
Ageing category AREAE R
Up to 90 days (Note) EZ=90A (Ff7E) 0% 509,968 - 509,968
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 0.01% 161,457 (9) 161,448
Over 180 days %11 180H 0.10% 19,535 (20) 19,515
Net carrying amount RS E 690,960 (29) 690,931
Note: Expected credit loss is close to zero fiet : EAEE —REAERIR

as trade receivables within this ageing

category have no recent history of

default.

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets
(continued)
Pledged deposits on loan from a
related company, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances
There is no provision for impairment
losses for pledged deposit on loan from
a related company, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances as at 31 December 2018
(2017: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including long-term and
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
amount of cash and cash equivalents and
flexibility in funding through having available
sources of financing.

3

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

BEEREE(E)

3.1 EAEKREE(E)
(b) =ERE(E)

(c)

(i) SHEEREE)

X8 —BEBLFENX
HEEEAREKD
REMERK BB
RITFARIRITHETF
BE-_ZT-N\Ft+_-A
=t+t—B X8—F#
BAREREHEZEE
iz R MEME
Wk - B BRITER
K SR1T 48 17 I R (B 18
RBHE( T —EF: M8
[)
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3

214

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest-bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December
2018, the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$66,682,000
(2017: HK$210,559,000) that are expected
to be readily available and sufficient to meet
the cash outflows of its financial liabilities,
hence, management considers that Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total
available banking facilities, amounted to
approximately HK$892,539,000 (2017:
HK$904,766,000), of which approximately
HK$865,437,000 (2017: HK$890,332,000)
has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
grouping based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

3

BEEREE(E)

3.1 B¥EBEE(E)

(c)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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B HBARBEEH
PR & &t B 2R 1T 7 5K PA $%
BRERHESMNI K=
TE-NF+=A=1+—8"
AEEREHE e RREE2%EE
E#)7%%66,682,000L (==
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(continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #Z_—ZT— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEMEER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIHEABER(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) nEBELmE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 4-6 1-12 undiscounted
interestrate ~ Ondemand 3 months months months  Overdyear  cash flows
nEvHY HELE]
EBdE  RERER  OWSER  MEAER  tEPCER RE-E BeNE
% HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
Bt At #ETr A #fn BT B
(Note)
(H&)
As at 31 December 2018 RoE-NETZAzt-A
Trade, bils and other payables Ef1fa EHEEAMENES - - 813,750 96,861 - - 90gt
Loans from related companies KEEEBLNT &R 457 - 32,990 1,23 195,334 - 235,558
Bank borowings i
- fived rate -HEhE 546 - 209,000 276,430 100,865 - 586,313
- Variable rate S i 52 - 14,256 - 14,641 264425 33,322
- 1,070,008 380,54 310840 284425 2,045,804
As at 31 December 2017 HZE-tETZR=1-B
Trade, bl and other payables EAES EASRERENRS - S X 3020 - - st
Loans from related companies VYNGR 58 - 7146 23548 15,065 24,764 260,523
Bank borrowings L
- fixed rate - HEhE 54 - 150,643 145,380 176,033 - 481,096
- Variable rate = i 42 - - 24,429 12,466 320,166 357,061
S0RT0 ABSTT MBS SN 201M

Note: The weighted average effective interest rates
are based on the rates of the borrowings at the
end of the reporting period.

PR N 35 TR A R TR B 3R

S HIREf
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BT 75 ¥R & B RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.2

216

Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (including loans
from related companies and bank borrowings) less
bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

3
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3.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BH¥ERER(E)
(continued)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 BEXREE(E)

3.3

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the gearing

ratio was as follows:

R-F—tFR=_FT-N\F+=A
=t—R BXAELEX:

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2018 2017
—2-N\fF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loans from related companies REEBEARZER
(Note 27) (M$7F27) 226,358 250,924
Bank borrowings (Note 28) IRITER(FI7E28) 874,451 798,086
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEBIRITIER
(Note 25 (a)) (FfzE25(a)) (78,630) (59,780)
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRS
(Note 25 (b)) (FfzE25(b)) (66,682) (210,559)
Net interest bearing borrowings BB 58 955,497 778,671
Total equity ey ek 1,339,150 1,391,528
Gearing ratio BEARBELR 71.4% 56.0%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AEEMGE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets including pledged deposit on loan from
a related company, trade receivables, bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash; and financial liabilities including trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, loans
from related companies and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

AEBTHEENKEE  BHER
B—BBBARERIEH B ER
re  BURER BEREE 22
KEMEKR - EERRITERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

4

218

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are evaluated based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the current tax and deferred
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZE—Z

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Impairment assessments of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments

Property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or change in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or
fair value less costs to sell calculations.

The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying amount of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the rate of annual
increment for the steel cord price or the discount
rates assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

220

(c)

(d)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the expected credit losses
allowance calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
written down to net realisable value when there is
an objective evidence that the cost of inventories
may not be recoverable. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly
or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred
to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying
value and net realisable value of the inventories.
In determining whether the inventories can be
recoverable, significant judgement is required.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.
During the year, certain inventories written down
in prior years have been subsequently sold at
prices higher than their then net realisable value.
Provision regarding these inventories have been
reversed.

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE
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THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &#Z_—Z— \&+_-_A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(e) Fair value of investment properties and
property, plant and equipment measured
at revalued amount
The fair value of investment properties and
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount is determined by using various
valuation techniques. Details of the judgement
and assumptions have been disclosed in Notes 16
and 17.

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of steel cords and processing and trading of copper
and brass products. Revenue recognised during the
year are as follows:

RS HEN AT T REEN
BA & SRR (48 )

() REMERYE BERSKHE
MATEREASETE

REMSETENREVERY
¥ BEERREBEBOATEDNERZ
RIEERMNET - B @A RBRR
B ERKIE16 R17HEE -

L'ON
AEETERFWMEREERF KR
MROMNTIRES - AEEHIBHKA
(L

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Sales of goods: BEmiHE

Manufacturing of steel cords BUE N EELR 2,121,189 1,805,523

Processing and trading of copper 8 N =R AR T K
and brass products B 5 131,177 305,405
2,252,366 2,110,928
Rental income Ma A 1,804 2,330

2,254,170 2,113,258
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222

BE—F

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Company’s managing
director, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

(i) The steel cord segment comprising the
manufacturing of steel cords; and

(i) The copper and brass products segment
comprising the processing and trading of copper
and brass products.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each
segment without allocation of changes in fair value of
investment properties, certain foreign exchange gains
or losses, central administration costs, the emoluments
of directors of the Company, interest income on bank
deposits, finance costs and rental and other income.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K jﬁﬁ#&d:lztl-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &#HZ _—ZT— \F+_-A=+—HItFE
6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 oIWBEHRGE)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) TEPEXBEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s NTRAEBREEREZ®RD 5
revenue and results by operating and reportable RN L 7O
segment:
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-—-N\§+=-A=+—HL
FE
Copper
and brass
Steel cord products Total
HERA R EZHREME &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Sales of goods EmiHE
Total segment revenue DD AR 2,121,189 132,045 2,253,234
Inter-segment revenue DB & R - (868) (868)
Segment revenue from DEPEFEFERE
external customers ANER 2,121,189 131,177 2,252,366
Segment results 7 AP 93,264 (3,860) 89,404
Unallocated amounts RAMERE
Rental income HE WA 1,804
Other losses, net HithE518 558 (3,407)
Changes in fair value of KREMERTFEZ
investment properties o) 4,017
Expenses EH (24,305)
Finance costs, net BTG AN 3R (78,630)
Loss before income tax K B R E 1R (11,117)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZE—Z

B PR R B T

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

224

(@) Segment revenues and results (continued)

6

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

DEER(4E)
(a) PBEXRBERXHE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZT—tF+-_A=1T—H81t
FE
Copper and
brass
Steel cord products Total
HEEAR R R E AR a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT BT T
Sales of goods EmiHE
Segment revenue from DELEERERE
external customers SNER R P 1,805,523 305,405 2,110,928
Segment results 7 EBSFRAE (47,106) 2,127 (44,979)
Unallocated amounts ROBLERE
Rental income AL PN 2,330
Other income, net HAupg A F R 373
Changes in fair value of REMERNTEZ
investment properties U 23,820
Expenses &H (46,346)
Finance costs, net BT AN 58 (10,411)
Loss before income tax M R ES 18 (75,213)
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEERGE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHBEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s NTRAEBREEREZ®RD 5
assets and liabilities by operating and reportable ZEENBEZON :
segment:
Segment assets S HEE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017

—B-NE B tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Steel cord i A% 3,177,793 3,012,828

Copper and brass products 8 N2 2 SR Ak 7,795 69,421

Total segment assets DENEELE 3,185,588 3,082,249

Bank balances and cash RITHETF &fﬁ@ 66,682 210,559
Pledged deposit on loan RE—FAAERRIEFKIAH

from a related company ZBEEHLE 7,989 8,374

Pledged bank deposits EEAIRITFR 78,630 59,780

Unallocated assets ROBLEE 75,578 83,114

Total assets BERRE 3,414,467 3,444,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
Segment liabilities

THRPER ()
THEEREEE)
DEEE

As at 31 December

R+=ZBA=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Steel cord i BE4R 952,814 950,176
Copper and brass products 8 No = SR AT 517 9,744
Total segment liabilities SELE(EAERE 953,331 959,920
Loans from related companies KEBBEATIZER 226,358 250,924
Bank borrowings IRITE 874,451 798,086
Unallocated liabilities ROBLEE 21,177 43,618
Total liabilities BREMAHE 2,075,317 2,052,548

For the purpose of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than certain property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, club
memberships, certain prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, tax recoverable,
pledged deposit on loan from a related
company, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash.

U all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than current income tax
liabilities, bank borrowings, loans from
related companies, deferred income tax
liabilities and other unallocated payables and
accruals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEERGE)
(c) Other segment information (c) HittnBER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z2-\+=-A=+—HL
FE
Copper and
brass
Steel cord products Total
WES Rk EEM R a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BET T
Amounts included in the BERGTESDEE
measure of segment RAEBERZ
assets or segment 4% .
profit or loss:
Capital expenditures BARMRAZL 53,059 146 53,205
Depreciation e 129,416 140 129,556
Net impairment losses on TRIBERE
financial assets BRI 1,652 (287) 1,365
Provision for inventories, net 17 & #5583 (740) - (740)
Loss on disposal of property, HEW¥ - BE &L G
plant and equipment, net ZIEEEE 1,796 569 2,365
Amount regularly provided EHEHFIELE
to CODM but not included REEEFEIER
in the measure of segment 2D HEHR D P
profit or loss or segment EEREBZEE
assets and liabilities:
Income tax (credit)/expense  FriSH (%) L H (3,124) 40 (3,084)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SHERGE)

(c) Other segment information (continued) (c) HittnHMER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—H1t
FE

Copper and

brass
Steel cord products Total
MgEsR R REIM A Gl

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT

Amounts included in the BERTESBEESR
measure of segment assets S IIERE S ¢
or segment profit or loss:

Capital expenditures BARAX 109,003 - 109,003
Depreciation e 117,772 609 118,381
Net impairment losses on TRLE ERE

financial assets BRFE (728) - (728)
Provision for inventories, net F& & %58 1,851 - 1,851
Losses on disposal of property, HE ¥ - = KM H

plant and equipment, net 2R RE 77 33 110

Amount regularly provided EHEMFFELE
to CODM but not included REEEFTEBIER
in the measure of segment :t2 % B2 5 P
profit or loss or segment BEERAGBZEHE:
assets and liabilities:
Income tax (credit)/expense  Fri5%i (K e) S H (9,088) 406 (8,682)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

6

BE— T/ \F+-_A=t—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 oIWBEHRGE)

(d) Geographical information (d) ngEﬁ;H
The Group’s operations, non-current assets and REBZEZE -  IFRHEENEKX
substantially all of the customers are located *BT\BT)Ei’]hEAKEIJFHFﬁE%f
in the PRC (including Hong Kong) which is the FEBRR  FBI(BERH) -
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the It - W 2 512K Q&I\EQ%}EZM‘
Group. Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue FENIETMENEE AR D B —
from external customers and non-current assets ST ©

by geographical location is presented.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of KEHAEEBASEERI0% ZE
the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FPHZERENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLHFE

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Customer A (Note) ZEAKIEE) 370,743 304,372
Customer B (Note) =FEB(MIFE) 265,503 204,113

Note: Revenue from steel cord segment.

OTHER INCOME

Mzt - REMERIB L EHEE -

7 HflA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E-\F T fF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT AETT

Government grants (Note) BT R L (B sE) 1,097 411
Sales of scrap materials SHEBEEYE 2,659 3,007
3,756 3,418

Note: The government grants represented immediate financial Mz - Br TR AL 3R Ak B A B # 5 BT B9 B BE B IR

subsidies granted by the local governments in the PRC. &R o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

B PR R B T

8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

230

BE—F

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

8 H(F#E) KHEFHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net fair value losses on derivatives FIEEBZTETIAREZ
held for trading AT EEIBFE (1,956) (1,467)
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - BREEZEBZ
plant and equipment, net (Note 33(a)) 18 5 %5A (Fi5E33(a)) (2,723) (110)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HeEefr (EiE) s
club memberships (Note 33(a)) (M¥7E33(a)) (225) 395
Others HAtb 347 2,126
(4,557) 944
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K j‘ﬁ&#ﬁiﬁfj

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

9

EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE— T/ \F+-_A=t—HLFE

9 RMUEIINEHR

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution RIERKN DHELEEER  THE
and selling expenses, administrative expenses and BRFRERZERSNWOT
research and development are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories sold (including SHEN A (BIEE R
net provision for inventories FTEREFE)
recognised) (Note 21) (FHt3E21) 1,971,365 1,898,939
Employee benefit expense (including EERAAZ(BEESEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (MisE10) 225,568 194,610
Depreciation of property, Y BENZEZITE
plant and equipment (Note 17) (MtsE17) 130,343 118,903
Auditor’s remuneration EETEA BN £
— Audit services —HBE RS 1,495 1,495
- Non-audit services — JEEF RS 428 428
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8/ 70 & 518 > # 54
(Note 19) (Mt3E19) 4,681 7,919
Provision for inventories, net (Note 21)  FEZE#EF5E (Kf:E21) (740) (1,708)
Operating lease rentals in respect of EREY 2 EEHERS
buildings 5,269 7,776
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

232

BE—T/\Ft+-A=1t—

BHIEFE

10 BEERAFEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Wages, salaries, allowances and He - ITE - EZBL R
other benefits Hia A 202,465 170,383
Pension costs — defined contributed plans :E (K48 F5t 2 2 3k 312 576
Pension costs — social securities RIRNBFIFTE 2 AL
in the PRC PEMHSRES 22,791 23,651
225,568 194,610
Five highest paid individuals EebEuFEMzES
The five individuals whose emoluments were the BE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HBLHF
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December B AEEFMERNAREARE=

2018 included three (2017: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
37. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2017: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

Z(ZE—tF: =ZR)EF - HBgC
KRR FESTHI R DR - FREN
BTIME(ZT—tF - MB)EENH

Bian T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BRI

Salaries, allowances and other benefits  ¥r& - 2BL & E b 1g F 2,619 3,124
Discretionary bonuses FIAMEANIEA 291 9
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R (K& FI|EH 2 > {2k 126 36
3,036 3,169

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

10 EERAFAEX(E)

EeLfuFHmMzEE(E)

The emoluments fell within the following bands: LS EENT
Number of individuals
BEAR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Emolument bands i g5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 781,000,001 L&
78 %1,500,0007T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 TE
78 12,000,0007T 1 2
2 2

Three (2017: three) executive directors of the Company,
constitute senior management of the Company, their
emoluments were within the following bands:

ZH(CE—LF ZR)AARRTE
F BRALAFNEMEEAS  HBe
BRUTEE

Number of individuals

Emolument bands
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

B < %0 (2
#8%1,5600,0017TE
#%2,000,0007T
72,000,001 L%
#8%2,500,0007T
2,500,001 7L
78%3,000,0007T
#8%3,000,0017TE
7% 3,500,0007T

EEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
2 -
1 1
- 1
- 1
3 8
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or other members of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join, upon joining the
Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

11 FINANCE COSTS, NET

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

10 EERAFAEX(E)
EEhuFMzES(E)
BE_ T tHFR-_ZT-NF+-A
=T HLEEE  AKRERERTAK
ShUFMcEBENESFTHEMKES
MME - AESBRSIWEMAIR A
AREEE 2 R A IFRBERAE

11 IR A HEEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E2-NEF —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Finance income EJJ?T%'BU\
Interest income on bank deposits 1TTE R H B U A 1,297 399
Foreign exchange gains on borrowings ,\%\Zﬁl\'ﬁg[ﬂuﬁﬁn - 41,677
Total finance income Ep Nk 1,297 42,076
Finance costs B # R A
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  R{TEF Z?FlJ X H (42,113) (42,956)
Interest expenses on loans from related REEMBEEANRIERZ
companies FEZH (12,790) (5,169)
Amortisation of loan transaction costs BRRZGRA 2 s (2,422) (4,653)
Foreign exchange losses on borrowings E 2 N TE F E518 (24,541) -
(81,866) (52,778)
Amount capitalised ERbeE8 1,939 291
Total finance costs RNk (79,927) (52,487)
Finance costs, net B 3% AR AN R 8 (78,630) (10,411)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT 12 FiBHiER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PEWET T

Current income tax: EHIFRSHE
— China corporate income tax — R ERER 886 622
Overprovision in prior years VAR S iR 1 (1,254) (7,047)
Total current income tax =SB (368) (6,425)
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEFTS L (M 5E29) (2,068) (270)
Income tax credit Fris i e (2,436) (6,695)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 as there is no
assessable profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
both years.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law”),
companies in the PRC are subject to income tax of 25%
unless preferential rate is applicable.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the
applicable CIT tax rate is 15%.

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd (“JESC”) was
renewed as HNTE in 2017 under the new PRC CIT Law.
As such, the applicable CIT tax rate for JESC was 15%
for the years ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

REBEZZE—tFEER_ZT—\FE+=A
=+—HIEFE  A&EBXEEAEH
NEBFEGHOERD RN - AR
EFEEHERENET 2 &E -

BEB-TSTNF—A—BAERZFEH
EMSBE(TREMBRIE]  BKIE
BEMREER  TRRPEBAFEZK
M25% M FT1SHL ©

B RRIRBECERMAEREAREEK
HENRFRMEE(TSHRMEE])
ZER - BRANERASEHRER15% -

RERHEFRERAR([FHERTT])
REFHNPEERMAEBHRE  R-F
—tFERRARMAE - Bt - RE
E_Z-N\FFT_A=+—BLEFER
BRI EEMERBHE /IR (=F
—+tF : A -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZE—ZT— /\F+=-HA=+—

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities in the respective
jurisdictions as follows:

BHIEFE

FreBiE R (E)

7 &= [B B BT 13 35 gt M) O B¢ 18 R R AR 5@

AREEREERNG HE
BYOREFENERTE

% S A B 0
AR RN T ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Loss before income tax BRILATEE (11,117) (75,213)
Tax calculated at domestics tax rates B R R AT E A R

applicable to losses in the respective & B8 SR &9 A 58 (BT 5E(7))

countries (Note (i)) (545) (16,455)
Expenses not deductible for taxation AEENRIE B

purposes 16,667 34,616
Income not subject to taxation PEFABIEZ WA (8,869) (17,935)
Tax losses for which no deferred income i 2 IE AEFT 15 Y

tax was recognised s E1E 8,291 9,797
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ERAERERH IS EE

tax losses (10,117) (5,766)
Tax incentives for research and 7 A B X S BT B A R A

development expenses available for MR G ER

a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC GEAD)

(Note (ii) (4,330) (3,155)
Withholding tax on interest income F B Az FaR R I8 (B 3£ (i)

(Note (iii)) (2,279) (750)
Overprovision in prior years F—FENBEEHES (1,254) (7,047)

(2,436) (6,695)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Notes:

13

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 4.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 21.9%). The change
is carried by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority
relating to the research and development expenses of a
subsidiary in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the
Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to 75%
(2017: 50%) of the relevant research and development
expenses incurred in a year approved by the PRC tax
authority.

The withholding tax rates on interest income earned from
entities in the PRC was 7%.

SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 and 2018:

Place of incorporation/

registration Issued and

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

12 FiBHiEE(E)
iR
i. HE_Z—\F+A=1+— EILtEF'
jJM%sTriﬁ ﬁﬁ%ﬁifﬁmg% —t5F
21.9%) ° EbEEEEAZlSE@BAXIE’JPﬁ
BARZANEENEE HRE(CFTE -
i. LK‘EEWEPI%R%%%WHX 578 8 B
RAMERZNES - REZNBEERR
o AKEAAPEREEERFENE
FRENHBERZEERANTSN (ZF—
F : 50% ) VFEINT ORI R ©
i. HREPEERZFSWAKEIRTH X
BT% °
13 IZﬁE'Aﬁ
ﬂ:+—EIJt :—EKW% Al ZFFIEm
B
Attributable equity

Name of subsidiaries

and operation paid-up capital

interest of the Group

Principal activities

WEAFER RY/AMRSELY CRORMERE rRERERERS  IERE
2018 2017
“E-N\E —T{F
Bigland Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property investment
RERERRAA Bk ARERR MERE
Eastern Century Metal Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Trading of metals and
Products Limited BE shares investment holding
EELBHmERAT 1,000,000 L@k SBEHRRERR
Everwinner Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
KENBREBRAT] &b shares RERHR
1,000,000 & 3z
Fair Win Development Limited Hong Kong/PRC 500,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property investment
BRYRARAT Bib /0 500,000 % &M% MERE
Heroland Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property investment
AERERRAA &k 2RERR NERE
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

238

Place of incorporation/

BE—F

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

13 MEAR(E)

registration Issued and Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries and operation paid-up capital interest of the Group Principal activities
HWEARER RY/AMRESELYE CERTRMERE rREREREES L TEXRH
2018 2017
ZE-\E T +tF
Hing Cheong Metals (China & Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary 100%* 100%* Processing and trading
Hong Kong) Limited & shares of copper and brass
BERE(FH)BRAR 1,000,0008% & @M% products
ARERMEINIRE S
Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., PRC US$70,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of steel
Ltd.* (“JESC”) H 70,000,000% T cords
RARGHERRARRA LENER
Online Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 31,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong shares of US$1 each RERR
ERRAER/ 31,000,000
BB BRIZT ERK
Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co.,  PRC US$82,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of steel
Ltd.* (“TESC”) i 82,000,000% T cords
BNEARERERAR LENER
Wei Hua International Trading PRC US$5,000,000 100%* 100%*  Trading of metal products
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* i 5,000,000 7T TEEmES
REEARES(LB)BRAR
R=@EFATEERA PRC US$5,700,000 100% 100%  Processing and trading
t 5,700,000% of copper and brass
products
WRERMENIRES
AREE(LB)ERERARY PRC US$2,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of management
i 2,000,000% 7T services
REEERE
# A wholly foreign owned enterprise # 2INEREE

Directly held by the Company

. RAREERFE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

13 MEAR(E)
ARAPMEERS  ERINEARE ZH
BRAINIEFERFERE  BK
AEBEEFEZEENHZMBA
Al ARBEFER RN EMHE QR
ZERBEERFEBHIE

of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital and
issued any debt securities subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: same).

14 DIVIDENDS

No interim or final dividend was paid or proposed for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the

reporting period.

15 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of

EMBRRARFERFRNAFERNEM
FEMEEAESEARCETEMNE
BRs(—F—tF : HE) -

14 RE
RBE_T—tFR-_FT-/\F+-A
=T HLESFE UEDIREIBIKE
ZHRHSREIRE - RMmEHREITE
EADR B AR B A 2 ©

15 BREE
(a) EA&
SREREIEVRADAZEE AL
HAFEEFRERENERTLBR
T EEE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E T+t

Loss attributable to the owners of A A TS AE(LEE
the Company (HK$’000) (B¥T ) (8,681) (68,518)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (shares)

BT E @RI IR

(R%13) 1,922,900,556 1,922,900,556

Basic loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company
(HK cent per share)

ZAYNETE? 2SN E=Tike
HEAREE(FBIEI)

(0.45) (3.56)
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15 LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

240

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of potentially dilutive ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market share price of
the Company’s shares for the year) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options.

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
as the outstanding share options would result in
an anti-dilution at loss per share, the diluted loss
per share equals the basic loss per share.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

15 SREE(E)

(b)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

w8
SREEERDEBABCEITE
Lﬁxbﬂ%iiﬁiﬂx{ﬁ”“%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/

EEEERKRMAE - NARA—
%ﬁ@&ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂx - BERHE - BB
PRiEM T - 4R AR T B AR AR PR

REBENEREETE  LEEA
BAFEERSEARARDFEARDN
FAME)BENRDHE °

BEZ—tFH-_T—\F+=
A=+—HLFE EEEAﬂ%ﬁﬁ
BERESHEREBEBEEAREE
BEREEEESHNERELREE -
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16

BE—F

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The movement of the net book amount for investment

properties is as follows:

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

16 REYHE
BEYENEESEEHMT :

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HE i

MegF
HK$’000
PEMET T
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—H—H 58,675
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or ERBRAERZ A TFEE
loss (Note) (P &) 23,820
Transferred from property, plant and EEEYE  BERERERZE17)
equipment (Note 17) 1,000
Disposals HeE (14,181)
Exchange differences bE H FE 1,476
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F+=—_A=+—8 70,790
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—HA—H 70,790
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or ERBEEARRZ AT EE
loss (Note) (BfF5E) 4,017
Transferred to property, plant and HEEYE BB R&EFTE17)
equipment (Note 17) (11,600)
Disposals & (6,370)
Exchange differences b B (1,388)
At 31 December 2018 WRZZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 55,449
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

242

Note:

BE—F

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3)

The investment properties of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong and residential property unit

located in the PRC with following details:

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

16 REWE(E)

B

ERAEANEEBRN ARIBENT

(B=8)

AT EHE

AEENREMEBUNEBN T ENFEM N
IR BEREEYREM - FBEOT

As at 31 December

Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
Residential property units located in the PRC

IR B XY EEN
R EEEMEEN

R+=B=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\fF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
26,300 41,600
29,149 29,190
55,449 70,790

The fair values as at 31 December 2018 were assessed by the
independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers Appraisal

and Consulting Limited (“Vigers”) (2017: same).

The valuations were determined using the direct comparison
approach. Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property

size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is

price per square foot/square meter.

AEBZREMER —_ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—H
ZAFEDRBEREEY HEEE 2B LA ER
BXRAEMEEEEEF HEREAR AR (S

HD(ZZ—tF : HR) -

HEEERBERLEE - REBEFEX/NFRHGE
BENZRARAUALLNFEEHEER - 5
BEFEREENBARTFAR,FHAKNE

-
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWHE(E)

Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

(a)

Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (a)
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the

industrial property units located in Hong Kong as at 31

December 2017 and 2018 are:

BtsE: (48)

ERAEANEBLIBERANBETAFERE
(B=#) (&)

IR EBH T Y ER
HE-_ZT—tFR=_FT—NF+=A
=1+—8 UREBSNITEMEEMGE
FrfE AR E B EEH R AZBNOT -

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs As at 31 December
fh{ET % EEBER ARE R+=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price
per square foot HK$6,200 HK$5,700
HELEE B RAEENTISER 7 16,2007T P& #55,7007T

As at 31 December 2018, if the adjusted market price per
square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,315,000 (2017: HK$2,080,000) lower. The
lower the adjusted market price per square foot, the lower
the fair value.

Residential property units located in the PRC (b)
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the

residential property units located in the PRC as at 31

December 2017 and 2018 are:

RZFE—N\F+-_A=+—8 ' WRAE
BOBTARTBERTES% - BB
SHHIFE S A 11,315,000T(—F—+
F : B12,080,0007T) ° ARENETH
RMIBESBIE A FEBE -

AR B EE Y EA
HE-_ZT—tFR=-_ZFT—-NF+=H
=+—H8  URPFENEEYEEMGEE
I A EBEEERBABBRNOT

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs As at 31 December
fRERS % EEBERARE R+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price Ranged from Ranged from
per square meter HK$38,000 to HK$39,500 to
HK$52,000 HK$50,500
HELEE B KRR TISER &= N & i

B#38,000tE B#39,500LE
75 #52,0007T B#50,5007T
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3) (continued)

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC (continued)
As at 31 December 2018, if the adjusted market price per
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,457,000 (2017: HK$1,460,000) lower. The
lower the unit replacement cost per square meter, the lower

the fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were
no transfers of investment properties between fair value
hierarchy classifications during the year (2017: same).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and

maintenance (2017: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss:

16 REME(E)
fiE: (4

ERAEANEBLIBERANBETAFERE

(B=#) (&)

(b) MIRPEEEEYEEM(E)
R-ZF-N\F+-A=+—8 WREF
TANEMEERARDE% - AlE B
B 5 88 R 8 #1,457,000T (—F —+
F - 7£%1,460,0007T) © TF AR B
B AR - AFEBIE -

BT \F+-_A=+—HLFE &
MR B R R FERE R R 2 &5
“T—F AR o

R-ZE-—N\F+-_A=+—0 " ~5H
W EEAIAREEENANEEARAR
HERERE(ZE—1F : HF) -

UT B RERBRRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
—B-NE T LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Rental income 1,804 2,330
Direct operating expenses arising RAFEEELARS WAL
from investment properties that KEMHE 2 BEEKEER
generated rental income (96) (221)
Changes in fair values recognised BaRERZ
in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss 4,017 23,820
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The period of leases whereby the Group leases out it
investment properties under operating leases ranged
from one to six years (2017: one to five years).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, leasehold
land and building of HK$11,600,000 has been
reclassified to property, plant and equipment as a
result of commencement of owner-occupation on 9
September 2018.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown
above comprise land and buildings in Hong Kong and
other regions in the PRC are as follows:

16 BREWE(E)

AEERELCEHENHEREMED
HEHA—Z=ZF(ZE—+F: —FH
F)o

BE_ZT-\F+_-_HA=+—BItF
- HE i &Y E#E11,600,0007T
HEFER ER-ZE-/N\FNLANEB
BEHOBERYE  WE L&A -

PREBEYENEEEOESSRTE
E A db A0+ b BRI T

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8”
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Hong Kong BB 26,300 41,600
PRC h 29,149 29,190
55,449 70,790
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

246

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

17 V¥ BERRE

Leasehold  Leasehold Furniture,
landand  Improve-  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
Bg Bg G %E

48T NERE  HERER ERfE RE  EREIE ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

gt Akfn BT BT BT BT BETR
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-B-A
Cost or fair value RAESEE 342,325 458 2,152,900 30,529 18,312 21480 2,570,131
Accumulated depreciation ZERGE

and impairment loss - (4,265  (1,352,289) (26,044) (16,416) (2,026) (1,401,039
Net book amount REAE 342,325 320 800,612 4,485 1,896 19454 1,169,092
Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE-tE+ZA=1-H
Opening net book amount HEnTE 342,325 320 800,612 4,485 1,896 19454 1,169,092
Additions hE - 441 509 76 - 108,432 109,458
Disposals hE (13,502) - (2,876) (39) - - (16,417)
Transferred to investment BEBRANE(Hi6)
properties (Note 16) (1,000) - - - - - (1,000)

Transfers g 387 - 79,014 1 1,060 (81,182) -
Depreciation (Note 9) fE () (32,334 (249)  (85,240) (847) (233) - (118,909)
Revaluation (Note) RS 34,203 - - - - - 34,203
Exchange differences EXHE 22,454 13 71,813 320 162 2,732 97,494
Closing net book amount HRERFE 352,533 525 863,832 4,716 2,885 49436 1273927
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 V¥  BERRKRE(E)
(continued)
Leasehold  Leasehold Furniture,
land and Improve-  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
i BE Bl %E

8T  NEEE  RRERAS Rikfe RE REIE aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000

E¥TT  A%Tn  RMTr A%t BMTr BBt R¥Tn

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZB=1-H
Cost or fair value HAEIAE 352,533 4313 2,381,715 32,763 20511 4943% 2841271
Accumulated depreciation and BitERAE

impairment loss - (3,788)  (1,517,883) (28,047) (17,626) - (1,567,344)
Net book amount FHFE 352,533 525 863,832 4,716 2,885 49436 1273927

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-E-NEt-A=1-A

Opening net book amount KA TE 352,533 525 863,832 4,716 2,885 49436 1273927
Additions NE - 763 1,315 467 1,745 49,941 54,231
Disposals e - (354) (6,842) (242) (682) (101) (8221)
Transferred from investment properties & & % &% ([i3i16)

(Note 16) 11,600 - - - - - 11,600
Transfers & 671 724 91,454 2,367 - (95,216) -
Depreciation (Note 9) HE() (36,818) (318) (91,967) (949) (291) - (130343
Revaluation (Note) Bt 29,816 - - - - - 29,816
Exchange differences EEHE (15,030) (26) (48,443) (2n3) (163) (7142) (64,677)
Closing net book amount HREAFE 342,172 1,314 809,349 6,086 3,494 3318 1,166,333
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-B=t-A
Cost o fair valug RARIME 32,112 385 2,344,202 31,417 15,888 3318 2741422
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE

impairment loss - 2,511)  (1,534,859) (25,331) (12,394) - (1,575,089)
Net book amount FEEE 342,172 1314 809,349 6,086 3,494 3318 1,166,333
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 V¥  BERRZRE(E)
(continued)
Note: B 5
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable FREANELIBESRAMBETATETE
inputs (level 3) (BE=4)
The leasehold land and buildings of the Group represent industrial REBREE T RIEFRUNBEEN THEYHE
property units located in Hong Kong, commercial property unit B RPN EEDESN R RFEY T
located in the PRC and industrial property units located in the HEYEEN BT o
PRC with following details.
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T T IT
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong  fIRE R 2 T2 E A 18,400 6,300
Commercial property unit located in the PRC R B 2 P s B L 913 957
Industrial property units located in the PRC Rz TEMESAL 323,459 345,276
342,772 352,533
The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are carried REENHEE L REFREMGEBEEIIE i
at revaluated amount. If the leasehold land and buildings HETMEEFHAEM  AIER-_ZT—N\F
had not been revalued, they would have been included T A=+t HBERELRANREARFTINEZRE
in these consolidated financial statements at historical B8 /% % 245,051,000 (=T — £ F : B
cost less accumulated depreciation with carrying amount 272,645,0007C ) 5t AR & B HREK ©

248

of HK$245,051,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:

HK$272,645,000).
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17

B PR R B T

BE—

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

The revaluated amount as at 31 December 2018 were assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers
(2017: same). The valuations were determined using either:

= Direct comparison approach: Sales price of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square foot/
square meter; or

- Depreciated replacement cost approach: Current cost
of replacement/reproduction of the properties. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is replacement
cost per square foot/square meter.

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3):

(a) Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong as at 31
December 2017 and 2018 are:

Valuation technique

Unobservable inputs

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

17 9% - BERREE)
FiaE: ()

ERAEANEZIBERGABBETAVENE
(=4 ()
HE-_Z-/\F+_-_A=+—-HNEMGMLHEH
B B EAEXERNEEMEBHTFGE(ZE
—t%F @A) - FEFRAATE-TTEEE -

— ERHEE RARTME R RYE 7
EEREREIZBUHEDINYERR) 2=
RELFE - IAHETEZHRERBAE
REFTIRFIRHER &

- EREEERANZE: ERYMEEEK
A/ BEIERA o WhEFTEZRERE
NEREFFTHR/FIRONEERA -

EMEREANEERREARES A
(HEIRMERER -

FiEEE

() NMRBEBZLEVMEEMN
HE_T—t&FR=-_FT—NF+=A
=+—H UREBSNIEMESEMGE
FrE AN EZEEERHASRAT :

As at 31 December

fh{ERS % EEBERARE R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F

Market comparable approach Adjusted market price

per square foot HK$6,500 HK$6,400
MG A KRG HIRMSER 7 1#6,5007T 75 #56,4007T
As at 31 December 2018, if the adjusted market price BHE-_ZT—\F+=-A=+—8 " KZD%«EH%Z
per square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on other EHRMIBERTRES%, HHMGEAS WA E

comprehensive income would be HK$920,000 (2017:
HK$315,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per
square foot, the lower the fair value.

#5575 #920,000 T ( —F — 4 : #%315,000

TR - ARRNEFTRMSEREE 2
FEMAE o
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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B PR R B T

BE—

17

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

(b)

(c)

Commercial property unit located in the PRC

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
commercial property unit in the PRC as at 31 December
2017 and 2018 are:

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

M - BERREE)

B aE: ()

ERAEANELZBERBABBET

AT EHE

(B=#) ()

(b) fIRAPEZEEYEEM
HE_T—tFR=-_FT—NF+=A
=+—B  URTBEHEHEYEENGE

FfEAMEEMEMEBRBABENT

As at 31 December

fh{ERS % ELBENARE R+=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price
per square meter HK$20,500 HK$21,500
Gik 12407 KRG HATIHER 7#20,500T 75 #21,5007T

As at 31 December 2018, if the adjusted market price
per square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$46,000 (2017:
HK$48,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per
square meter, the lower the fair value.

Industrial property units located in the PRC

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units in the PRC as at 31 December 2017
and 2018 are:

Unobservable inputs

BEBERARE

Valuation technique

HER %

BE_T-\F+_HA=1+—H,10&#H
1$H#m%ﬁ%TMﬂ@ﬁﬁ@ﬂm%

VB RER46,000L(ZT—tF
/%Fi#’ms OOOﬁ)ﬁ’J\ HEEHNEF IR
M5 EREE  AFEBE -

AR B T 3R
HE_ZT—tFR=-_FT—-—NF+=H
=+—H  URPENIEYEEMNGHE
FrfE AR E B EEE R ASBRNOT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF

Depreciated replacement cost approach Unit replacement cost

per square meter

BEIEEERATE BYIREMEERA

Adopted depreciation rate

ERAZFEX

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

Ranged from Ranged from

HK$1,289 to HK$1,356 to
HK$3,029 HK$3,154
EEH & [E i
BH1,280 T E 11,356 %
13,029 T 753,154 7T

Ranged from
55% to 91%

Ranged from
57% to 92%

EEH & [E i
55%Z91% 57% £92%
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BE—

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (level 3) (continued)

(©)

Industrial property units located in the PRC (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if the unit replacement cost
per square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$16,173,000 (2017:
HK$17,264,000) lower. The lower the unit replacement cost
per square meter, the lower the fair value.

There were no transfers of leasehold land and buildings
between fair value hierarchy classifications during the year
(2017: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, leasehold land
and building of HK$1,000,000 has been reclassified to
investment properties as a result of change in usage on 9
October 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, leasehold land and buildings
located in the PRC amounting to HK$201,312,000 (2017:
HK$215,187,000) and plant and machinery amounting to
HK$90,404,000 (2017: HK$100,004,000) are pledged to
secure bank borrowings as set out in Note 24.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

17 Y% - BERKECE)

B aE: ()

ERAEANELZBERBABBET

AT EHE

(=4 ()

(c)

IRz Ty ERN ()
HE-Z—/\F+=-A=+—H W8¥
FREBMNEBENAR TE5% @ HEMES
W2 5 5%16,173,000L (=&
— L& : B #17,264,00070) H L - BF
FARBAEERANBIE - AFEBE o

FR - HETHWEBFORIFERERSE
Wit (—2—+F : 8R) -

RBE-ZT—+tF+=-_A=+—HBIF
= EEWE_f +t&E+ANBZEER
7w HEE Mmoooooﬁa‘ﬁﬁ Eganb: N
EYMEETHDBEEREME -

)<1¢

FF@

RZZ—N\F+ZA=1+—8 ' U+ EH
#E & 13 R 12 F B % 201,312,000
T(ZZF—tF:%5%215,187,0007T) &
R K i 25 (A 7585 90,404,000 T (=&
—+4F : 8%100,004,0007T) B K IHIE S
RITERZEIR - BRI 24 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 €@ T A9

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8”
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PSR IT
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBHERATENEREE
Pledged deposit on loan from a related RE—HR:E A BB
company [k 7,989 8,374
Trade receivables JrE WLBR 5K 690,931 688,333
Bills receivable JEW R & 924,355 683,954
Deposits and other receivables e M E b e U R 4,251 23,988
Pledged bank deposits B IPRITFR 78,630 59,780
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIRS 66,682 210,559
1,772,838 1,674,988
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Z#HEFATENESREE :
Trade and bills payables EREBRR R R 808,951 830,269
Other payables and accruals Hin eI kiR E A 131,231 140,589
Loans from related companies KEBEBEATIZER 226,358 250,924
Bank borrowings IRITEF 874,451 798,086
2,040,991 2,019,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

19 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19 FEfHERE
Leasehold
land located
in the PRC
NRPEZ
HELH
HK$’000
/E%$7‘E
At 1 January 2017 RZZT—+F—H—H
Cost [N 210,799
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss 2154 B (E B L (61,492)
Net book amount BRHEFE 149,307
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tHF+-A=1+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount HAY) BRI 5HE 149,307
Amortisation (Note 9) #5H (M95E9) (7,919)
Impairment loss recognised EREREERKX (72,523)
Exchange differences DE 37, 58 2L 10,177
Closing net book amount HR AR TE A 79,042
At 31 December 2017 R=-B-—tH&t+=A=+—H
Cost B AN 128,533
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss  Z:tH# s EFHE B L (49,491)
Net book amount R HE 79,042
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—\S+=-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HAY BRI 5HE 79,042
Amortisation (Note 9) B 5H (M5E9) (4,681)
Exchange differences bE H A (3,464)
Closing net book amount HARARTE 3B 70,897
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF-N\F+=-A=+—H
Cost [N 122,623
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss 2T 54 E B L (51,726)
Net book amount BRTEFE 70,897
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19

254

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

In late November 2017, TESC received a notice
regarding the rescission of confirmation letter in
respect of successful bidding of state-owned land for
construction (the “Rescission Notice”) from Tengzhou
Municipal State-owned Land Resources Bureau (the
“State-owned Land Resources Bureau”) regarding
three parcels of idle land with area of brownfield sites
reaching 237,855 square meters (the “Lands”). The
Lands were acquired through public auctions with a
total consideration of RMB81,120,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$92,582,000) as plant site for the
expansion of production capacity of TESC in 2010
and 2011 and recognised as prepaid lease payments.
However, given the changes in the market of steel
cord and strategic review of the expansion plan, TESC
has yet to utilise the Lands since its acquisition, nor
received the relevant land use right certificates. As at
31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying amount
of the prepaid lease payments was RMB60,623,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$72,523,000). If the
Rescission Notice is being executed, TESC may
possibly be required to surrender the Lands and forfeit
the land use rights attached thereto. The Group has
recognised a full impairment on the entire carrying
amount of the prepaid lease payments for the Lands.

As at 31 December 2018, the negotiation with relevant
government authorities with an aim to withdraw the
Rescission Notice is still underway.

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

19 BENEEREGE)

RZZE—tF+—ATE  BINEFTK
FgMmEEIERB(TBRLEERRB])
“IRIEERE @ R L EiEE237,855
FaKRM T ([ZEL])BEEOER
(BEEEZAMEELEBRNRERE) @
ME([F@RBRABANE]) - ZEIHERZ
T ZEFR-_ZE——FFEBLARABRE
AR ELTE R AR81,120,0007T (48
LA H) 7 #92,582,0007T) NS © A A
BMNRABREEEREREZA @ I
HRABBEMNEERE - BNEHFEEA
RABMAZEL R EAREHEED
THERER RN_ZT—+F+=-H
=+—H @ ZEMHEERENERDFE
#75 AR#60,623,0007T (BER 478
72,523,0007T) ° HBHEATRRRBAE - k&
MRS BB ERFEEZS I - I
B H IR ZE T FERE - AEE
BRI BN HERENZIE®E
BRI IRE ©

R-E-—N\F+T-_A=+—H HiE#
TR #B P A S AR B B A e D
75 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

19

20

21

BE—F

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, prepaid lease payments
amounting to HK$62,859,000 (2017: HK$69,211,000)
are pledged to secure bank borrowings as set out in
Note 24.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to one of the CGUs of the Group,
comprising a subsidiary in the steel cord segment,
JESC. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on the value-in-use calculation.

Goodwill allocated to the CGU had been fully impaired
as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

INVENTORIES

19

20

21

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

EABEEREE)

RZZB—N\F+=-A=+—8 &84
HE#¥62,859,000C (=T —+F : B
69,211,0007T) 2 AT A E FRIAE K3 LA
TERTTERAER - FHBHIIARM:E24 -

BLEE

mE
ﬁ%aﬁ“mi—ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁv§¢
BIERBMSD HR 0 —FMHBAR—
mﬁﬁoﬁiﬁzﬁumTWE@@E
RIEEAEETEET -

R-ZE—+tR T N\FE+-_A=+—
AR TR ELEMNHNEED 2 ERMAE -

BE

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Raw materials R 120,939 128,181
Work in progress &S 58,292 61,888
Finished goods SR Gh 140,737 116,163
319,968 306,232

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales
during the year amounted to HK$1,971,365,000
(2017: HK$1,898,939,000), which included reversal
of provision for inventories of HK$740,000 (2017:
HK$1,708,000).

FRAEEXNETFTHNTFEKRAREE
1,971,365,000 C (— T — L & : B
1,898,939,0007T)  HH BEFEHE
B[O 740,000 (ZF— £ F : B
1,708,0007T) ©
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AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ_—ZT— /\+_-_A=+—HItFE

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE 22 FEWERF FEWEE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEUER SR (BT 5E(a)) 711,055 708,075
Less: provision for impairment loss on & : FEUER RO (B8 K B4
trade receivables (Note (c)) (FzE(c)) (20,124) (19,742)
690,931 688,333
Bills receivable (Note (b)) e U ZE 1% (BT 5 (b)) 924,355 683,954
1,615,286 1,372,287
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables and bills FEW I M ENEEHEREEN TIE
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: Moot {E
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
RMB AR 1,499,981 1,288,404
USD 7T 70,484 62,859
Others Hih §# 44,821 21,024

1,615,286 1,372,287
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range
from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the
trade receivables primarily based on invoice date
was as follows:

22 EWARE

R EWRE (&)

(a) EWERR
AEE-—RETEESEFI0BE
OHMEERE - BKEREER
RER A BRI 2 RER DT 2540
I

As at 31 December

R+t=—BA=+—H”
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 90 days FZ=90H 509,968 535,777
91 to 180 days 91%180H 161,457 145,993
Over 180 days %1180 H 39,630 26,305
711,055 708,075
Bills receivable (b) EWEE

The ageing analysis of the bills receivable
primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

RUREETEREEXZBHRGZ
BRER DT 25T -

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NEF —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Up to 90 days +FZ%=90H 91,277 50,595
91 to 180 days 91£=180H 339,157 266,311
Over 180 days %1180 H 493,921 367,048
924,355 683,954

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bills
receivable are with maturity date within one year

(2017: same).

RZE—NFE+=-_A=+—H &
SEMERKER ZEIHBEYE—

FI2AR(ZE

—tF : HR) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE 22 FEWERT EWERE(E)
(continued)
(b) Bills receivable (continued) (b) EWERE(E)
(i) Transferred receivables (i) EURZzEZE
The carrying amounts of the bills receivables IUTAEREENREHRES

include receivables which are transferred
to banks or suppliers by discounting or
endorsing those receivables on a full
recourse basis. Under these arrangements,
the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these
receivables. The Group therefore continues
to recognise the transferred assets in their
entirety in its consolidated statement of
financial position and measuring them at
amortised cost.

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows:

HEREEMRTRITHES
THERZBKEIE - BRA
SEUARERAEXSFRER
R EBRER R EIHR - FH it
HBERAZEREEE 22
FREENEEAE - ZFMH
ﬁ??ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’\ﬁ‘ilz
RA BB KA

BRAREENT :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F il
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bills receivable discounted to R2HEEEZEECUHRF
banks with full recourse RITZEWEE
Transferred bills receivable g E | S 162,157 37,403
Associated secured borrowings  FHEE K E R (162,157) (87,403)
Bills receivable endorsed to Eéﬁ?ﬁ?géa"i?@ﬁ
suppliers with full recourse TREREE
Transferred bills receivable EECEE T 601,547 523,648
Associated trade payables B B8 FE ST BR 3K (557,728) (484,189)
Associated other payables B B8 EL At B 1< 3K (25,999) (31,314)
Associated prepayments FERETERT R (17,363) (5,618)
Associated deposit paid for HEABEYE BEN
the acquisition of property, REZE =
plant and equipment (457) (2,527)
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e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE 22 FEUWEEE: e =g (45)

(continued)

(c) Provision for impairment loss on trade (c) BWERFUREBLEE
receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment FEUNBE R E B L BE M & & 10
loss on trade receivables is as follows: T

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year F LR 19,742 19,129
Net impairment loss on trade RNEERKRFRERRFHE
receivables for the year 1,365 (728)
Exchange differences BEE < G L (983) 1,341
At end of the year FRER 20,124 19,742
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the RMEHE  RXEERR A it
reporting date is the carrying values of each ZHEERFRENERERE - X
class of receivables mentioned above. The Group —tFER_E—NFt+_A=1+—
did not hold any collateral as security for these B AEEYEFEEAMERRE
receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2018. BZERIWGRIAER R

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 259



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—F

23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

23 FEfR

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

- BRERHEMERR

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current portion TRENEB 2
Prepayments TR 27,258 28,478
Deposits e 625 1,172
Other receivables H A FE UK 3,626 22,816
31,509 52,466
Non-current portion FEREZ D
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEYZX BB L&E
property, plant and equipment s CANE 1,724 8,967
33,233 61,433

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are denominated in the following

AR e R E WK AR E B A
TINEHEHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —EF—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
RMB AR 32,239 54,715
UsD ETT 247 383
Others HaE 747 6,335
33,233 61,433
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24 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the carrying
amounts of assets pledged as security for bills payable
(Note 26), loans from related companies (Note 27) and
bank borrowings (Note 28) are:

() leasehold land and buildings of HK$201,312,000
(2017: HK$215,187,000) (Note 17);

(i) plant and machinery of HK$90,404,000 (2017:
HK$100,004,000) (Note 17);

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$78,630,000 (2017:
HK$59,780,000) (Note 25);

(iv) pledged deposit on loan from a related company
of HK$7,989,000 (2017: HK$8,374,000) (Note 27);
and

(v) prepaid lease payments of HK$62,859,000 (2017:
HK$69,211,000) (Note 19).

24 EKHEE
RZE—+tFRFE-—NF+H
=+—H ETERERETENRER
(MizE26) - REEMAELRAER(ME
27) MERTTER (M E28) MIRFBZBE
FREEAS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

%ﬂ%ii@&@%ﬂzzm 312,000
T(—Z—+4F : 215,187,000
70) (Bi5E17)

| o

5 = K #2235 190,404,000 7T ( —
T —+ % %100,004,0007T ) (Fft
17

2R AER T IE 2B 78,630,000
(ZZT—+4 : #%59,780,0007T)
(FffzE25) s

KE—BBEAFEZEBEZEE
HiE 457,989,000 ( —F—+
& : A188,374,0007T) (fiEE27)
)53

& 1+ 18 & 58 8 % 62,859,000 7T

(ZZT—+4 : #%69,211,0007T)
(BfzE19) °
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262

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 25 CEBRITER RITEERE
BALANCES AND CASH &
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) SEFB|ITER

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Pledged bank deposits EHEIPRITFER 78,630 59,780

Pledged bank deposits represents bank deposits
of the Group which were pledged to secure credit
facilities on bills payable granted to subsidiaries
of the Company for the purchase of raw materials.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
deposits were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest
rate on pledged bank deposits was 0.61% per
annum (2017: 0.3% per annum).

EERMRITEFREAEENRITF
REBRURA QR ZHB R AR
BERMHZENREIGEER
JE o REE D E R FRARREE A
ARHE -

R-_E—NF+-_A=+—8 -
EEFRTERNERFNE A
0.61% (ZZE—+4:0.3%) °

(b) Bank balance and cash (b) BITEERRE

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PEWET T
Bank balance and cash RITHEFRIR® 66,682 210,559
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25 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 25 BEEMBRTER RITEFRER
BALANCES AND CASH (continued) € (&)
(b) Bank balance and cash (continued) (b) RTEEFEREE(E)
The carrying amounts of bank balance and cash RITEFLEENREENA NIE

were denominated in the following currencies: MooHE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
RMB AR 44,361 95,864
HKD B 2,701 58,396
uUsD =TT 11,614 40,193
Others H{h & 8,006 16,106
66,682 210,559
As at 31 December 2018, funds of the RZZE—N\F+=—HA=+—8  &~&H

Group amounting to HK$35,904,000 (2017: BB 35,904,000 ( —F—+tF : B

HK$159,300,000) were deposited in bank
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 were HK$66,568,000
(2017: HK$210,382,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest
rate on bank balances ranged from 0.01% to 1.0%
per annum (2017: 0.01% to 1.5% per annum).

#159,300,0007T ) 7 IR #£ 7 B35 A SR 1T
FMARITERS  MEBAESNNER
BISMEE S o

—E-NE+ZA=1+—"08 " x&EF
EAXEER R A5 %¥66,568,0007T (=
+ 4 : B%210,382,0007T) °

i
=y

T—
R-TE—NE+-A=+—8 $£7

EEERFEMNER00I%BELION(ZE
—+F:0.01%E1.5%) °
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BE—T/\Ft+-A=1t—

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 26

264

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BHIEFE

FEARRR RS HA AR

HARREH

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok v
Trade payables (Note (a)) FERTERZX (FT5E(a)) 655,809 705,298
Bills payable (Note (b)) FEf 1% (MY3E (b)) 153,142 124,971
808,951 830,269
Other payables and accruals Hib e R TERE A
Advance receipts from customers A E PR (M ()

(Note (c)) - 93
Contract liabilities BRRE 125 -
Other tax payables H M ENTiIA 8,858 11,258
Other accrued expenses and payables  H {712 & A & E = 121,807 128,212

130,790 139,563
939,741 969,832
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, AEENENER  BNERERHEME

bills payables and other payables and accruals are

denominated in the following currencies:

MR EEREROREENTIIEEET
18 :

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—8H
2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
HKD 7 s 12,911 9,138
RMB AR 910,033 937,396
UsD ETT 10,761 19,516
Others HE 6,036 3,782
939,741 969,832
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #Z—_Z— ) \E+_-_A=1+—HItFZE

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 26 ENBRARERE HbEMNSRK
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) FERERE)
(a) Trade payables (a) FE(TBERRX

HER-—RETAEEIOANEE
BRE - ENBRREIERBEEZHE
bl REE DT 25T -

The Group’s credit period granted by the suppliers
is 30 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as
follows:

As at 31 December

R+t=ZBA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Up to 30 days FZ%=30H 127,868 208,686
31 to 90 days 31290H 189,506 236,611
91 to 180 days 91£180H 245,983 227,788
181 to 365 days 181£365H 78,844 24,377
Over 365 days % 12365 H 13,608 7,836
655,809 705,298

(b) Bills payable

The ageing analysis of the bills payable primarily

based on invoice date was as follows:

(b) BNRE

ENEEIERBZEZAHEH

BRI DT 25T ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 30 days FZ%=30H 37,206 20,174
31 to 90 days 31290H 64,814 74,577
91 to 180 days 912180H 40,007 30,220
181 to 365 days 181£365H 11,115 -
153,142 124,971

The bills payable of the Group are secured by

pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 24.

AEBEZ BNEBEASEMRRTE
KM EE24 358 ) (1R o
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26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)
(c) Advance receipts from customers

BE— T/ \F+-_A=t—HLFE

As at 31 December 2018, the contract liabilities
for the advanced payments received from the
customers included in the other payables and
accruals amounted to HK$125,000 (1 January

2018: HK$93,000).

The Group applied the practical expendient and
does not disclose the information relating to the
remaining performance obligations that have
original expected durations of one year or less.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year
amounted to HK$93,000 (2017: HK$371,000).
The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy
the remaining performance obligations of these
contract liabilities within one year or less.

27 LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES

26 ENERRREE HiESK
HRERA(E)
(c) AREF

E=FT-\EFE—H=1T—H 4
HWEBBZHEREFRPREBERHEME
N kIERE R £ 5 #%125,000
T(ZE—N\F—A—R: 8%
93,0007T) °

AEEXRBRTYERITNTER K
BEERBBEHPRS —FH—F
ATHRSBEITEBERNES -

BE_ZT-N\Ft-_A=1+—H1Lt
FEERANDBA  EREFTNE
WafEH - HEE¥93,000T (=
T— & : B¥371,0007T) - A%
BEETE - FRERKHRARNE
W AETT B & DA BHRIRE
HMBEILE

27 REEBREATZER

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current portion TENEB S
Loan from Shougang (Hong Kong) REEH(ES)MEERAF]
Finance Company Limited (Note (i) Z B (FEEG)) 205,534 200,657
Loan from South China International REmMSEBEHEERRA A
Leasing Co., Ltd. (mHFHEENZEXK
(“South China Leasing”) (Note (ii)) (B (i) 20,824 28,097
226,358 228,754
Non-current portion FERBEI D
Loan from South China Leasing (Note (ii)) KEEHHEZEX
(BREEGi)) - 22,170
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27 LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(U]

(i)

The amount represents the loan from and interest payable
to Shougang (Hong Kong) Finance Company Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Shougang HK”). The Company is an associate
of Shougang HK. The loan is unsecured, bears interest at
5% to 6% per annum (2017: 6% per annum) and repayable
within one year (2017: same).

On 29 June 2016, TESC had entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with South China Leasing whereby TESC
had drawn down a loan of RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$81,159,000) from South China Leasing
on 16 August 2016 on a sale and leaseback arrangement,
which was to be repayable by 12 quarterly instalments plus
interest at 5.13% per annum and obligated to pay lease
handling fee of RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,454,000). South China Leasing is an indirect 75%
owned subsidiary of Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited, which is in turn held as to approximately 50.53%
by Shougang HK. As such, South China Leasing is an
associate of Shougang HK.

As collaterals for the above financing,

(i) TESC transferred the ownership title of certain
machineries and equipment (“Machineries and
Equipment”) to South China Leasing;

(i)  TESC placed a pledged deposit of RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,989,000 (2017:
HK$8,374,000)) to South China Leasing; and

(i) the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
in favour of South China Leasing for the payment
obligations of TESC under the Agreement.

Upon discharging TESC’s obligations under the
Agreement, South China Leasing will return the
ownership title of the Machineries and Equipment
to TESC for a nominal purchase price of RMB1,000.
Despite the Agreement involves a legal form of a
lease, the Group accounted for the Agreement as
collateralised borrowing in accordance with the actual
substance of the Agreement.

27 XH
Mot -

U]

(i)

BE—F—\FT-A=+—HILEE

Il

BFREARZERE)

7

ZE2BARKE EMER(FE)BERAQF]
(TEEREE)z—H2EMBRAR— &
(BB BAERARNERKLERMFR
ARAZEEBEBNBERTE - ZEXR
B U5%E6% 2 FMNE(ZF—+
F 6% ZFME)HENE RN —FAE
B(ZT—t%F: AR) -

RZE—RENAZ+THAE  BMNEH
HEHFREE B ([ ZipE])
Bl R=T—A"FNA+~AE—H
ErEALHE EBMNESHE S AER
A K #70,000,0007t (ZE4 A B
81,159,000 ) {ERER + TH12H31E=
MELA5A3% 2 FREAEFBEBERT
HNHEEFEE ARE2,100,000T(EFE
#5712 454,0007T) - A E A
HERNAG (RE)ERAR(HEEES
FFE#950.53% 1% ) MEF B 75% = 8
MEBAR - At mAHEAEEEEN
BN A] o

fER LB & MR M

() BMNRZMEHZEES THEEES
R (R RRE DB

i) BMNEITEEBFIEHEFEAR
¥ 7,000,000 7T ( % (B &) = & &
7,989,000 7C (—F — £ F : B
8,374,0007T) ) B EHARE : K&

(i) ANRBRBEMNERTZHHBRT AR
AENRERITLABTEERR
m AR -

ERMER TR & #EER AR R

B B

REX

A HEEREIAAR1,0007TH
MEEBRABEMNEFREM#EN

RIEOFTAE - BEZ MRS MEERN
EERR - EASERBEZHHENER
AB R %A TIED EIRER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K jﬁﬁ#&d:lztl-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #Z—_Z— ) \E+_-_A=1+—HItFZE
28 BANK BORROWINGS 28 RITER

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Bank loans RITER 715,430 765,361
Less: loan transaction costs B BERRGKA (3,136) (4,678)
712,294 760,683
Discounted bills with recourse BB RER B RLIREE
(Note 22(b)(i)) (Bt EE22(b)(i)) 162,157 37,403
874,451 798,086
Non-current portion mENEL D 268,407 295,322
Current portion TRENER 606,044 502,764
874,451 798,086
Secured B 219,221 134,303
Unsecured i 655,230 663,783
874,451 798,086
The Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as AEERRITERFIBEENAT -
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\E —+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P IT
Within 1 year —FR 606,044 502,764
Between 1 and 2 years EF 118,407 26,914
Between 2 and 5 years F=EFRFNRA 150,000 268,408
874,451 798,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K j‘ﬁ&#ﬁiﬁfj

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

28 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28 SRITER(E)
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings RITERNEREEREE QN ERE
approximate their fair values.
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of )‘5/\* —NEFE+—_A=+—8 " BEF
fixed rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings AEZFHFNEERZEEED B A
are HK$577,587,000 (2017: HK$466,875,000) ,%?ﬁ%577,587,0007z(_f—t¢ 1
and HK$296,864,000 (2017: HK$331,211,000), 466,875,000 7T ) & & 296,864,000 7T
respectively. (ZZ—+4 : #%331,211,0007T) °
These borrowings carry variable rate at Hong Kong REE 2 FHANEXERIEEFBRITRZE
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus or minus a FE(BEBRITRAEFEDINEEE R ©
margin.
The bank borrowings of the Group are secured by AREBRRITERATENEERBIES
pledged by prepaid lease payments as disclosed in IR AT FE24 5 55 -
Note 24.
As at 31 December 2018, total undrawn facilities are R-ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—H  KEW
approximately HK$27,102,000 (2017: HK$14,434,000). Bl &AL A 27 102,000t ( ==

—F : ##14,434,0007T) °

The range of effective interest rates (which are also fE ERZEBRME(TBZERETL A
equal to contractual interest rates) on bank borrowings )E’JEBIZZDT

are as follows:

As at 31 December

Rt+t=BR=+—H
2018 2017
—ZE-NEF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Effective interest rate per annum:  E L4 Fi &
Fixed rate borrowings BElEFEER 3.40% t0 6.50% 4.77% to 5.64%
Variable rate borrowings FEVREE K 3.97% t0 5.17% 3.97% to0 5.87%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings AREBRTERNEREEN N7
are denominated in the following currencies: B :
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
HKD koo 296,864 295,322
RMB AR 577,587 502,764
874,451 798,086
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e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

29 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax
recoverable against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

BE—F

—NE+—A=+—BIEE
29 JRIEFIIE

WMITHENIEEE
5

fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

EEFTSHEER B EEARRETE R
HIFr S B Eay AT e
KA MEEFFBHER —MRERA
%% %Mﬁﬁ ﬁﬁwﬁmT-

Year ended 31 December

BR+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —t4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred income tax assets to U EEEFTS B E
be recovered (18,399) (14,655)
Deferred income tax liabilities to HEBLEMEHARE
be settled 48,016 41,699
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEFTEHRARETE 29,617 27,044

The movement in deferred income

tax assets and

ELXFBHREERABRAFE 2

liabilities during the year is as follows: R
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE
Provision for
Accelerated  impairment
tax loss ontrade Provision for
depreciation  receivables  inventories  Tax losses Total
FEWRR
NEFEESE HEBARG FERK HEEE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 —+F-F-H 568 3,979 1,737 6,100 12,384
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss uH\/ R E& 1,025 927 520 (944) 1,528
Exchange differences I 5 A% (565) 583 5 720 743
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=1-H 1,028 5,489 2,262 5,876 14,655
At 1 January 2018 R=E-/\$-A-H 1,028 5,489 2,262 5,876 14,655
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (R B 42 1,313 910 1,766 4,031
Exchange differences R 608 (418) g (480) (287)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-f=1—-H 1,678 6,384 3,175 7,162 18,399
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e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

29 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 20 EAEBLIE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBHEAE

Withholding

tax on

distributable

profit of

Revaluation subsidiaries
of properties  in the PRC Others Total

i

= N

Z AR EHE
WEEMR  ZBRRHE Hitr @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2017

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss

Charged to other comprehensive
income

Withholding tax paid on profit

RZE—tF—HA—H 25,173 20,009 1,425 46,607
R/ (GE ) Bz 1,540 75 (357) 1,258
MREMZELRAE K

3,538 - - 3,538

MBS XN 2 BIRH A

distributions - (11,555) - (11,555)
Exchange differences [E 5 R 1,850 - 1 1,851
At 31 December 2017 R_T—+F+_A=1—H 32,101 8,529 1,069 41,699
At 1 January 2018 “Z—-)\f#—H—H 32,101 8,529 1,069 41,699
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss  #j&,/ (5t A )18% 2,319 - (356) 1,963
Charged to other comprehensive MREM2ELE K

income 5,077 - - 5,077
Exchange differences B 3 F 2 (720) - 3) (723)
At 31 December 2018 R-_T—\F+-A=1—H 38,777 8,529 710 48,016
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has estimated RZE—N\F+_A=+—H K~&EEH
unused tax losses of approximately HK$585,582,000 B %751 585,582,0007C ( —F —+F :
(2017: HK$609,227,000) available for offset against 75 609,227,000 ) 2 {5 5T R &) A F 7%
future profits and the losses may be carried forward 518 A (3K §H R 2RO Al 52 B 1B Al ok

indefinitely (2017: same).

ABE(ZT—CF : HR) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &#HZ _—ZT— \F+_-A=+—HItFE
29 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29 EERHIE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEREEE(E)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H ' K~&EEH
deductible temporary differences of approximately B A B ®278,633,000T( —F—+H4F ¢
HK$278,633,000 (2017: HK$299,533,000). 7% % 299,533,000 7T ) 2 AT 1R A8 B 1t
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in ZR o RZAUHNBEEMEER - 4
respect of approximately HK$38,231,000 (2017: 75 138,231,000 C( —F — & : B
HK$34,820,000) of such deductible temporary 34,820,0007_13)E?&ﬁ&u/bﬁf_kmlﬁﬁ
differences. No deferred tax asset has been recognised E o 82 4% % 240,402,000 T ( =
in respect of the remaining deductible temporary *tﬁ : 5%%264,713,00077:)E’UEHD5)&
differences of approximately HK$240,402,000 (2017: CEMHER  EREMEAEGERN R
HK$264,713,000) as it is not probable that taxable %IJT%L/@D/)I AN 4 RE AR A AR AE B 1R
profit will be available against which the deductible BEE o
temporary difference can be utilised.
30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 B
Number of
shares
5B
Thousand HK$’000
T AT T
Issued and fully paid: BT R RA
At 1 January 2017, R-_ZE—+tF—H—Q8"
31 December 2017, —E—+EF+ZA=1—
1 January 2018 and A - N\F—HA—
31 December 2018 BR-—ZE-—N\EFE+_A
== 1,922,901 1,191,798
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &g
(a) Capital commitments (a) EBEREE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F Z—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Commitments in respect of BEEME  MERREZEIE
the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
- contracted for but not provided — — 2 T 4B KRR EG A BT
in the consolidated WEELEE
financial statements 1,484 21,762
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 FAEE)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHELD
The Group as lessee AEEEZAHEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RRERR - RIBETAIREHLCER
commitments for future minimum lease payments %4 AREER TPIHRE 2 K2R
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall HIEEE T HAENT -

due as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2018 2017

—g-N\F —T—t%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year —FR 1,312 7,132

In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _ZFHFN 1,670 6,647

2,982 13,779

Operating lease payments represents rental KEMASTHEASERERET

payable by the Group for certain of its buildings. BFZENES - ZFVENBE

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to three MO AE—ZE=F(-_T—+F:
years (2017: one to three years). —FE=fF) o

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 273



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

31 COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 FAEE)
(b) Operating lease commitments (continued) (b) REMHEN(E)
The Group as lessor AEEEZLHBEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR - XEFEERBFPHELZ
contracted with tenants for the following future RRFEEWBSETLOT -

minimum lease payments:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within one year —FR 1,175 1,885
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _ZERFNRA 1,563 2,111
Over five years ZRAF 63 -
2,801 3,996
32 EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE 32 FERBEE
REPORTING PERIOD
On 11 February 2019, the Group issued convertibles R-F—NFE-_F+—8 AEEAER
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of AR AER AR (BE TR EE Y
HK$150,000,000 to Jingxi Holdings Limited, an B A ) 317N & 58 ££55 #150,000,000
associate to the Company as defined under the Listing TEE’JTTﬁHxﬁ%’?
Rule.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE— T/ \F+-_A=t—HLFE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

33 MEBEERERMNE

EEEBARE

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax (a) BBRFESHABERABRARE
to cash flows used in operating activities

As at 31 December

Rt=B=t-H
2018 2017
“E-N\% —E1F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
i BETRT BETT
Cash flows from operating activities KeTHELECRERE
Loss before tax BERIEE (11,117 (75,213)
Adjustments for: R
Reversal of provision for impairment loss B [EIEUBR ZUR BB X EfaF e
on trade receivables, net 1,365 (728)
Net provision for inventories recognised B R F S E T8 (740) (1,708)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments RSBz # i 4,681 7,919
Bad debts written off/(recovered) SRR/ () 355 (1,700)
Changes in fair value of investment REMENTEZE
properties (4,017) (23,820)
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BERXEINE
equipment 130,343 118,903
Interest expenses and amortisation of FIBXHRERRZ FRA 2 B
loan transaction costs 55,386 52,487
Loss/(gain) on disposal of club HeEe® 7B /()5S
memberships, net 225 (395)
Impairment losses recognised in respect BB HEEFIE 2 EEAREERR
of prepaid lease payments 19 - 72,523
Interest income WA (1,297) (399)
Losses on disposal of property, HENE - BFERZEERFE
plant and equipment, net 2,723 110
Operating cash flows before movements ~ EE/E 4283 v BLELTE
in working capital 177,907 147,979
Increase in inventories FEZEM (28,380) (58,034)
Increase in trade receivables FEIR R 2 3 0 (30,856) (87,597)
Increase in bills receivable FEWELE 7 20 (282,746) (205,023)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BN~ K4 MEMERF 2 H D
other receivables 26,671 13,651
Increase in trade and bills payables ERETRRE LM 40,447 358,951
Decrease in other payables and accruals ~ HitERZREBIEER 2R (34,306) (33,676)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (88)/EX 252 (131,263) 136,251
#F3f ANNUAL REPORT 2018 275



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR S MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax
to cash flows used in operating activities
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and club
memberships:

33 FEREREBRMFT(E)

(@) BERFIEHABERARALE
EBBRARE(E)

F@éﬁémi%¢’ﬁ%%%‘

BER&E  REMERERE M
BT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Net book amount AREFE 14,791 31,005
(Losses)/gains on disposals of HEME « RE&EZE
property, plant and equipment kef s (B8),/ W
and club memberships (2,948) 285
Proceeds from disposals of TEWE - WE MEKE
property, plant and equipment ke nSsIE
and club memberships 11,843 31,290
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

33 FMERERERMFT(E

)

(b) HREEHELNEGEZHR

TRFVNACEARELZDELD
BEZEE  ARREREERLH
B AREARDELNBEREXS

IE%/MLE&*XEQ%/}EH#

JINVINCS

BFaReRERKOBRELY

Eifﬁiuwmﬁfﬁ °©

Discounted  Loans from

Trust bills with related
Bank loans receipt loans recourse  companies Total

WeZEN REEHE
ERUBER EMRRE LFER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT

Note 28 Note 28 Note 28 Note 27

itiros ftiros o8 fitzr2r
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t4-A-A 798,016 10,125 92,411 233,211 1,133,763
Cash inflow BemA 820,020 34,151 199,039 200,000 1,253,210
Cash outflow Remit (883,391) (44,230) (260,742) (185,980)  (1,374,343)
Exchange differences B 27,395 (46) 6,695 4,218 38,262
Non-cash movement FHERH (1,357) - - (525) (1,882)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A—H 760,683 - 37,408 250,924 1,049,010
At 1 January 2018 R=2-/\$—A-H 760,683 - 37,408 250,924 1,049,010
Cash inflow BEMA 433,266 - 300,236 - 733,502
Cash outflow Remit (462,942) (168,694) (27,949) (659,585)
Exchange differences B (20,304) - (6,788) (1,355) (28,447)
Non-cash movement FHERH 1,591 - - 4,738 6,329
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\§+-A-A 712,294 - 162,157 226,358 1,100,809
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZE—Z

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

278

(a) The Company’s share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting held on 7 June 2002.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors
(the “Board”) of the Company shall, subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of the 2002
Scheme and the Listing Rules, grant share options
to any eligible participant to subscribe for shares
in the capital of the Company. A new share option
scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was adopted and the
2002 Scheme was terminated by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting
held on 25 May 2012.

The 2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May
2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and
permission to deal in, any shares falling to be
issued and allotted upon the exercise of the share
options granted.

The share options which have been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue.

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

34 LB XZHZRS

(a)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A K j‘ﬁ&#ﬁiﬁfj

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 LUB#HEZRTHEZZE(E)
(continued)

(a) The Company’s share option scheme

(continued)

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme
(subsequently replaced by the 2012 Scheme) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contributions
to the Group or potential contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme
include any director (including executive and
non-executive), executive, officer, employee
or shareholder of the Company or any of the
subsidiaries or any of the associates or any of
the joint ventures and any supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, agent, partner or business
associate who will contribute or has contributed to
the Group.

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include
any director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive), executive,
officer, employee, shareholder of the Company or
any of the subsidiaries or any of the associated
companies or any of the joint ventures and any
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent,
partner or business associate, who will contribute
or has contributed to the development and growth
of the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2012 Scheme will remain in force for
a period of ten years from 29 May 2012.

(a)

ARRzERESE(E)

ARBIRYL-ZFZT_HEIEEZE
RERBEEMATHAKEM{ES
ZERHFIBEIER Z ARl - —FF
“HEZAERALBEARAR
EAE AP 8 2 B S E B 2 A R
FEEMARZEHEERZEME
%( B8ITRIFHIT) - TTHA
BRRE - BB HRREM
ﬁi\ﬁ"éﬁﬁ CBF #B#A EﬁFﬁ (A
BA AaBASEBREBAL &
WH%?E‘EEWKEI{’E&EJZKZ/\
TeoM-F——FEE_FT 5
|BEER—BMg B L ERE
BIEAERA ©

,I]]]I]

i

it

ZEZHECEEREARARRE
7NN =R G == N [ T )
b AR REH
ZEMESR(BERT  FHTK
BYIEHIT) TTHAER > SAK
ﬁij%%&fﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁ S E
P #RA Bl REA 6%
)\&‘%ﬁ“ﬁﬁ tAT  ZEBENE
ﬁZlS‘il?f‘f)?e&i'E{’EﬁiriﬁZ}\
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(continued)
(a) The Company’s share option scheme

(continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme is 192,290,055 shares
which represented 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this annual report. The maximum number of
shares issuable under the share options to each
qualifying grantee in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue
under the 2012 Scheme. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the
2012 Scheme may be accepted within 60 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the 2002
Scheme and 2012 Scheme at any time within 10
years from the date of grant of the options or
may be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its discretion.

The exercise price per share in relation to an
option under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme
shall be a price to be determined by the Board and
shall be no less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which the option
is offered to an eligible participant/a qualifying
grantee, which must be a business day; or (b) the
official average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer
of option to an eligible participant/a qualifying
grantee.

(a)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

ARRzERESE(E)

BIE_T——58  REATE
TZERITEBEBRELHE LRA
192,290,0550% * RE AR A A A
FHERER B 2 B BITRMDBE
B&10% - REBE_T——318 - &
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 LUB#HEZRTHEZZE(E)
(continued)

(a) The Company’s share option scheme

(continued)

Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme,
share options held by any eligible participant/
qualifying grantee will lapse automatically upon
their termination of employment but the Board
is empowered to extend the exercise period of
the concerned share options at its discretion.
Relevant exercise period of share options held
by the eligible participant whose employment
terminated during the previous years was
extended and approved by the Board. Such
change does not constitute modification of the
2002 Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

No share options were granted under the 2002
Scheme during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 since the 2002 Scheme had
terminated. During the year ended 31 December
2018, no share options granted under the 2002
Scheme had been exercised or cancelled while
103,700,000 (2017: 3,268,000) share options have
lapsed.

No share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the 2012 Scheme
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018.

(a)

ARRzERESE(E)
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(continued)

(a) The Company’s share option scheme
(continued)
The following table discloses details of the
Company’s share options granted under 2002
Scheme held by eligible participants and
movements in such holdings in relation thereto
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and

(a)

ARRzERESE(E)

TREBEAREBRALHR -ZT =
B A AR RIBREEM RER
ECEEERZTN\FTZ
A=+ —BLFEZFHRES :

2018:
Number of share options for 2018
~E-)\FRREXA
Lapsed Exercise
during price per
Grantees At1.1.2018 theyear At31.12.2018 Dateof grant  Exercise period share
R-B-NE R-B-NE sk
ERTEREAL -B-H ER%¥ t=A=t-A RLRH fTREE ikl
(Note a) HKS
(Kiita) i
Directors of the Company 39,400,000 (39,400,000) (Note b)(¥:tb) - 2812008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
NG 5,400,000 (5,400,000) (Note c) FfzEc) - 1372000 13.7.2009-12.7.2019 0.680
5,400,000 (Note i) f13H) (5,400,000) (Note c)(f3¥c) - 1372009  1.1.2010- 12.7.2019 0680
7,200,000 (Note ) ) (7,200,000) (Note ¢) (FifzEc) - 1372000 1.1.2011-127.2019 0.680
57,400,000 (57,400,000) -
Employees other than directors 28,700,000  (28,700,000) (Note o) (Ff:#d) - 2812008  281.2008-27.1.2018 0.864
of the Company 100,000 (Note K)(3Ek) ~ (100,000) (Note &) (FizFe) - 2812008 281.2011-27.1.2018 0.864
BE(RATESR) 1350000 (150,000) (Note f)(AE) 1,200,000 1372009 13.7.2009 - 12.7.2019 0,680
1,350,000 (Note i) (F35i) ~ (150,000) (Note f)(RZE) 1,200,000 137.2000  1.1.2010-12.7.2019 0680
1,800,000 (Note ) Ff3E)  (200,000) (Note fl(Riz5f) 1,600,000 18.7.2009  1.1.2011 - 12.7.2019 0.680
33,300,000 (29,300,000 4,000,000
Al other eligible participants 17,000,000 (17,000,000 (Note g)(¥ztg) - 2812008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
MEREERAL
107,700,000 (103,700,000 4,000,000
Exercisable at year end 4,000,000
REEATE
Weighted average exercise price 0.826 0.831 0.680
METAHE
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 UB#HIZfALH2RE (&)
(continued)
(a) The Company’s share option scheme

(@) ALBZBERETE(E)

(continued)

Number of share options for 2017

“R-tERRRYE
Lapsed Exercise
during price per
Grantees At1.1.2017 the year At31.12.2017  Dateof grant  Exercise period share
Ro8-tf Ro8-tf gk
BRTRREAL -A-8 ERX t2R=+-8 RERE EEE k&
(Note a) HKS
(Kiita) g
Directors of the Company 1,268,000 (1,268,000 (Note h)(fih) - 26.1.2007  26.1.2007 - 25.1.2017 0.656
L 5,400,000 - 5,400,000 18.7.2009  13.7.2009 - 12.7.2019 0.680
5,400,000 - 5,400,000 (Note i) Fizki) 1372000 1.1.2010-12.7.2019 0.680
7,200,000 - 7,200,000 (Note i) i) 13.7.2009  1.1.2011-12.7.2019 0.680
39,400,000 - 39,400,000 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
58,668,000 (1,268,000 57,400,000
Employees other than directors 30,700,000 (2,000,000) (Note j)( i) 28,700,000 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
of the Company 100,000 - 100,000 (Note k)(¥ztk) 28.1.2008  28.1.2011 - 27.1.2018 0.864
ES(ARAEZRIN) 1,350,000 - 1,350,000 13.7.2009  13.7.2009 - 12.7.2019 0.680
1,350,000 - 1,350,000 (Note i) i) 13.7.2000  1.1.2010- 12.7.2019 0680
1,800,000 - 1,800,000 (Note i) FfzFi) 1372000 1.1.2011-12.7.2019 0.680
35,300,000 (2,000,000 33,300,000
All other eligible participants 17,000,000 - 17,000,000 28.1.2008  28.1.2008 - 27.1.2018 0.864
FREMAERAL
110,968,000 (3,268,000) 107,700,000
Exercisable at year end 107,700,000
REEAfE
Weighted average exercise price 0.824 0.783 0.826
WETAEE
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 LUB#HEZRTHEZZE(E)
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(a) The

Company’s share option scheme

(continued)
Notes:

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant to the beginning of the exercise period
except for the share options set out under Notes (i)
and (k) below.

A total of 39,400,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK$0.864 held by Mr. Li Shaofeng (“Mr. Li”),
Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau, Mr. Leung Shun Sang,
Tony (“Mr. Leung”), Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (“Mr.
Yip”) and Mr. Law Yui Lun (“Mr. Law”) lapsed during
the year, in which Mr. Li resigned as an executive
Director and chairman with effect from 18 January
2018. Mr. Leung retired at the annual general meeting
held on 18 May 2018 and did not offer himself for re-
election.

Following the resignation of Mr. Yang Kaiyu (“Mr.
Yang”) as an executive Director and managing
Director with effect from 31 January 2018, the
18,000,000 share options held by Mr. Yang, with the
exercise price of HK$0.680 have lapsed.

A total of 28,700,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK$0.864 lapsed during the year in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

100,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.864, which have a vesting period of three years
from the date of grant, lapsed during the year in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

A total of aggregate 500,000 share options lapsed
during the year due to the resignation of an employee.

17,000,000 share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.864 lapsed during the year in accordance with
the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

(@) ALBZBERETE(E)

G

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 LUB#HEZRTHEZZE(E)

(continued)
(a) The Company’s share option scheme

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

h. A total of 1,268,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK$0.656 held by Mr. Yip and Mr. Law lapsed
during 2017.

i. 5,400,000 share options have a vesting period from
the date of grant to 31 December 2009 and 7,200,000
share options have a vesting period from the date
of grant to 31 December 2010 under the category of
“Directors of the Company”. 1,350,000 share options
have a vesting period from the date of grant to 31
December 2009 and 1,800,000 share options have a
vesting period from the date of grant to 31 December
2010 under the category of “Employees other than
the directors of the Company”.

j- A total of 2,000,000 share options at the exercise
price of HK$0.864 lapsed during 2017 due to the
resignation and retirement of certain employees.

k. 100,000 share options have a vesting period of three
years from the date of grant.

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang HK, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together
with its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
other than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to
as the “Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group is
significantly influenced by Shougang Group, which
is part of a larger group of companies ultimately
controlled by the PRC government.

Shougang HK, together with its subsidiaries and
associates other than the Group, will hereinafter be
referred to as the “Shougang HK Group”. Apart from
the transactions with Shougang HK Group, the Group
also conducts businesses with other PRC government-
related entities in the ordinary course of business.

(@) ALBZBERETE(E)

M - (&)

h. HEBREEEMBELEEREZITRE
8/ 75%0.6567T,21,268,000% &
PRI — T — L FRRRL

i. R IARRRIEE #8854+ - 5,400,000
REREAREBHE-_ZZT
WE+ZA=Z=+—HEHEB XK
7,200,000 % % IR 2 H B B &=
T ZEFE+_RA=+—H%EH
B -RMEEB(KRRARESRINIE
B+ 1,350,000 A% B8 A% 4 1A 1% H
HBZE-_TTAF+=-_A=+—H
1% &% /8 % 1,800,000 % B8 A% 18 A %
HRRZE_T-—TFF+_A=+—
HigZ&E -

j. HETEE RS K 0.864 T 2
2,000,000 R ER R E TEE
BB MR IR18 2K ©

k.  #£75100,000 % i B 4 7 4% () A HA
—¢{§ BRI o

35 BREALZRS
ARRZEBRREEEVENRER
BE(DEMERERARLREEE

EEEEREZEeEREBECHALE)
MEEMRBARMNBEAR - BAKE

s BHEEAERAR MEBEAR
BEETRAAER)ATEERER [EHE
B E AEEXEHEEZERAY

- BHEESTEBNKEE 2 —
RONRBLERZ —&H
EREEERENBARMBEACK

SERINEATHRBERS [ BREEE
B (REFEEEEENRS AKH
EEEXBBRERINEE tbH BRI
BEBETER

43k ANNUAL REPORT 2018 285



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

B PR R B T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 HZ—-Z— \E+_-_A=+—HItFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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(continued)

(i)

Transactions with Shougang HK Group

35 AREALTZXRS(E)

Transactions with PRC government- () EFEBNBREERZRS
related entities

(a) HEZZEZREZXS

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2018 2017
—Z2-NEF —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Consultancy fees paid to XNEEE T EERE
Shougang HK Group £H 960 960
Rental expenses paid to X TEEEEEE
Shougang HK Group 1,974 3,384
Loans from Shougang HK Group KEEEESEEZEXR - 200,000
Loans repaid to Shougang HK Group EEEEBBEB ZEX 27,949 185,980
Handling fee paid to X TFTEEEAEEZ
Shougang HK Group FEE 830 830
Interest expenses on loans from KEEEEEEEZER
Shougang HK Group Z R BT H 12,790 5,169

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(i) Transactions with PRC government- (i)

35 FBEATZRF(E)

REhERNBEREZRS

related entities (continued)

(b) Transactions with other PRC
government-related entities
The Group has entered into various
transactions, including sales to, purchases
from and other operating expenses paid to
other PRC government-related entities. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
these transactions are considered as
individually insignificant to the operation of
the Group during the reporting period.

In addition, the Group has entered into
various banking transactions, including
deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-
controlled entities in its ordinary course
of business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

(ii) Transactions with non-PRC government-

related entities

Compensation of key management
personnel

The key management of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details
of their emoluments are disclosed in Notes 10
and 37, and share-based payment transactions
are disclosed in Notes 34, respectively. The
emoluments of the directors of the Company
are decided by the remuneration committee
of the Company having regard to individual’s
performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market condition.

(%)

(b) HHAEHFEEER XS
AEBEEMPEBRNEESR
BIVZERS  BREHEE
T HKEAERINHMEEE
BAFEMTBEBREEELE -
KARIEERR  ZEXHE
R AR BB AR E RS H
NH) B TFRE ©

eSS T2 B 170 B8] ) 4
METRITEMBEERERAE
EBBRETEUZEARS 8
BER - BEREM—RRT
BE ERZFRTIRH M
B ARAEERR/BUKE
WEESE -

(i) BAHPEBRFEEERBZRS
FEEEANESZIRH

REBZETEEBEABBREARA
FIERITES  HMS ARG X
MEHZRSFHBEDRIRKEE10
KRI7TEMIFEIAEL TR - KRAIE
ErMEeBARBRIZEMEE IR
REARE  AEBZEEREF
AL - IRAZEFIEIE R B R T i5 IR
BimER] »
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BE—F

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

36 AXATMNHMBEMRRRRHE
QTR R K

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—2-N\EF T F
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
Assets EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries MTE Bk 1,385,001 1,354,731
Club memberships g - 331
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 1,385,001 1,355,062
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR R B B Ath B LR 290 1,606
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG R 524,677 498,176
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRS 1,411 25,559
Total current assets REBEEEEE 526,378 525,341
Total assets BEEHAT 1,911,379 1,880,403
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to owners of FEREARIMEERR
the company
Share capital RN 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves HE 188,036 171,259
Total equity Mg 1,379,834 1,363,057
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HMENRRERE R 29,147 21,366
Loan from a related company xE—B@EBA TZ B 205,534 200,658
Bank borrowings IRITEFX 28,457 -
Total current liabilities RBAGERE 263,138 222,024
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings IRITEN 268,407 295,322
Total liabilities EE8% 531,545 517,346
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 1,911,379 1,880,403
The statement of financial position of the Company was KRB FEMRARER_ZE—NF=A

approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019

and was signed on its behalf:

HATESKARE

— - AEEEEHELETEA I
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Su Fanrong
AR
DIRECTOR
EE

Tang Cornor Kwok Kau

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA
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36

B PR R B T

BE—F

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

36 AT BAMRRRRHEE)

Movement in the Company’s reserves HENE T
Retained
profits/
Capital  Translation ~ Share option  (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
REEF
BRfE Eifif  BRERK (ZitER) ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BRI BRI AETT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 EBZ-F-NE+-A=+-ALEE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F-f-H 23,990 65,590 29,881 163,308 272,769
Comprehensive loss 2HFR
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (158,605) (158,605)
Other comprehensive income Efp2EkE
Exchange difference arising on translation FAZ27|SEMELHES 8
into presentation currency - 57,095 - - 57,095
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EhN/(BR)6%
for the year - 57,095 - (158,605) (101,510)
Lapse of share options BREXR - - (987) 987 -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-tF+-A=1+-A 23,990 122,685 28,894 (4,310) 171,259
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year KEEHH - - - 57,044 57,044
Other comprehensive income A2 ENE
Exchange difference arising on translation FAS 23|E%mELNES 8
into presentation currency - (40,267) - - (40,267)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEERE(BR)/ WAEE
for the year - (40,267) - 57,044 16,777
Lapse of share options RS - - (27,814) 27,814 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A 23,990 82,418 1,080 80,548 188,036

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the
benefit of acquiring a shareholder’s loan from a previous
shareholder upon the acquisition of a subsidiary in previous

years.

e 7 ]2 A R F3 A DA AT 2 M —
RV B 2 055 A — (A1 AR SR A B SR
2Rl o
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

290

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each director of the Company

is set out as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

37 EERARER(FREQARH

(5£622% ) 5£3831%

NCIRE 4

EENEER) R (55622GE)
K EmRAREHE)

(a) EBZHME

BRESZMEFIIMT

BHE-T
FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (-RAR0AAANRLTRE) RECHTRIME

—N\Ft+ZA=+—H1t

Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
connection with
Employer's  the management
contributionto o the affairs of
Allowances ~ aretirement  the Company or
Discretionary  and benefits benefit its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
HESERALT
EEG] INGES
EIMBf  FENELEE
g it BERL RURENEA  BAGHAMR  cHIEUEE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT EBTn EETR AM; BT B¥Tn
Executive directors HrEs
Li Shaofeng (Note a] BB (Mta) - - - - - .
Yang Kaiyu (Note b CEERGIRD) 20 1 11 1320 1,552
Su Fanrong ENF 1,820 18 18 - 1,86
Tang Comor Kok Kau HEx 1,981 7 52 2,040
Non-executive directors FH7ES
Leung Shun Sang, Tony (Note ¢) 2IE4 (W) 12 1
Liao Jun B 150 150
Independent non-executive directors BIFH7TES
Yip Kin Man, Raymond EpR 20 240
Law Yui Lun EEl 40 240
Lam YiuKin iz 240 240
942 4,021 2% 81 1,320 6,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R S B AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #HZ—Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 37 EEEIAERER(FBA KM
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED (5£622% ) 53831k - AEI(HKE
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG EENZEHR) KM (F622GE)
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), REWHRARENHE)(E)

COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEz#E(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: Bz Z—+&F+_A=+—H81It
FE -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (—RARRIIENBARRH) BECNARIME

Other emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Employer's  the management

contributionto ~ of the affairs of

Allowances ~ aretirement  the Gompany or

Discretionary  and benefits benefit its subsidiary

Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
RERERANA
FEMBRAER

BINRK  SEOEMER
e Fo o DREL REREURN EAAERR  CHIENME GE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000
BT Bt A¥Tn BETr BETn ik APV L v

Executive directors Y783

Li Shaofeng i - - - - - - -

Yang Kaiyu ks - 2647 440 - 154 - 321

Su Fanrong AR - 2,170 360 - 18 - 2,548

Tang Comor Kwok Kau HEx - 1,990 - - 9% - 2,089

Non-executive directors FifES

Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2R 190 - - - - - 190

Liao Jun 2% 150 - - - - - 150

Independent non-gxecutive directors B FHTES

Yip Kin Man, Raymond EfER 240 = = = = = 240

Law Yui Lun izt 20 - - - - - 240

Lam Yiu Kin s 240 - - - - - 240
1,060 6407 800 - il - 8938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

37

292

B PR R B T

BE—F

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED

BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

None of the directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting

office as a director during the year (2017: Nil).

Notes:

(@)  Mr. Li Shaofeng resigned as an executive director on

18 January 2018.

(b)  Mr. Yang Kaiyu resigned as an executive director on

31 January 2018.

()  Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony retired as a non-

executive director on 18 May 2018.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during

the year (2017: same).

(c) Consideration provided to or receivable

by third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company does not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2017: same).

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

37 EERARER(FREQARH

(5£622% ) 5£3831%

NCIRE 4

EENEER) R (55622GE)
REmHRARENKE)(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

SHOUGANG CONCORD CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BHRBEESEABRAA

BEECME(E)

FA - BETAEENEAESH
iz M W ER K G W EE A 2 (= F
—tF RE) -

B EE -

(@ FLEEER_Z-—NF-—A+N
HEHIARBIMITES -

by BRFEER_T—-NF—AH
=T —HBEARRITES -

() ZRIEEEER=ZZF—NFRA+N
HREARFIEATES o

EEERARERNREERER

FA - $E%$ﬁ%$ﬁi<«iﬂﬁ H&HXE
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F MR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

B PR R B T

BE—F

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2018, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors (2017:
same).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: same).

—N\F+-A=1+—HILFE

37 EERARER(FREQARH

(5£622% ) 5£3831%

NCIRE 4

EENEER) R (55622GE)
REmHRARENKE)(E)

(d)

(e)

EBRUES ZEESEZEE
FlEEREBEERBATRAZ
EXR -EERRHEMERZZE
-
REZE-_Z—N\F+=-A=+—8
HEE  BEUNESE %SES
ZEEHEERBEERB AT S A
ZEXR EERREMR HRH
(ZZT—+F : M8[) -

EERNRE  R¥HE
REH
ARRERERBITLARA R
HATHn kA RREEHE XM
BERAEARDEMNFRAFAL
MREINATFENEARS - 8
HEH(ZF—tF: iR -

WeE
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BREMFEHE

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas AEENR_-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HBFE2%

at 31 December 2018 are as follows: BYMEFBOT
Group
interest
Properties Use E&EEz Category of lease
L/ES ik #E  HRER
1. House 5 — 18 and carport Residential 100% Medium term lease
District 5, Legend Garden Villas E=2 Hr HAFE 4V

No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC

LR

A5 [ B AP 5 3K 8955
BritEREERR
5-185% R EE

2. Workshop Nos. 16, 17 and Industrial and commercial 100% Long term lease
18 on 12th Floor Trg% REAEL
Honour Industrial Centre
No. 6 Sun Yip Street
Chaiwan, Hong Kong
BB BT R E65
LI ER 1218
16, 172 18=

3. Apartment Unit 4-14-5, Level 2 Residential 100% Medium term lease
Block 4-8, District 4 £ R ERFR A
Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC
R EE R
FAG R E #5515 895%

BritEREE MR
257 R E 4-8F
4-14-553 =

4. Unit 5E on Level 5 and Commercial and residential 100% Long term lease
Car Park No. 39 on level 2 MEREE KA
Jinmin Building

No. 8 Zunyi Road South
Changning District, Shanghai

PRC

FRE EET
EEEEERMIKEH
RRANE

51E5EZE
N2t B {7 53958
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DEFINITIONS

F
In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the HEARZEF  BXEREHAE @ TH#A=ZER
following terms shall have the meaning set out below: LUNE-

“2002 Scheme”

[T 3]

“2012 Scheme”

[—Z— 513

“Able Legend”

[Able Legend |

“Articles”
[EZR2488) ]

“BeijingWest Industries”

[RAET |

“Bekaert”

[ Bekaert ]

“Bekaert Combustion”

[ Bekaert Combustion |

“Board”

[EEE

“Board Diversity Policy”

[BEFEEXEZTTIEBER ]

A share option scheme adopted and terminated by the Shareholders
at the annual general meetings held on 7 June 2002 and 25 May 2012
respectively
BRESBIR-_ZBZ_FARNALAR_E——_FRA-THARTZREAF
RNE R R 2 BT 8

A share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2012 and became effective on 29 May
2012

BRER-ZE-——FRAA-THBARITZRREAFRG LRATR T ——F
TAZ TN BRERZFFERET S

Able Legend Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang HK
Able Legend Investments Limited * EZ& %5 2 B A A)

the Articles of Association of the Company
RRAREBERAE

BeijingWest Industries International Limited (Stock Code: 2339), a
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
REETEERAERAR(RMDAS - 2339) - RASHESFMKNIZBRA
Al - AR R PTER ETH

NV Bekaert SA, a company incorporated under the laws of Belgium, a
substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

NV Bekaert SA - HRIBELLFRSEEFMALZ A7) - FERF(REZ S K H
BiEPIER)

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Bekaert, is a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V. ' BekaertZ 2 &HiEB A7 © = ER%
R(REES KRAERDIER)

the board of Directors

AAFESRS

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited Board Diversity Policy

adopted on 26 August 2013 and revised from time to time thereafter

‘<_7 SENAZTRARAERBERTREITIZEREESEEERARA
EFEXEZTTEBR
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DEFINITIONS

“Casula”
[Casula]

“Code"
SN

“Companies Ordinance”
IPNSIECST

“Company”/
“Shougang Century”

[ARA ]/ TEREE]

“Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy”

[ 5B FE & EBUR |
“Conversion Price”
[HRR%(E |

“Conversion Restrictions”

[ AR |

“Conversion Rights”

[ S5 |

Casula Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang International
Casula Investments Limited © & KB 2 KB A 7

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

E R RIS &+ PO a2 KRR EVRSTRID

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB EDF622F 2 A& A

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BREEEEBRAR - —BRNEBEMKILZ AR QT K H IR AN B P
FRET™

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy adopted on 28 March 2011 and revised from time to
time thereafter

BT —F=A-t/\BRAERERIREITIZEREEEERBR AT
FEREREER

HK$0.33 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustments)
BRI (D & #0.33 T (Al THE)

Conversion shall be subject to the following conditions:

(@) any exercise of the Conversion Rights shall not trigger any
mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers; and

(b) any exercise of the Conversion Rights shall not render the Company
no longer be able to maintain the minimum public float of the Shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

BIRE T IR RR -

(a) EBBREZITENSEEFT B RIWEREHFRIFRAIE2618 T(E
fASRHI B+ K&

(b) (EfIEHREZITENEERARRRTBEAER EMARRMRE 2 RHRKE

RARBBRE -

the rights to convert the Convertible Bonds into Conversion Shares

7% AT 4 AR 25 BE A R A A A 1) O A
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DEFINITIONS

“Conversion Shares”

[ A7 ]

“Convertible Bonds”

[ AR ]

”

“Copper and brass products

[$ K & s 1

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Employment Ordinance”

[ 18 16151
“Fair Union”
[ Fair Union |

“Global Digital”
[ ERERENH ]

“Group”
[REE |

“HKD/HK$”
[E%]

“Hong Kong
(&% ]

the Share(s) to be issued by the Company upon the holder(s) of the
Convertible Bonds exercising its/their Conversion Rights attached to the
Convertible Bonds in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
instrument constituting the Convertible Bonds
RRARRABRBRESFE ARBBK A RRES TEOGRR S FFITER K
15 %5 AT MRS B 25 M s B SR IR R 121 T 31T B AR 19

the 4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable to 2024)
issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement
ARARRBERBHRET T RAZERNANESEREAE%150,000,0007T0 =
T _FRMB(AIERE S NF) M4 % B E TR B AIRRES

processing and trading of copper and brass products
R EEMENIRE S

the director(s) of the Company

RRBES

the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDESTERFEIRD

Fair Union Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
International
Fair Union Holdings Limited ' B &KBE 22 &EH B A A

Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8271), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
BRHREISAIEERER AR (ROMRS - 8271)  RAREAMKIZERA
Al - B ER R PTGEM £

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZAN/NCTDSEREG )= YN

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BRAEEHN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B F B R RTTRER
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DEFINITIONS

“Inside Information Provisions”

[AEHE B &
“Internal Control Manual”

[ AHBEHE4E 5 ]

“J ESC”

[F=ERT7

“Jingxi Holdings”

Vil

“Li Ka Shing Foundation”

==

%\;

Eoe]

“Listing Rules”

[ EfARAl

“Loco Hong Kong”

[E R

“Model Code”

K2 Ul

“Policy for Nomination of a

Director of the Company”

[TERAREEHRK

Part XIVA of the SFO
B 5 R HEEBI EXIVAED

an internal management and control manual of the Company adopted in
1999 and revised from time to time thereafter

ARTE—AANERBLRBEE T ET 2 NHERRERHES

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
;au/\%ﬁfﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ g RBRBUEERFMA L RF] - REAREZEE
2EMBA

Jingxi Holdings Limited RFA{EAR AR A F], a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Fund

R Hxﬁﬁﬂ  —HBRBREEEMZMKINERAGE - REHESH
2EMBA

Li Ka Shing Foundation Limited, a “charitable body” within the meaning

of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong

Kong), a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

?i%&ﬁAﬁﬁﬁE“ﬁ REBEDFE12ERBEIIMAE 2 [BEE
Bl FERR(BEEFLPEEIEE)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B 32 praE s B R Al

Loco Hong Kong Holdings Limited, (Stock Code: 8162), a company

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which are

listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange

BIRIERBR AT (RO - 8162) - REBEMKIZZBRAR - HRH
Bt X FTGEM_ETH

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAMEE T EMETAETETESRHNFESTAD

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company adopted on 18 December 2018 and revised from
time to time thereafter

RZZB-NFT+ AT NBRBUNBERIRET EREEEERRAR
REQAREZER
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DEFINITIONS

“PRC”

[ B

“Richson”
[ Richson

“RMB”
[ARE]

“SCCHL Code”
[BEREETA

“SCCHL Corporate
Governance Code”
[BEREELEERSTAI

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
[ L7

“Shareholder(s)”
e

“Shougang Fund”

[EMES]
“Shougang Grand”

[E&MT

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report shall
exclude Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
and Taiwan

REAREME - AREMS - TRERE - FERPIFRITRREKLEE

Richson Limited, a subsidiary of Shougang International
Richson Limited © B KB 2 i &2 7

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE + REEE 8

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Specified
Individuals of Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited adopted in
2004 and revised from time to time thereafter

—_EEMFERAUREETIREI ERBEEEBEARARESEIEEA
THETIEFR HHNELESTA

Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited Code on Corporate
Governance (revised from time to time)
BREEEEARARREERTA(IREL)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BEEDIESEEF L RAE D

ordinary share(s) of the Company
RRARZERR

shareholder(s) of the Company

RATFZ R

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., a company established in the PRC with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group
ERERESERAR - —HRPEKINBEREERF  SEHEENE
BB AR

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 730), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BREA(KEE)BRAT (RO : 730) - REREZMAIZIZERA
Al - AR RSP ER £
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DEFINITIONS

“Shougang Group”

R=FESEN
“Shougang HK”
[EEEE]

“Shougang International”

[ B REER

“Steel cord”

K358

“Stock Exchange/HKEXx”
[ B8 22 PR |

“Subscription”
[RE=E]

“Subscription Agreement”

[ R B W
“TESC”
[REMERTT

“TESC Phase Il Project”
MR T — 8318 A |

“USD/US$”
EA

“%”
[% |

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under the
direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission), a controlling Shareholder (as defined under
the SFO)

EMEEERAGR(—ERNPENZIMHBELE  XIIRBEEEEEER
ZEGHEEEE)  —E2ERBRRREES MASKRIIER)

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined
under the SFO)

BMZER(FEB)ERAR  REBIMNLZBRAT  FERR(IREZE
HF LG GIIEE)

Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (Stock
Code: 697), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
BREBRGEFRAR (RN : 697) REBEMAZZER AR - K
BAPEBRPER E - FERR(BEZFRPBERIER)

manufacturing of steel cords for radial tyres

SUET T 48w A6 A AR AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERSMER AT

the subscription for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings pursuant to
the terms and subject to the conditions of the Subscription Agreement

PR AR AR 15 SR 190 e 1O AR AR I 52 HL A6k AR R SR 8 Al R IR (B 55

the subscription agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered into
between the Company and Jingxi Holdings in relation to the subscription
for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings pursuant to the terms and
subject to the conditions of the Subscription Agreement
RAARRAERR ZZE—-N\F+ AT\ B L R E IR R R B
a5 A AR 52 EL A6 AR PR AR B AT I AR 5 R B 10 o

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

BEMRS HEGAERAT  REBEPBEREMAL AR RAR R ZHE
2 EMBATF

the construction project of production lines with an annual capacity of
20,000 tonnes of brass wires (half product or work in progress)

R FEE20,000M8 =44 (F R mRER M) EERNIEAR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

X XBZEEE®

per cent.

B
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